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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Fiscal Year
(In thousands, except per share data)

Total revenue

Income (loss) from operations

Net income [loss)

Diluted net income (loss) per share
Current assets

Total assets

Current lichilities

Total lichilities

Shareholders” equity

Net Revenue
{In thousands)
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2007 2006
1,023,615 $ 770,247 $
114,551 $ 18706 %
83,416 $ 16330 %
0.39 $ 0.08 ¥
580,439 $ 406,435 $
1,089,634  § 938,835 §
113,216 $ 103,032 $
369,967 $ 339,478 $
719,667 $ 599,357 $
Net Income {Loss)
{In thousands)
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2005

634,204
{61,270)
{66,045)
{0.35)
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316,392
548,050
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0.20
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-0.40

2004 2003
$ 651,379 § 507,819
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$ 015 % {0.05)
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$ ©95601 $ 040,518
$ 55883 § 77540
$ 392,463 § 383,118
$ 603138 § 557,400
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RFMD® PRODUCT PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS (BY BUSINESS UNIT)

Power Amplifiers

RF Micio Devices, Inc. (RFMD) is the world's leading supplier of cellular power amplifiers {PAs).

Power amplifiers are crilical components in the radio frequency (RF) section of handsets and are
primarily responsible for transmitiing o handset's signal 10 the cellular tower. The power amplifier is
commonly packeged in a module and con be combined with @ transmit/receive switch, in whai is
called a ransmit module. In fiscal 2007, RFMD supplied power amglifiers into nearly half of the world’s
cellular handsers. RFMD's power amplifiers enable handsets across all major ir interface siandards,
including CODMA, GSM/GPRS, EDGE and WCDMA.

Transmit Modules

RFAMD is the world's leading supplier of cellular transmil modules. The tiensmit module exponds RFMD's
semiconduclor content opportunity by combining the Company's industryleading power amplifier
technology with a gallium arsenide (GaAs) pseudomorphic high election mobility transistor {pHEMT]
transmit/receive switch and the associaied transmii fillering and matching. RFMD's highly integrated
transmit modules enable a smaller product footprint, improved reliability and reduced design fime, which
accelerates the cellular handset's timetomarker. RFMD supplies its ransmit modules inic GSM/GPRS,
EDGE and 3G multimode handsets.

POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIO™ RF Solutiens

REMD's POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIO™ products are complete system in package (SiP) RF solutions that
pedorm all the necassary funciions of the RF section of quadband cellular handsets, including the power
amplifier, fillers, swiich and transceiver. In fiscal 2007, POLARIS™~related revenue increased sequentially
each quarler, and RFMO grew its base of POLARIS™ customers. REMD expecis 1o odd naw POLARIS™
customers in fiscal 2008, diiven by continued adoption of POLARIS™ 2 products and the introduction of
POLARIS™ 3 in the second half of calendar year 2007

Wireless
Connectivity

Software-based GPS

RFMD’s softwarebased GPS solutions are designed o make use of the growing processing power
availoble in wireless mobile devices. The sclutions are highly scalable and allow cptimization across
a wide variety of platforms. Additionally, the sohwarerbosed aichiteciure reduces the overall bill of
malerials of cusiomers' preducts, leading to significant cost savings.

Wireless LAN Front Ends

RFMD provides integrated front ends (power omplifier modules and front end medules) for

80211 a/b/g/n wireless local area network [WIAN) applications. RFMD is the leading supplier of
WILAN front ends for handsets, and the Company is leveraging its WLAN product portiolic to target
additional markets, such as personal computing and consumer electionics, as well as new wireless
mobile devices. RFMD cniicipates WIAN front end revenue 10 giow significantly in fiscal 2008, driven
by market share gains, market growth and the increased adoption of 802.1 1a. The use of muliple inpus
multiple output [MIMICH technology in BO2.1 1n applications maximizes data throughput and requires
addifional RF content.

Infrastructure

RFMD’
GaN

Gallium Nitride

REMD's gellium nitride (GoN] RF technology is o revolutionary hign power transisior process thai
delivers  superior combinction of power and bandwidth, as compored 10 conventional GeAs- or
siliconbased technclogies. REMD is developing three fomilies of high vollage GaN products, including
power transistors, high power RF integrated circuits [RFICs] and high power matched transistors.
RFMD's power transistors exhibit high peak efficiency and wide amplifier bandwidih ond cre desirable
for high efficiency power amplifier applications. RFMD's high power RHCs are impedance-matched
power amplifiers that deliver high efficiency over mulliple octaves of bandwidth and can enable

coth military and commercial software definable radios {SDRs). Finally, RFMD's high power matched
fransistors optimize performance over multiple frequency bands and are targeted at multiple high-growth
applications sueh as WCDMA and WiIMAX base stations.




2007 LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Robert A. Bruggeworth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

Fiscal 2007 was a record year for REMD. We grew our business
significantly and realized a meaningful financicl milestone, Our
revenue increased by $253 million, or 33%, to $1.024 billion,
surpassing one billion dollars for the first time in our Company’s
history. We also achieved record net income of $83.4 million
and achieved cash flow from operations of $178 million.

We extended our leadership in our primary market of cellular
handsets and continued to implement a strategy of growth in
other wireless communications markets. We grew sales of cellular
front ends, including our markes leading tansmit modules and
power amplifier modules. We grew sales of our POLARIS™ TOTAL
RADIO™ RF solutions and successfully increased our bose of
POLARIS™ customers. We also continued to diversify our business
by leveraging key competitive sirengths 1o target new, highmargin
growth epportunities.

Fiscal 2007 Operational Achievements

Qur achievements in fiscal 2007 reflect the dedication and talent
of our people, the long-standing partnerships develeped with our
customers and the growth of worldwide wireless markets.

During the year, we achieved strong growth in the cellular market.
We continved to ramp our tansmit modules ot leading customers,
and we estimate our power amplitiers supported nearly half of the
world's phones. We achievad record sales of our POLARIS™ TOTAL
RADIO™ RF solutions for GSM/GPRS and EDGE handsets and
delivered a growing number of new, complementary components,
including stand-alone switches and DCHo-DC converters. We
participated in the robust unit volumes in the entrylevel and
replocement segments, and we benefited from the sharp growth
of EDGE handsets and 3G multimode handsets incorporating both
WCDMA and EDGE.

We also drove new incremental growth opportunities for our
Company by leveraging the same core competencies that have
driven our success in the cellulor handset market. We targeled new
high-growth markets, including GalN high power amplifiers for 3G
and WiMAX infrasiructure, WLAN front ends, mulii-market
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We are ossembling the building blocks for diverse, multi-market RF solutions, and we are

supporting these with world-class engineering and design expertise, manufacturing scale
PP 9 9 g g P d

and robust supply chain capabilities.

pHEMT switches and GPS. These opportunities increase cur
total oddressable market significantly.

RFMD is organized around three business units: Cellular,
Wireless Conneciivity and Infrastructure. In our cellular business
unit, we feature RF components and systems-level solutions,
including power amplifiers, ransmit modules, stand-alone
switches, DClo-DC converters and our POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIC™
RF solutions. We are the world’s leading supplisr of power
amplifiers, with numbker-cne market share in the WCDMA and
EDGE air inferface stondards, both of which are forecast by
indusiry anolysts 1o grow by more than 50% in calendar year
2007 . We are also the world's leading supplier of transmit
madulas, which combing o pHEMT switch with our industry-
leading power amplifiers and increase our semiconducior
content opportunity significantly,

Perthaps most importantly, our total addressable market in cellular
front ends is growing significantly as multimode cellular architectures

increase in complexity and require higher doller content RF solutions.

Qur customens, and channel partners alike, are coming to RFAMD
to help them to eliminate complexity, improve performance, reduce
cosls and speed timeto-markel.

In wireless connectivity, we sell WLAN front ends into multiple
growth maskets, including celluler handsets, mobile computing,
qoming devices and MPJ ployers. We are the market leader in
WILAN front ends for cellular handsets, and we expeact WILAN
front end revenue to approximately riple this fiscal year. We have
olso received very favorable feedback from customers related 1o
our GPS technology. We expect our scolable, software-based
GPS solution will significantly reduce the cost of GPS functionality
in cellular handsets and other costsensitive, battery-operated
mobile devices.

In infrastruciure, we sell products featuring our AlGaAs, 1nGaP and
pHEMT process technologies into multiple markets, primarily cellular
infrastructure, ond we are commercializing our GeN technology
tor high power amplifiers for cellular and WIMAKX infrosiructure,

as well as other growth markers including public mebile radio end
military applicalions.

Qur success in fiscal 2007 reflects the sirength of our long-

term growth sirategy. We are assembling the building blacks for
diverse, multi-market RF solutions, and we are supporting these with
waorld-class engineering und design experiise, manufaciuring scale
and robust supply choin capabilities.

The breadth of our copasiliies and product offerings—combined
with our customer relationships and outstanding employees—are
compeitive cdvaniages “hal we expact will help RFMD to copture
new growth opporiunities.

Positioned for Growih

RFMD is on established leader in cellular RF soluticns. Qur preducts

ore found in nearly ane-half of the world's cellular handsets, and our
customers include the world's leading cellular handset monufacturers.
We see continued growtn opportunities in cellulor handsets as unils

grow and s the complexity of cellular front ends increases.

Handset units are forecast by indusiry analysis to grow by
opproximately 10% in calendar year 2007, driven by replacement
purchases, migration to nexi-generation EDGE and 3G standards
and new subscribers. This bodes well for our primary handset
customers, who lead in these segments and combine 1o represent
greater than 80% of wor dwide handset market share. It clso bodes
well for RFMD, because these nexi-generation handseis ore more
comp|ex ond require greater RF content thon currens generations

of handsels.

As handset market share consolidates around our primary
customers, they are increasingly outsourcing the RF section of
their hondsats. They are alse streamiining their supply chaing
and awarding more opportunities to shialegic suppliers that
deliver manufaciuiing scule and can eliminate complexity,
improve performance ond reduce total cost of implemeniation.
Each of these rends is directly faverable to RFAMD.

We are posilioned to expand cur dollar content in cur customers’
mobile devices by delivering RF solutions that salisfy their
increasing requirements and by providing world-class design

and application support enhanced by cur indusiryleading
manufacturing scale.
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We have expanded our leadership in cellular RF solutions, and we expect

growth and diversification, as well as margin expansion, in wireless connectivity

and infrastructure.

To accommodate our cusiomers’ reguirements, we conlinually
invest in core capobililies ond new innovaticns. Our investments
in waler manufocluring, module assembly, transceivers, pHEMT
switches, DC1oDC converters, integrated RF shielding, MEMS
devices, walerlevel packaged SAW filters and systemslevel
experfise all position RFMD as a onesiop shop for our customers
for easyto-place, advanced celluler RF solutions. Within mobile
devices, we foresee an increase in value in the RF section of the
communications path, and we believe RFMD will benefit as this
trend accelerates.

Capturing New Growth Opportunities

tn complemeniary, noncellutar markets, we believe the
competencies and competitive strengths that have driven our
success in cellular RF solutions position RFMD tc capture
incremental growth opportuaities and expand eur gross margin
and operating margin. We are experiencing significant growth
in WLAN front ends for handsets, gaming devices, MP3 players,
cameras and other consumer electronics products. We are also
acfively engaged with new and existing cusiomers in the
handset and mcbile computing markets interested in our
WiMAX front ends. Finally, we are ctiracting very favorable
customer interest in our multi-markat pHEMT swilches, which
have quickly gained recognition for their low insertion loss end
worldclass linearity.

Perhaps our most highly anticipated multi-market offering is our

high power GolN process technology, which is expected to offer
superior bandwidih performance versus conventional semiconductor
technologies. Cur GeN devices deliver very high efficiency over o
wide range of operating frequencies, moking them highly attractive
to manufacturers of infrastructure for 3G and WIMAX as well as
other wide bandwidth applications. Another area of great promiss
is our software-based GPS solution. We continue to support multiple
customers interested in our proprietary GPS technology, including
leading customers in handsets, personal navigation devices and
mobile computing.

Looking Forward
We begin fiscal 2008 inspired by our achievements in fiscal
2007, We have grown our RF semiconductor content in the

world’s mobile devices and increased our value 1o our customers,
who represent the vast majority of the world’s largest consumer
electronics market, We have exponded our leadership in cellular
RF solutions, and we expect growth and diversification, as well as
margin expansion, in wireless conneactivity and infrastruciure.

As we indicated in our fiscal 2008 first quarter guidance, we

foce nearterm challenges as we navigate thiough product cycles
at a leading customer. However, we continug to see multiple
opporiunities for growth in wireless communications and other
growth markets. Most nolably, we continue fo anlicipate the launch
of aur highly integrated POLARIS™ 3 TOTAL RADIO™ RF solution in
the second half of calendar year 2007. We expect this and other
new products will support a return to growth that begins in the
second half of calendar year 20G7 and accelerates in calendar
year 2008,

We enter our second decade as @ publicly raded company in

an exiremely sirong competitive and financial position. We are a
leader in many of the markets in which we compete, and we are
positioned 1o leverage our competitive advantages to grow in
new complementary markels. We believe our end markets are
robust, and our bolance sheet is solid, with cash, cash equivalents
and shorMerm investments of appraximately $700 million, at the
beginning of fiscal 2008,

| would like to thank our customers, employees, suppliers

and shoreholders for their dedication and coniribution to our
achievemenss in fiscal 2007. | would also like to extend my
gratitude 1o our Board of Directors for their support and continued
sirategic guidance.

Sincerely,

B RS

Bob Bruggeworth
President and Chief Execulive Officer
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Forward-Looking Information

This report includes “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
These forward-looking statements inciude, but are not
limited to, statements about our plans, objéctives, rep-
resentations and contentions and are not historical
facts and typically are identified by the use of terms
such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expect,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “continue” and similar words, although
some forward-looking statements are expressed differ-
ently. You should be aware that the forward-looking
statements included herein represent management’s
current judgment and expectations, but our actual
results, events and performance could differ materially
from those expressed or implied by forward-looking
statements. We do not intend to update any of these
forward-looking statements or publicly announce the
results of any revisions to these forward-looking state-
ments, other than as is reguired. under the federal
securities laws.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements, including the notes
thereto.

PART |

We use a 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending on the
Saturday closest to March 31 of each year. Fiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005 were 52.week years. Qur other
fiscal quarters end on the Saturday closest to June 30,
September 30 and December 31 of each year.

Unless the context requires otherwise, references in
this report to “RFMD," the "Company,” “we,” “us” and
“our” refer to RF Micro Devices, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on a conselidated basis.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Introduction

RF Micro Devices, Inc. was incorporated under the laws
of the State of North Carolina in 1991. We are a global
leader in the design and manufacture of high-perfor-
mance radio frequency (RF) components and system
solutions for mobile communications. Qur power ampli-
fiers (PAs), transmit modules, cellular transceivers and
transceiver modules and system-on-chip (SoC) solutions
enable worldwide mability, provide enhanced connectiv-
ity and support advanced functionality in current- and
next-generation mobile devices, cellular base stations,
wireless local area networks {(WLANs) and global posi-
tioning systems (GPS). Our diverse portfolio of state-of-
the-art semiconductor technologies and industry-lead-
ing RF systems expertise positions us as a preferred
supplier to the world's leading mobile device
manufacturers.

RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2007

We design and manufacture products using the major |
applicable semiconductor process technologies avail-
able today. We have access to these technologies
through internal and external resources. Qur approach
to using multiple semiconductor process technologies
allows us to offer customers products that optimize
trade-offs between performance and cost and fulfiil their
performance, cost and time-to-market requirements.
We call this approach Optimum Technology Matching®.

Our products are purchased by essentially all of the
leading handset original equipment manufacturers
(OEMs), such as Nokia Corporation, Motorola, Inc.,
Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., LG Electronics, Inc.,
Sony Ericsson Mobile Communications, Lenovo Group

_Limited, Amoi Electronics Company Limited and

Research in Motion Limited, which together represent
more than 80% of worldwide handset production. In
addition, our products are purchased by leading original
design manufacturers (0DMs) such as Chi Mei Commu-
nication Systems, Arima Communications Corporation,
High Tech Computer Corp. and Simcom, Inc. ODMs offer
design and manufacturing services for the handset
market. Our customer relationships benefit from our
collaboration with leading baseband manufacturers,
as their reference designs are utilized by both leading
OEMs and ODMs.

We report information as one operating segment. The
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information” (SFAS 131), established stan-
dards for the way that public companies report informa-
tion about operating segments in annual consclidated
financial statements. Although we had three business
units as of March 31, 2007 (Cellular, Wireless Connec-
tivity and Infrastructure), we report information as one
operating ségment pursuant to the aggregation criteria
set forth in SFAS 131.

Our core cellular products business is focused on the RF

high speed analog section of the typical handset and our
product portfolic includes PAs, transceivers, filters,
switches and complementary components such as DC
to DC converters. The total addressable market for this
business is expected to grow as the number of handsets
produced continues to grow and the complexity of the RF
section of the handset increases. We are the market
leader for PAs and have a leading market share in the
Enhanced Data for Global Evelution (EDGE) and Wide
band Code Division Multiple Access (WCDMA) air inter-
face standards.

We have established ourselves in the transceiver mar-
ket with our POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver solu-
tions, which provide handset manufacturers with a
reduced-size, highly integrated radio solution that helps
reduce component count and total cost while providing
superior radio performance. We believe our POLARIS™
TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver solution for EDGE handsets
provides EDGE functionality with fewer components than
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competing approaches through a unique and innovative
architecture called open-loop large signal polar modu-
lation. In addition, POLARIS™ solutions leverage our RF
multi-<chip module capabilities, which were developed to
support our PA business. RF transceiver functionality is
integrated onto a singlechip silicon complementary
metal-oxide-semiconductor (CMOS) integrated circuit
to provide a lower cost integration technology. Our
POLARIS™ 2 TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver solutions for
global system for mobile communications (GSM)/gen-
eral packet radio system (GPRS) handsets and EDGE
handsets have historically driven the growth in our trans-
ceiver shipments. We expect that new EDGE handsets
featuring our POLARIS™ 2 TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver
solutions will launch throughout fiscal 2008. In addition,
EDGE handsets featuring our POLARIS™3 TOTAL
RADIO™ transceiver solutions, our most highly-inte-
grated transceiver solution, are expected to launch dur-
ing the second half of fiscal 2008.

We believe that the size and cost goals of our customers
will continue to drive higher levels of integration. Our
GSM/GPRS/EDGE PA-based products are supporting
this trend by combining gallium arsenide pseudomor-
phic high electron mobility transistor (also referred to as
GaAs pHEMT) die to perform the antenna transmit/
receive switch function with the PA function in single-
placement components referred to as transmit mod-
ules. bDuring fiscal 2007, a significant shift from
stand-alone PAs to transmit modules occurred and we
expect this trend will continue during fiscal 2008.

In addition, we expect volume growth in the multi-mode
3G market, which will increase the addressable market
of our products due to increased RF content and com-
plexity of these multimode handsets. Multi-mode 3G
handsets operate on both GSM/GPRS/EDGE networks
and on 3G networks. This results in increased RF semi-
conductor content in order to provide the transmit and
receive functionality on multiple networks and across
multiple frequency bands.

Our wireless connectivity business focuses on develop-
ing and producing components for WLAN and GPS. We
are experiencing increased demand for our WLAN front
end modules, and we are the market leader in WLAN
front end modules for handsets. We are also sampling
our software-based GPS solutions to lead customer
prospects. These products enable the integration of
high-performance GPS functionality in mobile comput-
ers, handsets, wireless personal digital assistants
(PDAs), personai navigation devices and other cost-sen-
sitive, battery-operated mobile devices.

buring the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold the
majority of the assets associated with our Bluetcoth®
business to QUALCOMM Incorporated. QUALCOMM also
hired the majority of the staff who had been responsible
for the design and marketing of our wireless personal
area network (WPAN) products. We have, however,
retained a number of the mature Bluetooth® products,
namely those which comply with Bluetooth® Special

interest Group's (SIG) specification version 1.2 and
earlier. We will continue to produce and support these
retained products for current customers for a period up
to four years following the transaction with QUALCOMM.

Our infrastructure business is comprised of wireless
infrastructure and multi-market components, which his-
torically have included a variety of small signal and driver
PA devices including adjustable gain control (AGC) ampli-
fiers, gain blocks, multi-stage amplifiers, low-noise
amplifiers (LNAs) and quadrature modulators. During
fiscal 2007, we expanded our existing GaAs product
offering by introducing a family of new LNAs with
increased linearity and reduced noise. Leveraging our
existing expertise in GaAs pHEMT technology, these new
LNAs target 3G and Worldwide Interoperability for Micro-
wave Access (WIMAX) cellular transceiver applications.

In addition, during fiscal 2007 we introduced three new
high power product families expanding the output power
range of our products from five watts 10 over 120-watts,
which enable us to begin targeting wireless infrastruc-
ture applications. Based upon our gallium nitride (GaN)
high-power RF process, the three families include: {i) a
120-watt family of high power amplifiers, (ii} a 120-watt
family of internally-matched amplifiers, and (iii)) a 15
watt family of wide-bandwidth power integrated circuits
(PowerlC™). In fiscal 2008, we plan to continue devel-
oping these high-power amplifier (HPA) products for use
in 3G and WiMAX cellular base stations,

In fiscal 2007, we completed process development of
our first generation 0.5 micron GaN RF power transistor
process. We are transitioning our GaN wafer process
from our research and development facility in Charlotte,
North Carolina to our low-cost, high volume wafer fab-
rication facility in Greensboro, North Carolina. We
expect to complete transition and qualification of the
remainder of the transistor process during fiscal 2008,
As we began our technology and product qualification
processes in fiscal 2007, we received several pre-pro-
duction orders for our GaN-based products. Once we
complete product gualification in fiscal 2008, we expect
production shipments of these products to continue to
ramp.

Industry Overview

The wireless communications industry has grown rapidly
as a result of worldwide adoption of mobile phones.
Industry studies indicate that there are over 2.5 billion
cellutar subscribers today, with more growth to come.
These studies forecast that beginning in 2007, the
number of replacement phones sold annually will be
greater than the number of new subscribers. Because
subscribers typically upgrade when replacing phones,
the cornplexity of phones is likely to continue increasing,
requiring even more semiconductor content.

The cellular handset market is the world’s largest con-
sumer electronics market. Industry analysts predict that
handset unit shipments will grow by approximately 10%
to greater than one hillion units during calendar 2007.




As the handset market has grown, handset market
share has been consolidated among handset manufac-
turers. More than 80% of global handset shipments
come from the top five vendors, which have increased
the importance of scale and reliability of supply.

Another distinct trend is the fragmentation of the market
into segments, which allows handset vendors to aim
products at a variety of demographics and usage mod-
els, such as “entry-level” and music phones. This frag-
mentation should stimulate growth and allow vendors to
differentiate their products and add value as phones
become increasingly useful to consumers. Style has
also become an important feature. While the implemen-
tation of these phones will vary across segments, the
need for high volumes of reliable, efficient RF compo-
nents is a common factor they all share.

Next-generation technologies are expected to enable
new applications, increase RF complexity and require
greater RF semiconductor content. Higher speed EDGE
products are growing rapidly, as are 3G systems like
WCDMA. Other technologies are expected to increase
semiconductor content in the handset, including GPS
and WLAN.

The total available market for RF products is anticipated
to expand as developing markets continue to emerge
and as data-intensive networks enable new applica-
tions, such as music players, gaming and video ser-
vices. Higher data rate handsets that offer higher
functionality often contain multiple radios, thereby
increasing the market for RF products. Multiple-input,
muftiple-output (MIMO) technclogy, which is used in
several future standards to increase data rates, will
also increase the RF content of the phone. At the same
time, lower-tier handsets that are optimized for emerg-
ing markets are driving new subscriber growth, which is
also increasing the market for RF products.

The wireless industry continues to develop new mobile
devices that operate on higher data rate air interface
standards and offer consumers greater functionality.
Classic analog and digital communication standards
used primarily for voice, such as Advanced Mobile
Phone Service (AMPS), GSM, Time Division Multiple
Access (TDMA} and Code Division Multiple Access
(CDMA} have been replaced by standards such as GPRS,
EDGE, Code Division Multiple Access Next Generation
(CDMA-1X) and WCDMA. High Speed Downlink Packet
Access (HSDPA), a standard capable of data rates of
more than 10mbps, will begin shipping in volume during
2007, with development of even faster air interfaces
underway. The handsets designed for each air interface
standard generally require unigue RF and baseband
integrated circuit solutions, and these solutions
become more complex and technically challenging as
data rates increase. Similarly, IEEE 802.11 technolo-
gies are migrating to higher data transmission rates for
WLAN.

Given this trend, mobile device manufacturers have
decreased their research and development investments
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in RF products and have increased their focus on newly-
available functionality, such as FM radics, WLAN, MP3
players, cameras, televisions, GPS, e-mail and Java-
based applications, thereby increasing their reliance
on RF suppliers, such as ourselves. We have continued
to sharpen our focus on system-level solutions, and as a
result, we expect to further expand our content in mobile
devices through sales of our high-performance, inte-
grated RF products. We have also increased our wafer
manufacturing capacity to extend our competitive advan-
tage in cetlular front end modules where we are the
industry leader. We have also developed unigue
enabling technologies, such as integrated RF shielding
in order to bring additional value to our customers.
Integrated RF shielding is a key determinant of cost,
size and ease of implementation of the RF section in a
mobile device.

Strategy

Our goal is to be the premier supplier of high-perfor-
mance RF solutions for applications that enable wire-
less communications. To achieve that goal, we
assemble building blocks of highly-integrated RF solu-
tions for multiple high growth markets and support them
with an engineering and design community, manufactur-
ing scale and robust supply chain capabilities.

We provide our customers with world-class design and
application support that is enhanced by our industry-
leading manufacturing scale. In addition, we continue to
expand our broad product and technology offerings so
that our customers can continue to increase efficien-
cies, decrease component counts and lower total cost
of implementation. Our custoemers are our top priority,
and we continue to fnvest in our ability to fully service
their increasing needs.

Cur investments in transceivers, pHEMT switches, fil-
ters, DC-to-DC converters, integrated RF shielding,
micro-electro-mechanical systems (MEMS) switches,
module assembly, wafer manufacturing and system-
level architectures have positioned us to help eliminate
complexity, improve performance, reduce costs and
accelerate time to market, which helps our customers
and our channe! partners alike.

We are technology innovators in several key areas,
including circuit design, packaging technology and com-
pound semiconductor process technology. Each of
these areas of innovation is instrumental in solving
our customers’ challenges related to the implementa-
tion of RF in mobile devices. These challenges include
rapidly evolving wireless standards, wireless carrier
requirements, performance, reliability of supply and
cost.

In most cases, the products we design and manufacture
are custom products that meet the unigue specifica-
tions and requirements of leading mobile device manu-
facturers. We also design and manufacture open market
products that address industry specifications or require-
ments, and these standard productis target multiple
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customers. In both cases, our product development
efforts leverage our expertise in circuit design, sys-
tem-level architectures and software development,
which allow us to understand the entire wireless system
and develop next-generation products that reduce size
and improve performance at attractive price points.

The packaging technologies we employ provide our cus-
tomers the benefits of reduced form factors, increased
functionality, improved reliability and lower cost of imple-
mentation. For example, customers incorporating cur
highly integrated transceiver modules into their mobile
devices significantly reduce external placements. This
improves customer factory throughput and accelerates
time-to-market, both of which are factors in customer
profitability. We continue to enhance our packaging
technology to enable more highly integrated RF solutions
that increase factory throughput, speed time to market,
reduce complexity and decrease component count.

Our compound semiconductor process expertise
encompasses aluminum gallium arsenide (AlGaAs) het-
erojunction bipolar transistor (HBT), indium gallium
phosphide (InGaP) HBT, GaAs pHEMT and GaN. We
are the world's leading manufacturer of GaAs HBT power
amplifiers and pHEMT switches, and we plan to continue
making investments in our manufacturing assets as
required to meet the growing needs of our customers.
Silicon manufacturing capacity is also important for our
growth. Qur relationship with leading silicon foundries
provide us with access to leading technology in silicon
CMOS and silicon germanium (SiGe) devices and we
supplement our internal capacity for GaAs pHEMT with a
leading GaAs pHEMT supplier.

We have strong relationships with the world's leading
assembly houses, and we have also invested in internal
assembly capacity. We are currently increasing our inter-
nal assembly capacity in order to lower our cost struc-
ture and reduce our manufacturing cycle time. We
believe that reducing manufacturing cycle time signifi-
cantly improves our ability to respond to changes in
customer demand while reducing our inventory levels.

In addition to our core capabilities, described above, we
also review other technologies, products, assets and/or
businesses that may complement our existing product
offerings, expand our market coverage, increase our
engineering workforce or enhance our technological
capabilities.

We believe our ability to improve efficiencies, reduce
component counts and increase factory throughput in
our customers' facilities can help to accelerate growth
rates in our wireless markets.

Markets

We design, develop, manufacture and market our prod-
ucts to both domestic and international OEMs and
ODMs for commercial applications primarily for wireless
markets such as cellular handsets, base stations and
WLAN equipment.

Cellular Handset —In cellular applications, calls are
placed through mobile devices by making a connection
with a base station via RF channels.

Cellular Infrastructure — Base stations are installed
across an area to create wireless telecommunications
networks that enable cellular telephones to communi-
cate with one another or with wired telephones. Each
base station is equipped to receive and send RF signals
through an antenna to and from mobile devices.

Wireless Networking — Wireless networking involves
the transmission and reception of data such as e-mail,
faxes, computer files and Internet content by desktop
and portable computers and mobile devices via RF links
rather than wireline connection, such as those comply-
ing with the WIMAX and wireless fidelity (WiFi)
standards.

Other Markets —In the wireless market, we supply
components for cordless telephony, portable gaming
systems, industrial radios, satellite radio, GPS posi-
tion-location systems, security systems, utility meter
reading systems, two-way paging, monitoring devices,
interactive toys, PC modem cards, Keyless entry and
handheld devices used for point-of-sale, bar coding and
other applications. In other markets, we supply compo-
nents for settop converter boxes and cable modems.
We also market various components for satellite, micro-
wave communications and certain wired applications.

Manufacturing, Packaging and Testing

For the majority of our products, the production process
begins with GaAs or silicon wafers that range in diameter
from 100-300mm. Most GaAs products incorporate a
transistor layer that is grown on the wafer using a
molecular beam epitaxy (MBE) process in our MBE facil-
ity. These wafers are sent to our wafer fabrication facil-
ities where we isolate the transistor layer and
interconnect the transistors according to the circuit
design. The circuit design, which determines the func-
tion individual die performs, is printed on the wafers
using microscopic imaging technotogy and thin films of
deposited materials. Once wafer processing is com-
plete, the wafers are singutated into individual die via
a mechanical process known as scribe and break. Dur-
ing fiscal 2007, we began moving from the scribe and
break process to laser dicing. This enhancement of our
die singulation process is expected to improve overall
yields and reduce our die cost.

The next step in the manufacturing process is assembly
{packaging), during which the die is placed in a micro-
electronic package and connectability is provided by
small wires. Packaging can come in the form of either
a simple lead frame package or a more complicated
multichip module. Once assembled, our products are
100% parametric tested based on the product specifi-
cations and, after testing, are prepared for shipment
through a tape and reel process.

Our coriginal GaAs HBT process technology was originally
licensed to us by Northrop Grumman Space Technology




{formerly TRW Space & Electronics, Inc.) {(Northrop} in
1996 to design and manufacture products for commer-
cial wireless applications. The GaAs HBT and MBE trade
secrets were licensed on a perpetual basis, while the
patent rights covered by the license agreement expire at
various times. The ficense agreement provides that
Northrop will offer to us, on the same terms as are
offered to third parties, certain future non-HBT related
technologies that it develops for a period of 10 years
following June 15, 1998. We have agreed to share with
Northrop any maodifications or improvements that we
make in the technology or the products developed there-
from, and to grant Northrop a non-exclusive, royalty-free
license to use any of these modifications or improve-
ments in applications outside our field of use. Upon any
termination of the license agreement because of a
default by either party, our rights to Northrop's technol-
ogies would cease, We are continually improving our
GaAs HBT processes and manufacture substantially all
of our own GaAs HBT products at our wafer fabrication
facilities,

To manufacture our GaAs devices, we have an MBE
facility located in Greensboro, Nerth Carolina, We also
have two GaAs wafer fabrication facilities located in
Greensboro, North Carolina. During fiscal 2007, we
manufactured substantially all of our GaAs HBT prod-
ucts at these fabrication facilities. Qur first wafer fab-
rication facility is a four-inch wafer production facility and
our second wafer fabrication facility is a sixinch wafer
production facility. In fiscal 2007, we completed the
expansion of our wafer fabrication capacity by approx-
imately 40% as compared to levels at the end of fiscal
2006. We expect this expansion will enable us to meet
the increased demand in wireless markets using our
GaAs process technologies and provide a foundation for
future GaMN production. GaAs process technologies
include pHEMT capacity, which is an important technol-
ogy for transmit and front end modules for both our
cellular and wireless networking markets. We expect
continued expansion of GaAs-related content in our
product offerings and expect to evaluate options during
fiscal 2008 regarding additional expansion of ocur GaAs
wafer fabrication capacity.

We currently use several external assembly suppliers,

as well as our internal assembly facility in Beijing, China, _

to package and assemble our products. In fiscal 2007,
we expanded our internal assembly operations in Beijing
by more than 100% as compared to the end of fiscal
20086. In fiscal 2008, we expect to further expand our
internal assembly capacity in Beijing, China. We believe
that by increasing our internal assembly capacity, we will
strengthen our supply chain and reduce manufacturing
costs, thereby contributing to our ongoing initiatives to
improve profitability. We also believe that the increased
use of our internal assembly operation will result in
better inventory management. We currently have our
own test and tape and reel facilities located in Greens-
boro, North Carolina and Beijing, China, and we also
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utilize contract suppliers and partners in Asia to test our
products.

Our guality management system is registered to 1SO
9001 and our environmental management system is
registered to 1SO 14001:2004. This means that a third
party independent auditor has determined that these
systems meet the requirements developed by the Inter-
national Organization of Standardization, a non-govern-
mental network of the national standards institutes of
over 150 countries. The IS0 2001 standards provide
models for quality assurance in design/development,
production, installation and servicing. The IS0
14001:2004 standards provide a structure within which
a company can develop or strengthen its quality system
for managing its environmental affairs. We believe that
all of our key vendors and suppliers are compliant with
applicable 1SO 9000 or 3S 9000 series specifications,
which means that their operations have in each case
been determined by auditors to comply with certain
internationally developed quality control standards.
We qualify and monitor assembly contractors based
on cost and guality.

During fiscal 2008, we expect to continue to focus on
new process technology development and manufactur-
ing cost reductions. We expect to release our first gen-
eration of GaN process technology 1o produce HPAs for
use in cellular and WiMAX base stations, which provides
another opportunity to diversify our product pertfolio.
Additionally, we expect to reduce the cost of our prod-
ucts through the development of wafer level packaging
(WLP) of surface acoustic wave (SAW) filters, flip chip
assembly and integrated RF shield manufacturing tech-
nologies. We are developing the WLP SAW filters to
provide a lower cost filter, which we expect will ultimately
replace the more expensive ceramic packaged filters.
This WLP SAW technology will additionally align us with
our flip chip strategy. The flip chip assembly technology
is a strategic investment to allow us to offer lower cost
solutions to our customers by reducing the surface area
required, eliminating higher cost wire bonding pro-
cesses and providing us the internal capability in this
packaging area. In addition, flip chip technology is
expected to improve the performance of our products
by reducing the variability in the RF environment through
the elimination of wire bonding. We have developed low-
cost integrated RF shielding that can eliminate the need
for external RF shields in the cellular handset. We
believe our integrated RF shielding technology reduces
the sensitivity of our products to their environment in the
handset, lowers the profile of the RF section of the
handset, enables our customers’ handset platform
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strategies and reduces our customers' time to market.

We also plan to release next-generation GaAs processes
that allow the integration of the PA, switch and other
functionality on a single die.

Products and Applications
We offer a broad range of standard and custom-
designed RF components and system-evel solutions.
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Custom-designed products are usually developed for
volume production orders from large OEMs. Custom
products are normally manufactured on an exclusive
basis for a negotiated period. We attempt to convert
custom products into standard products in order to
broaden our customer base and leverage our design
and product expenditures.

RF Component Products

PAs — PAs provide signal amplification in the transmit-
ter section of a wireless system in order to boost a
signal through the antenna. PAs operate at different
frequencies, power levels and air interface standards
and generally are classified either as linear amplifiers,
which add a minimum amount of distortion to the shape
of the input signal, or non-linear amplifiers, which are
used in analog devices. When combined with the trans-
mit switch function, the component is referred to as a
transmit module or front end medule.

Gain Blocks (General Purpose Amplifiers) — Gain blocks
are simple general-purpose amplifiers that boost sig-
nals over a broad frequency range. They are used for
amplifier applications whenever noise is not a concern
and whenever a signal's strength has been diminished
by processing through a filter or other component.

Low-Noise Amplifiers/Mixers (Front Ends and Mixers) —
Atow-noise amplifier is a device in the receiver section of
a wireless system that receives signals from an antenna
at extremely low signal levels which are amplified by a
factor of approximately 10 to 1,000 with the addition of
as little interference as possible. Low-noise amplifiers
are commonly integrated into circuits with mixers {aiso
referred to as “down-mixers” or “down converters”), and
this combination generally is referred to as a “receiver
front end.” Mixers accept the filtered output from the
low-noise amplifiers, which is typically at a high fre-
quency and difficult to process, and mix it with a local
oscillator signal to produce a lower intermediate fre-
quency (IF) signal, which is easier to process.

Quadrature Modulators/Demodulators — Quadrature
modulators are devices in the transmitter section of a
wirgless system that combine digital information with a
RF signal by varying the phase and amplitude of the
signa! so that the resulting signal can be transmitted.
Quadrature demodulators reverse this process in the
receiver section by taking received RF signals and recov-
ering the embedded digital information for further
processing.

Other — Qur other component products consist of IF
components, attenuators and switches, voltage-con-
trolled oscillators and linear cable television amplifiers.

System-Level Solutions

Cellular Transceivers — Our transceiver solutions for
celluiar systems combine a highly integrated radio trans-
ceiver with PA, switch and filtering for operation under
the GSM, GPRS and EDGE interface standards. This
family of products provides handset manufacturers the
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benefits of reduced component count, small size and
exceptional RF performance at a lower cost of
implementation.

Global Positioning Systerm — A GPS receiver processes
signals from the fleet of orbiting satellites broadcasting
navigation information and can work with a wide variety
of end products including handheld, laptop, marine and
invehicle automotive devices. Our GPS chip with
enabling host-hased software permits our customers’
OEM devices to ascertain their position and velocity in
real-time, and thus facilitates a number of location-
based services such as turn-byturn navigation.

Raw Materials

We purchase numerous parts, such as passive compo-
nents and substrates, from external suppliers. We cur-
rently use independent foundries to supply all of our
silicon-based requirements and a portion of our pHEMT
product requirements. The use of external suppliers
involves a number of risks, including the possibility of
material disruptions in the supply of key components
and the lack of control over delivery schedules, manu-
facturing yields, quality and fabrication costs. In order to
alleviate our dependence on external suppliers, we are
integrating into our semiconductor die the functionality
formerly fulfilled by externally-sourced components.
However, we continue to aggregate additional function-
ality and technologies into our products and this could
increase our dependence on external suppliers for
components.

Customers

Sales to our largest customers, Nokia and Motorola,
represented approximately 44% and 30%, respectively,
of our revenue in fiscal 2007.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products worldwide directly to customers as
well as through a network of domestic and foreign sales
representative firms and distributors. We select our
domestic and foreign sales channels based on technical
skills and sales experience, as well as the presence of
complementary product lines and the customer base
served. We provide ongoing training to our representa-
tives and distributors to keep them informed of and
educated about our products. We maintain an internal
marketing organization that is responsible for key
account management, application engineering support
to customers, developing sales and advertising litera-
ture and preparing technical presentations for industry
conferences. We have sales and customer support cen-
ters located throughout the world. During fiscal 2007,
we continued to add resources to help us to sell system-
level solutions, such as our POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIO™
solutions, which are more complex and require higher
levels of technical expertise from our sales employees
in order to integrate with our customers’ handsets.

We believe that maintaining a close relationship with
customers and channel partners and providing them




with ongoing technical support is essential to customer
satisfaction in the wireless communications industry.
Our applications engineers interact with customers dur-
ing all stages of design and production, provide custom-
ers with current product application notes and
engineering data, maintain regular contact with cus-
tomer engineers and assist in the resolution of technical
problems. We assign to our largest customers a con-
tract account manager who maintains regular contact
with the customer to determine its product needs and
concerns. Members of senior management also are
involved in managing relationships with significant cus-
tomers. We believe that maintaining close contact with
customers improves their level of satisfaction and
enables us to anticipate their future product needs.

Research and Development

Our research and development provides the technolo-
gies and products to maintain leadership in the wireless
communications market. Research activities lead to
technology development, which in turn leads to cut-
ting-edge products to meet customers’ demand for bet-
ter performance in smafler sizes and at lower costs. We
conduct research and development focused on support-
ing current product roadmaps as weli as technology
development focused on enabling longerterm, lead-
ing-edge products,

In semiconductors, we have developed several genera-
tions of both inGaP and AlGaAs-based HBT. Each new
generation improves upon currently available HBT tech-
nology, either in uniformity, linearity or efficiency. We
have released a pHEMT process for switches that is in
high-volume production today. In addition, we are devel-
oping other advanced process technologies that further
integrate the front end.

We are working with our silicon foundry partners to
develop a technology appropriate for the integration
of multiple front end functions onto silicon. This tech-
nology would enablte an Analog Integration Platform™
that would allow PA, switch, power management, digital
control, and transceiver integration on a single silicon
integrated circuit. This will meet the needs of some
maturing low-cost markets, and potentially will support
next-generation adaptive architectures as well.

Complexity of the RF front end is increasing with multi-
mode handsets, driving the need for significant improve-
ments in performance and reductions in cost and size.
We are developing MEMS devices to address this need,
including a mechanical switch that is micro-machined
onto the surface of a silicon chip.

In the packaging area, we have developed low-cost
integrated RF shielding that can eliminate the need
for external RF shields in the cellular handset. We
believe our integrated RF shielding technology reduces
the sensitivity of our products to their environment in the
handset, lowers the profile of the RF section of the
handset, enables our customers’ handset platform
strategies and reduces our customers’ time to market.
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We also are developing module substrate technologies
that allow smaller product footprints and more complex
integration in our modules. All of these advanced sub-
strate technologies are compatible with our flip chip
technologies as well.

We are finding new ways to reduce the cost of integrated
RF solutions. We led the way to integrate SAW filters with
the introduction of our POLARIS™ 2 TOTAL RADIO™ mod-
ule and our upcoming POLARIS™ 3 RF solutien, which
combine the SAW filters and cellular transceiver in a
single module. By comparison, SAW filters, which are
currently packaged in costly hermetic ceramic pack-
ages, are placed by handset manufacturers on the
phone board. We are developing die-level SAW filters
with wafer-level packaging that will be manufactured in
our own wafer fabrication facilities and will eliminate the
need for the hermetic ceramic package. This will save
both cost and area by eliminating redundant packaging
and will provide the lowest-cost high-performance
solution.

To support our product development teams with first-
pass success and reduced time-to-market, we have
continuously improved our modeling capability. We have
developed a unique behavioral model for PA and other
blocks that can be used by our chipset systems engi-
neering team to design and simulate the overall system
accurately.

Our Advanced Development Group provides advanced
product concepts using many of our new, inncvative
technologies. This group provides the product develop-
ment teams with the understanding of leading-edge new
technologies, such as fine-line geometry CMOS, through
advanced circuit development. We are also developing
new PA architectures for implementation into next-gen-
eration products.

We are focused on reducing power consumption in the
wireless communications systems. This drives much of
our circuit design and technology breakthroughs, such
as DC-to-DC converters for GSM/EDGE/WCDMA and
GSM/EDGE/WCDMA/HSPA systems, highefficiency
PA technologies and MEMS switches. We also remain
committed to reducing the total cost to our customers,
which in¢ludes reducing their time-to-market, with tech-
nologies like integrated RF shielding.

Research and development enables our new product
roadmaps. To strengthen our product development
capability, we have opened a new design center in
Shanghai, China, which will help us address the strong
demand for our products in Asia and allow us to tap into
the engineering resources in Asia. This new center com-
plements our other design centers in Europe and North
America and expands our talented employee base. We
continue to push forward with state-ofthe-art PA and
transmit module solutions for all major standards world-
wide. We also are aggressively addressing emerging
standards, with developments continuing in the EDGE
segment as well as in WCDMA. We are commencing
development of RF solutions for both WiMAX and Long-
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Term Evolution (LTE) and expect to extend our leadership
into these segments as they develop.

In fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we incurred approxi-
mately $185.0 million, $168.9 million and $156.5 mil-
lion, respectively, in research and development
expenses. We do not separately account for cus-
tomer-sponsored research and development expenses
from research and development expenses paid directly
by us. We expect to continue to invest heavily in research
and development to maintain technology and product
leadership in wireless communications.

Competition

We operate in a very competitive industry characterized
by rapid advances in technology and new product intro-
ductions. Qur competitiveness depends on our ability to
improve our products and processes faster than our
competitors, anticipate changing customer require-
ments and successfully develop and launch new prod-
ucts, while reducing our cost. Our competitiveness is
also affected by the guality of customer service, tech-
nical suppert and our ability to design customized prod-
ucts that address each customer’s particular
requirements within the customer’s cost limitations.
Many of our current and potential competitors have
entrenched market positions, established patents,
copyrights and other intellectual property rights and
substantial technological capabilities. in some cases,
our competitors are also our customers or suppliers.
Further, many of cur competitors may have significantly
greater financial, technical, manufacturing and market-
ing resources than we do, which may allow them to
implement new technologies and develop new products
more quickly than we can.

Intellectual Property

| It is our practice to seek U.S. patent and copyright
- protection on our products and developments, where
appropriate, and to protect our proprietary technology
under U.8. and foreign laws affording protection for
trade secrets and for integrated circuit designs. We
own 118 U.S. patents bearing on RF communications
and related circuits and semiconductor processes, the
earliest of which will expire in 2015. Additional patent
applications are pending, although it is possible that the
inventions referenced in patent applications will not
mature to issued patents. Issued patents can be found
to be invalid or unenforceable under numerous legal
principles.

We have numerous trademark registrations and appli-
cations pending in the U.S. and. throughout the world.
We seek registrations for our primary trademarks, serv-
icemarks and trade names; however, others may have
trademark rights superior to ours in certain jurisdic-
i tions, and in some instances our designations may
not be viewed as sufficiently distinctive to warrant exclu-
sive trademark protection. We believe that we have the
right to use our selected designations, and that these
designations are distinctive and capable of trademark
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protection. Nevertheless, if our marks are successfuliy
challenged on this basis, it is possible that we will not be
permitted to operate in a jurisdiction under our trade-
mark, servicemark or trade name or that we will not
have the exclusive right to use these designations.

We also rely upon trade secrets, technical know-how and
other unpatented proprietary information relating to our
product development and manufacturing activities. To
protect our trade secrets, technical know-how and other
proprietéry information, our employees are required to
enter into agreements providing for maintenance of

confidentiality and the assignment of rights to inven-

tions made by them while in our employ. We also have
entered into non-disclosure agreements to protect our
confidential information delivered to third parties in
conjunction with possible corporate collaborations and
for other purposes. However, we cannot be sure that
these types of agreements will effectively prevent unau-
thorized disclosure of our confidential information, that
these agreements will not be breached, that we would
have adequate remedies for any breach or that our trade
secrets and proprietary know-how will not otherwise
become known or independently discovered by others.

We have been named as a defendant in a patent infringe-
ment lawsuit filed on August 3, 2001, in the U. S. District
Court for the District of Arizona by Lemeison Medical,
Education & Research Foundation, LP. The suit alleges
that we have infringed claims of a total of at least 17 and
possibly 18 patents, including “machine vision” claims
of 12 patents, “bar code” claims of seven patents
(some of which are the same as the 12 “machine vision”
patents) and “integrated circuit” claims of three or four
patents and seeks injunctive relief, damages for the
alleged infringements and payment of the plaintiff's
attorneys’ fees. This case was stayed pending resolu-
tion of one of two related actions to which we are not a
party. This case was stayed before any discovery and is
in its very preliminary stages. In one of the related
actions, a U.S. District Judge ruled that claims of 14
patents (each patent being among those patents at
issue in the Company's litigation) were unenforceable
and invalid. On September 9, 2005, the Federal Circuit
upheld the U.8. District Judge’s ruling that claims of the
14 patents are unenforceable. On December 22, 2005,
the plaintiff, Lemelson Medical, Education & Research
Foundation, LP, filed a motion with the U.S. District
Court for the District of Arizona to dismiss the case
as to the 14 patents that have been held unenforceable
by the Federal Circuit. There are four patents remaining
at issue in the litigation. Although we have not been
notified that the stay has been lifted, we have been
contacted by the plaintiff advising us that the plaintiff
plans to reopen the case.

We have on occasion been made aware that aspects of
our technology may overlap technology discussed or
claimed in issuved U.S. patents. On these occasions,
we have attempted to investigate thoroughly the under-
lying issues and determine whether design changes or
patent licenses were appropriate.




Seasonality

Sales of our products can be subject to seascnal fluc-
tuations. The seasonality of our sales reflects seasonal
demand fluctuations for the products that incorporate
wireless communications components, such as mobile
handsets. If anticipated sales or shipments do not occur
when expected, expenses and inventory levels in that
quarter can be disproportionately high, and our resuits
of operations for that quarter, and potentially for future
guarters, may be adversely affected.

Backlog

Due to industry practice and our experience, we do not
believe that backlog as of any particular date is indic-
ative of future results. Qur sales are the result of con-
sumption of custom products from consigned inventory
held by our customers and from purchase orders for
delivery of standard and custom products. The quanti-
ties projected for consumption of consigned inventory
and quantities on purchase orders, as well as the ship-
ment schedules, are frequently revised within
agreed-upon lead times to reflect changes in the cus-
tomer's needs.

Employees

On April 28, 2007, we had 3,252 employees. We believe
that our future prospects will depend, in part, on our
ability to continue to attract and retain skilled technical,
marketing and management personnel. Competition for
such personnel is intense, and the number of persons
with relevant experience, particularly in engineering,
product design and technical marketing, is limited. None
of our employees is represented by a labor unicen, and
we have never experienced any work stoppage. We
believe that our current employee retations are good.

Geographic Financlal Summary
A summary of our operations by geographic area is as
follows (in thousands):

Flscal Year 2007 2006 2005
Sales:
United States (U.S.) $ 73,773 $113.200 $102.152
International 949,842 857,047 532052
Long-lived assets:
United States $324,374 $303,358 $305,988
International 49,081 37,835 33,636

Of our total revenue for fiscal 2007, approximately 7%
was for customers in the U.S., 37% ($374.2 million) for
customers in China, 17% for customers in Europe, 13%
for customers in Singapore, 8% for customers in Taiwan,
6% for customers in Korea and 5% for customers in
India.

Sales, for geographic disclosure purposes, are based
on the “bill to” address of the customer. The “bill to”
address is not always an accurate representation of the
location of final consumption of our products, Long-lived
assets include property and equipment. At March 31,
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2007, approximateiy $46.0 million {or 12.3%) of our
total property and equipment was located in China.

For the risks associated with these foreign operations,
see our risk factor entitled “We are subject 1o risks from
international sales and operations” contained below in
ltem 1A, “Risk Factors”.

Environmental Matters

By virtue of operating our MBE and wafer fabrication
facilities, we are subject to a variety of extensive and
changing federal, state and local governmental laws,
regulations and ordinances related to the use, storage,
discharge ‘and disposal of toxic, volatile or otherwise
hazardous chemicals used in the manufacturing pro-
cess. Any failure to comply with such requirements
currently in effect or subsequently adopted could result
in the imposition of fines on us, the suspension of
production or a cessation of operations, the occurrence
of which could have an adverse impact upon our capital
expenditures, earnings and competitive position. In
addition, such requirements could restrict our ability
to expand our facilities or require us to acquire costly
eguipment or incur other significant expenses to comply
with environmental regulations. We believe that costs
arising from existing environmental laws will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or
results of operations. We are an 1S0 14001:;2004 cer-
tified manufacturer with a comprehensive Environmen-
tal Management System (EMS) in place in order to help
ensure control of the environmental aspects of the
manufacturing process. EMS mandates compliance
and establishes appropriate checks and balances to
minimize the potential for non-compliance.

We actively monitor the hazardous materials that are
used in the manufacture and assembly and testing of
our products, particularty materials that are retained in
the final product. We have developed specific restric-
tions on the content of certain hazardous materials in
our products, as well as those of our suppliers and
outsourced manufacturers and subcontractors. As a
result of these efforts to reduce hazardous substances
in our products, we believe that we are well-positioned to
meet the various environmental restrictions on product
content throughout the world, such as the Restriction on
Hazardous Substances {RoHS) directive in the European
Union. The RoHS directive restricts most uses of lead,
cadmium, hexavalentchromium, mercury and certain
fire retardants in electronics put on the market after
July 1, 2008. During fiscal 2006, we completed the
conversion of products targeted for RoHS compliance.

There can be no assurance that the environmental laws
will not become more stringent in the future or that we
will not incur significant costs in the future in order to
comply with these laws. We do not currently anticipate
any material capital expenditures for environmental con-
trol facilities for the remainder of fiscal 2008 or fiscal
2009.
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Access to Public Information

We make available, free of charge through our website
(http://www.rfmd.com), our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current
Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as rea-
sonably practicable after we electronically file these
reports with, or furnish them to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission {SEC). The public may also
request a copy of our forms filed with the SEC, without
charge upon written request, directed to:

Investor Relations Department
RF Micro Devices, Inc,

7628 Thorndike Road
Greensboro, NC 27409-9421
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The information contained on, or that can be accessed
through, our website is not incorporated by reference
into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have included
our website address as a factual reference and do not
intend it as an active link to our website.

In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements,
and other information regarding issuers that file elec-
tronically with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. You may
also read and copy any documents that we file with the
SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room located at 100
F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549,
Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for information
on the operation of the Public Reference Room.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

This 10-K includes “forward-laoking statements” within
the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to, state-
ments about our plans, objectives, representations and
contentions and are not historical facts and typically are
identified by use of terms such as “may” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “con-
tinue” and similar words, although some forward-look-
ing statements are expressed differently. You should be
aware that the forward-looking statements included
herein represent management’s current judgment and
expectations, but our actual results, events and perfor-
mance could differ materially from those expressed or
implied by forward-fooking statements. We do not intend
to update any of these forward-looking statements or
publicly announce the results of any revisions to these
forward-looking statements, other than as is required
under the federal securities laws. Our business is sub-
ject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including vari-
ability in quarterly operating resuits, the rate of growth
and development of wireless markets, risks associated
with the operation of our wafer fabrication facilities,
molecular beam epitaxy facility, our assembly facility
and our test and tape and reel facilities, our ability to
attract and retain skilled personnel and develop leaders,
variability in production yields, our ability to reduce costs
and improve gross margins by implementing innovative
technologies, our ability to bring new products to mar-
ket, our ability to adjust production capacity in a timely
fashion in response to changes in demand for our prod-
ucts, dependence on a limited number of customers and
dependence on third parties. These and other risks and
uncertainties, which are described in maore detail below,
could cause actual results and developments to be
materially different from those expressed or implied
by any of these forward-looking statements, ‘

Cur industry’s technology changes rapidly and we
depend on the development and growth of the wire-
fess markets.
We depend on the development and growth of markets
for wireless communications products and services. We
cannot be sure about the rate at which markets for
these products will develop or our ability to' produce
competitive products for these markets as they develop.
In particular, the market adoption of EDGE-based prod-
ucts has been a significant factor in our revenue growth
_in recent fiscal years. In fiscal 2007, our POLARIS™
TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver solutions for EDGE hand-
sets, as well as our EDGE transmit modules, were sig-
nificant factors in our revenue growth.

We supply RF components and system-level solutions
primarily for wireless applications. The wireless markets
are characterized by the frequent introduction of new
products and services in response to evolving product
and process technologies and consumer demand for
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greater functionality, lower costs, smaller products and
better performance. As a result, we have experienced
and will continue to experience some product design
obsolescence. We expect our customers’ demands for
improvements in product performance to continue,
which means that we must continue to improve our
product designs and develop new products that may
use new technologies. It is possible that competing
technologies will emerge that permit the manufacture
of integrated circuits that are superior to the products
we make under existing processes. If that happens and
we cannot design products using that technology or
develop competitive products, our operating results will
be adversely affected.

To remain competitive in our silicon-based products, we
expect to continue to transition owr silicon semiconduc-
tor products to increasingly smaller line-width geome-
tries, and as smaller geometry processes become more
prevalent, we expect to continue to integrate greater
levels of functionality, as well as customer and third
party intellectual property and software, into our prod-
ucts. However, we may not be able to achieve higher
levels of design integration or deliver new integrated
products on a timely basis, or at all.

We face risks associated with the operation of our
manufacturing facilities.

We operate one MBE facility and two wafer fabrication
facilities. We currently use several international and
domestic assembly suppliers, as well as our internal
assembly facility in Beijing, China, to assemble our
products. We currently have our own test and tape
and reel facilities located in Greensboro, North Carolina
and Beijing, China, and we also utilize contract suppliers
and partners in Asia to test our products.

A number of factors will affect the future success of our

facilities, including the following:

* demand for our products;

* our ability to expand our facilities in a timely manner;

* our ability to generate revenues in amounts that cover
the significant fixed costs of operating the facilities;

« our ability to qualify our facilities for new products in a
timely manner,

» the availability of raw materials, including GaAs sub-
strates, and high purity source materials such as
gallium, aluminum, arsenic, indium, silicon, phospho-
rous and beryllium;

* our manufacturing cycle times;

* our manufacturing yields;

« the political and economic risks associated with the
increased reliance on our assembly, test and tape
and reel operation in Beijing, China;

+ our reliance on one qualified MBE facility;

+ the locaticn of our two wafer fabrication facilities in
the same geographic area;

+ our ability to hire, train and manage qualified produc-
tion personnel;

+ our compliance with applicable environmental and
other [aws and regulations; and
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» our ability to avoid protonged periods of down-time in
our facilities for any reason.

We face challenges managing the expansion of our

employee base.

To manage our growth effectively, we must:

+ develop leaders for key business units and functions;

* expand our presence in international locations and
adapt to cultural norms in foreign locations;

= train and manage our employee base; and

e attract and retain qualified people with experience in
RF engineering, integrated circuit design, software
and technical marketing and support.

Competition for these technical resources is intense.
We must also manage multiple relationships with vari-
ous customers, business partners and other third par-
ties, such as our foundry, assembly, test and tape and
reel partners. Qur systems, networks, software tools, or
procedures may not be adequate to support our oper-
ations, and we may not be able to expand quickly enough
to exploit potential market opportunities. Our future
operating results and success may aiso depend on
keeping key technical persennel and management
and expanding our sales and marketing, research and
development and administrative support. We do not
have employment agreements with the majority of our
employees. We must also continue to attract qualified
personnel. The competition for qualified personnel is
intense, and the number of people with experience,
particularly in RF engineering, integrated circuit design,
and technical marketing and support, is limited. We
cannot be sure that we will be able to attract and retain
other skilled personnel in the future.

We depend heavily on third parties.

We purchase numerous component parts, such as
pHEMT die and passive components, as well as sub-
strates and silicon-based products, from external sup-
pliers. The use of external suppliers involves a number
of risks, including the possibility of material disruptions
in the supply of key components and the lack of control
over delivery schedules, capacity constraints, manufac-
turing yields, quality and fabrication costs.

We currently use several external manufacturing suppli-
ers, as well as our internal manufacturing facilities in
Beijing, China, for assembly, test and tape and reel
requirements. We believe all of our key vendors and
suppliers are compliant with applicable 1SO 9000 or QS
8000 standards. However, if these vendors’ processes
vary in reliability or quality, they could negatively affect
our products and, therefore, our results of operations.

We currently have manufacturing capabilities in Greens-
boro, North Carolina and Beljing, China, and we also
utilize contract suppliers and partners in Asia. We
expect to increase ouwr reliance on our Beijing facility
as well as our utilization of contract suppliers and part-
ners in Asia in order to minimize the movement of
inventory, which improves cycle time and results in fower
levels of inventory.
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Our operating results fluctuate.

Our revenue, earnings and other operating results have

fluctuated significantly in the past and may fluctuate

significantly in the future. Our future operating results
will depend on many factors, including the following:

= our ability to accurately predict market requirements
and evolving industry standards in a timely manner;

« our ability to accurately predict customer demand and
thereby avoid the possibility of obsolete inventory,
which would reduce our profit margins;

» the ability of third party foundries, assembly, test and
tape and reel partners to handle our products in a
timely and cost-effective manner that meets our cus-
tomers' requirements;

s our ability to achieve cost savings and improve yields
and margins on our new and existing products;

* our ability to respond to possible downward pressure
on the average selling prices of our products caused
by our customers or our competitors;

¢ our ability to efficiently utilize our capacity, or acquire
additional capacity, in response to customer demand;

* our ability to successfully complete the ongoing
efforts of certain cost-reduction actions; and

* our ability to successfully integrate and realize
expected synergies from our acquisitions.

It is likely that our future operating results will be
adversely affected by the factors set forth above or
other similar factors. If our future operating results
are below the expectations of stock market analysts
or our investors, our stock price may decline.

Our operating results could vary as a result of the
methods, estimates and judgments we use in apply-
ing our accounting policies.

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in apply-
ing our accounting policies have a significant impact on
our results of operations (see “Critical Accounting Pol-
icies and Estimates” in Part I, tem 7 of this Form 10-K).
Such methods, estimates and judgments are, by their
nature, subject to substantial risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, and factors may arise over time that lead
us to change our methods, estimates and judgments
that could significantly affect our results of operations.
In particular, in fiscal 2007, the calculation of share-
based compensation expense under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment™ {“SFAS 123(R)"), required us to use
valuation methedologies and a number of assumptions,
estimates and conclusions regarding matters such as
expected forfeitures, expected volatility of our share
price, the expected dividend rate with respect to our
common stock and the exercise behavior of our employ-
ees. Furthermore, there are no means under applicable
accounting principles to compare and.adjust an expense
if and when we learn of additional information that may
affect the estimates that we previously made, with the
exception of changes in expected forfeitures of share-

based awards. Factors may arise over time that lead us .

to change our estimates and assumptions with respect
to future share-based compensation arrangements,




resulting in variability in our share-based compensation
expense over time. Changes in forecasted share-based
compensation expense could impact our gross margin
percentage, research and development expenses, mar-
keting and selling expenses, general and administrative
expenses and our tax rate.

If we experience poor manufacturing yields, our oper-
ating results may suffer.

Our products are very. complex. Each product has a
unique design and is fabricated using semiconductor
process technologies that are highly complex. In many
cases, the products are assembled in customized pack-
ages. Our products, which primarily consist of multiple
components in a single package, feature enhanced
levels of integration and complexity. Our customers
insist that our products be designed to meet their exact
specifications for quality, performance and reliability.
Our manufacturing {logistics} yield is a combination of
yields across the entire supply chain including wafer
fabrication, assembly, and test yields. Due to the com-
plexity of our products, we periodically experience diffi-
culties in achieving acceptable yields on certain new and
existing products.

Our customers also test our components once they have

been assembled into their products. The number of

usable products that result from our production process

can fluctuate as a result of many factors, including the

following:

* design errors;

* defects in photomasks, which are used to print cir-
cuits on a wafer; '

*« minute impurities in materials used;

+ contamination of the manufacturing environment;

¢ equipment failure or variations in the manufacturing
processes;

« losses from broken wafers or other human error; and

+ defects in packaging.

We seek to improve our manufacturing yields. Typically,
for a given level of sales, when our yields improve, our
gross margins improve, and when our yields decrease,
our unit costs are higher, our margins are lower, and our
operating results are adversely affected. During fiscal
2007, we improved our final test vields and during fiscal
2008, we expect to focus additional efforts on improv-
ing our total logistics yield.

We depend on a few large customers for a substantial
portion of our revenue.

Histerically, a substantial portion of our revenue has
come from large purchases by a small number of cus-
tomers and we expect that trend to continue. Our future
operating results depend on both the success of our
largest customers and on our success in diversifying our
products and customer base.

We typically manufacture custom products on an exclu-
sive basis for individual customers for a negotiated
period of time, The concentration of our revenue with
a few large customers makes us particularly dependent
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on factors affecting those customers. For example, if
demand for their products decreases, they may stop
purchasing our products and our operating results would
suffer. Most of our customers can cease incorporating
our products into their products with little notice to us
and with little or no penalty. The loss of a large customer
and failure to add new customers to replace lost reve-
nue would have a material adverse effect on our busi-
ness, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on reference designs for a portion of our
revenue.

Our customers increasingly utifize handset reference
designs from leading baseband manufacturers. Hand-
set reference designs combine baseband functionality
with RF components sourced from companies such as
ours. We have established very strong relationships with
leading baseband manufacturers and support their ref-
erence design develcpment efforts, and we have his-
torically been successful designing our RF products into
their reference designs. However, if baseband manufac-
turers were to choose our competitors” RF products, it
would have a material adverse effect on our revenue if
our customers using these reference designs were
unwilling or technically unable to integrate our products.

Our operating results are dependent on our GaAs HBT
process technofogy and demand for our GaAs HBT
products.

Although we design products using multiple distinct
process technologies, a substantial portion of our rev-
enue comes from the sale of products manufactured
using GaAs HBT process technology. Our dependence
on GaAs HBT products could have an adverse effect on
our operating results in the future. Competitors offer
their own GaAs products, which can adversely affect our
selling prices. Also, new process technologies are being
developed, and one or more of these processes could
have characteristics that are superior to GaAs HBT. If we
are unable to access these technologies through
licenses or foundry service arrangements, we will be
competitively disadvantaged. These and other factors
could reduce the demand for GaAs HBT compeonents or
otherwise adversely affect our operating results,

We depend on our exclusive license from Northrop for
our GaAs HBT technology. If the license is terminated for
breach of contract or if it were determined that products
made with this technology infringed on a third party’s
intellectual property rights, our operating results would
be adversely affected. Northrop made no representa-
tion to us about whether the licensed technology
infringed on the intellectual property rights of anyone
else.

We operate in a very competitive industry and must
continue to implement innovative technologies and
increase capacity utilization in order to reduce costs
and improve margins.

We compete with several companies primarily engaged
in the business of designing, manufacturing and selling
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RF components and system-level solutions, as well as
suppliers of discrete products such as transistors,
capacitors and resistors. Several of our competitors
either have GaAs HBT process technology or are devel-
oping GaAs HBT or new fabrication processes. Custom-
ers could develop products that compete with or replace
our products. A decision by any of our large customers to
design and manufacture integrated circuits internally
could have an adverse effect on our operating results.
Increased competition could mean lower prices for our
products, reduced demand for our products and a cor-
responding reduction in our ability to recover develop-
ment, engineering and manufacturing costs. In order to
improve our margins, we need to reduce our costs by
making continual operational improvements to reduce
cycle time, increase capacity utilization and improve test
yields. Our inability to meet these objectives could have
an adverse effect on our gperating results.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have
entrenched market positions, historicail affiliations with
OEMs, considerable internal manufacturing capacity,
established intellectual property rghts and substantial
technological capabilities. Many of our existing and
potential competitors may have greater financial, tech-
nical, manufacturing or marketing resources than we do.
© We cannot be sure that we will be able to compete
successfully with our competitors.

Our operating resuits are substantially dependent on
development of new products.
Our future success will depend on our ability to develop
new product solutions for existing and new markets. We
must introduce new products in a timely and cost-effec-
tive manner and secure production orders from our
customers. The development of new products is a highly
complex process, and we have upon occasion experi-
enced delays in completing the development and intro-
duction of new products at times in the past. Our
successful product development depends on a number
of factors, including the following:

+ the accuracy of our prediction of market requirements
and evolving standards,

+ acceptance of our new product designs;

+ the availability of qualified product designers;

+ our timely completion and execution on the product
designs and ramp of new products according to our
customer needs with acceptabte manufacturing
yields;

+ acceptance of our customers’ products by the market
and the variability of the life cycle of such products;
and

+ our ability to successfully design, develop, manufac-
ture and integrate new compoenents, such as pHEMT
switches and filters, to increase our product content.

We may not be abie to design and introduce new prod-
ucts in a timely or cost-efficient manner, and our new
products may fail to meet the requirements of the mar-
ket or our customers. In that case, we likely will not
reach the expected level of production orders, which
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could adversely affect our operating results. Even when
a design win is achieved, our success is not assured.
Design wins may require significant expenditures by us
and typically precede volume revenues by six to nine
months or more. The actual value of a design win to us
will ultimately depend on the commercial success of our
customer’s product.

We are subject to risks from international sales and
operations.

We operate globally with sales offices and research and
development activities as well as manufacturing,
assembly and testing facilities in multiple countries.
As a result, we are subject to risks and factors associ-
ated with doing business outside the U.S. Global oper-
ations involve inherent risks that include currency
controls and fluctuations as well as tariff, import and
other related restrictions and regulations.

Sales to customers located outside the U.S. accounted
for approximately 93% of our revenue in fiscal 2007. We
expect that revenue from international sales will con-
tinue to he a significant part of our total revenue.
Because the majority of our foreign saies are denomi-
nated in U.S. dollars, our products become less price-
competitive in countries with currencies that are low or
are deciining in value against the U.S. dollar. Also, we
cannot be sure that our international customers will
continue to accept orders denominated in U.S. doliars.
If they do not, our reported revenue and earnings will
become more directly subject to foreign exchange
fluctuations.

The majority of our assembly, test and tape and reel
vendors are located in Asia. This subjects us to regula-
tory, geopolitical and other risks of conducting business
outside the U.S. We do business with our foreign assem-
blers in U.S. dollars. Our manufacturing costs could
increase in countries with currencies that are increasing
in vatue against the U.S. dollar. Also, we cannot be sure
that our international manufacturing suppliers will con-
tinue to accept orders denominated in U.S. dollars. If
they do not, our costs will become more directly subject
to foreign exchange fluctuations.

In addition, if terrorist activity, armed conflict, civil or
military unrest or political instability occur in the U.S. or
other locations, such events may disrupt manufacturing,
assembly, logistics, security and communications, and
could also result in reduced demand for our products.
Major health concerns could also adversely affect our
business and our customer order patterns. We could
also be affected if labor issues disrupt our transporta-
tion arrangements or those of our customers or suppli-
ers. On a worldwide basis, we regularly review our key
infrastructure, systems, services and suppliers, both
internally and externally, to seek to identify significant
vulnerabilities as well as areas of potential business
impact if a disruptive event were to occur. Once identi-
fied, we assess the risks, and as we consider it to be
appropriate, we initiate actions intended to minimize the
risks and their potential impact. However, there can be




no assurance that we have identified all significant risks
or that we can mitigate all identified risks with reason-
able effort.

We may engage in future acquisitions that difute our
shareholders, cause us to incur debt and assume
contingent liabifities.

As part of our business strategy, we expect to continue

to review potential acquisitions that could complement

our current product offerings, augment our market cov-
erage or enhance our technical capabilities, or that may
otherwise offer growth or margin improvement oppor-
tunities. While we currently have no definitive agree-
ments providing for any such acquisitions, we may
acquire businesses, products or technologies in the
future. In the event of such future acquisitions, we could
issue equity securities that would dilute our current
shareholders’ percentage ownership, incur substantial
debt or other financial obligations or assume contingent
liabilities. Such actions by us could seriously harm our
results of operations or the price of our common stock.

Acquisitions also entail numerous other risks that could

adversely affect our business, results of operations and

financial condition, including:

« unanticipated costs, capital expenditures or working
capital requirements associated with the acquisition;

* acquisition-related charges and amortization of
acquired technology and other intangibles that could
negatively affect our reported results of operation;

+ diversion of management’s attention from our
business;

« injury to existing business relationships with suppli-
ers and customers;

+ failure to successfully integrate acquired businesses,
operations, products, technotogies and personnel;
and

+ unrealized expected synergies.

We rely on intellectual property and face claims of
infringement,

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain
patents, trademarks and copyrights, maintain trade
secret protection and operate our business without
infringing on the proprietary rights of other parties.
The wireless industry is subject to frequent litigation,
often regarding patent and other intellectual property
rights. Leading companies and organizations in the
wireless industry have numerous patents that protect
their intellectual property rights in these areas. In the
event of an adverse result of any intellectual property
rights litigation, we could be required to expend signif-
icant resources to develop non-infringing technology or
to obtain licenses to the technology covered by the
litigation. We cannot be sure that we would be success-
ful in such development or that any such license would
be availabte on commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

In addition to patent and copyright protection, we also
rely on trade secrets, technical know-how and other
unpatented proprietary information refating to our prod-
uct development and manufacturing activities. We try to
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protect this information by entering into confidentiality
agreements with our employees and other parties. We
cannot be sure that these agreements will not be
breached, that we would have adequate remedies for
any breach or that our trade secrets and proprietary
know-how will not otherwise become known or indepen-
dently discovered hy others.

We may be subject to other lawsuits and claims relat-
ing to our products.

We cannot be sure that third parties will not assert
product liability or other claims against us, our custom-
ers or our licensors with respect to existing and future
products. Any litigation to determine the validity of any
third party’s claims could result in significant expense
and fiability to us and divert the efforts of our technical
and management personnel, whether or not the litiga-
tion is determined in our favor or covered by insurance,

We are subject to stringent environmental regulations.
We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local
requirements governing the protection of the environ-
ment. These environmental regulations include those
related to the use, storage, handling, discharge and
disposal of toxic or otherwise hazardous materials used
in our manufacturing processes. A change in environ-
mental laws or our failure to comply with environmental
laws could subject us to substantial liability or force us
to significantly change our manufacturing operations. In
addition, under some of these laws and regulations, we
could be held financially responsible for remedial mea-
sures if our properties are contaminated, even if we did
not cause the contamination.

Our stock price is subject to volatility.

The trading price of our common stock is subject to wide
fluctuations in response to quarterly variations in oper-
ating results, positive or adverse business develop-
ments, changes in financial estimates by securities
analysts, announcements of technological innovations,
introduction of new products by us or our competitors,
transactions by corperate insiders and other events and
factors. In addition, the stock market has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations based on factors
outside our control that have particularly affected the
market prices for many high technology companies.
These broad market fluctuations may materially and
adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Qur convertible subordinated debt may have a dilutive
effect on our existing shareholders and may have
other adverse effects on our resuits of operations.

On April 4, 2007, we issued $175.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordinated
Notes due 2012 (the “2012 Notes"}and $175.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Convertible Sub-
ordinated Notes due 2014 (the “2014 Notes” and,
together with the 2012 Notes, the “Notes") in a private
placement to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated for resale to qualified institutional buyers.
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On April 10, 2007, we issued an additional $25.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 2012 Notes in connection
with Merrlll Lynch’s partial exercise of its option to
purchase (i) up to an additional $25.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 2012 Notes and (ii} up to an addi-
tional $25.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2014
Notes, in each case solely to cover over-altotments. The
Notes are convertible into shares of our common stack
under certain circumstances. Upon conversion, in lieu of
shares of our common stock, for each $1,000 principal
amount of Notes, a holder will receive an amount incash
equal to the lesser of (i} $1,000 or (ii} the conversion
value, as determined under the applicable indentures
governing the Notes. If the conversion value exceeds
$1,000, we also will deliver, at our election, cash or
common stock or a combination of cash and common
stock equivalent to the amount of the conversion value
in excess of the $1,000. This election to deliver cash or
common stock if the conversion value exceeds the
conversion price will require us to evaluate the inclusion
of shares in our dilutive earnings per share calculation
(based on the treasury stock method) in the event our
stock price exceeds $8.05 per share.

In addition, in July 2003, we completed the private
placement of $230.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 1.50% convertible subordinated notes due
2010, These notes are convertible into a total of approx-
imately 30.1 million shares of our common stock (sub-
ject to adjustment in certain circumstances) at a
conversion price of $7.63 per share and are convertible
at the option of the holder at any time on or prior to the
close of business on the maturity date.

‘In the future, we may issue additional equity, debt or
convertible securities to raise capital. If we do so, the
percentage ownership of RFMD held by existing share-
holders would be further reduced, and existing share-
holders may experience significant further dilution. In
addition, new investars in RFMD may demand rights,
preferences or privileges that differ from, or are senior
to, those of our existing shareholders. The perceived
risk associated with the sale of a large number of
shares, including the recently completed convertible
subordinated notes offering, could cause some of our
shareholders to sell their stock, thus causing the price
of our common stock to decline. Subsequent sales of
cur common stock in the open market could also have
an adverse effect on the market price of our common
stock. If our stock price declines, it may be maore difficult
or we may be unable to raise additional capital, which
could have a material adverse impact on our business
and results of operations.

At May 18, 2007, we had outstanding a total of
194,216,713 shares of common stock. As of March 31,
2007, options to purchase approximately 23.0 million
shares of common stock were outstanding under our
formal stock option plans for employees and directors,
with a weighted average exercise price of $7.46 per
share and a weighted average remaining contractual life
0f 6.02 years. Of these, options to purchase 16.0 million
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shares were exercisable at March 31, 2007, at a
weighted average exercise price of $8.04 per share.

The degree to which we are leveraged could have impor-
tant consequences, including, but not limited to, the
following:

+ our ability to obtain additional financing in the future
for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisi-
tions, general corporate or other purposes may be
limited; .

« the dilutive effects on our shareholders as a result of
the shares of our common stock that would be issued
in the event of conversion of all of our convertible
subordinated notes;

+ we may be more vulnerable to economic downturns,
less able to withstand competitive pressures and
less flexible in responding to changing business
and economic conditions;

* a portion of our cash flow from operations will be
dedicated to the payment of the principal of, and
interest on, our indebtedness;

+ our ability to meet our payment and other obligations
under our debt depends on our ability to generate
significant cash flow in the future and we cannot
assure holders that our business will generate cash
flow from operations, or that future borrowings will be
available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to
meet our payment obligations under our debt and to
fund other liquidity needs; and

« our ability to have sufficient cash to satisfy our obli-
gations, if any of our outstanding convertible subor-
dinated notes become convertible pursuant to their
terms and the holders elect to convert or if holders
elect to put their notes to us on the specified repur-
chase dates.

In connection with the 2007 convertible subordinated
notes offering, we entered into a registration rights
agreement with Merrill Lynch. Pursuant to the registra-
tion rights agreement, we may be required to pay addi-
tional interest to record holders of the convertible

subordinated notes and the amount of such additional .

interest, if any, may adversely affect our results of
operations. Under the registration rights agreement,
we are required to file a shelf registration statement
with the SEC covering resales of the Notes and the
common stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes
and to use reasonable efforts to cause such registration
statement to become effective within 180 days of issu-
ing the Notes. If we are unable to obtain effectiveness of
the registration statement within the required time-
frame, or we fail to meet certain obligations to amend
the registration statement, we will be required to make
(i) additional interest payments to the holders of the
affected Notes that is equal to an annual rate of 0.5% of
the aggregate principal amount of the affected Notes, or
{ii) if any of the affected Notes have been converted into
shares of our common stock, a payment equal to an
annual rate of 0.5% of the applicable conversion price
with respect to such shares of common stock. If we are
required to make these additional interest payments to




the holders of the Notes, such payments may adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operation,
particularly our earnings results.

Provisions in our governing documents could discour-
age takeovers and prevent shareholders from realizing
an investment premium.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporation and
bylaws could have the effect of making it more difficult
for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third
party from attempting to acquire, control of our Com-
pany. These provisions include the ability of our Board of
Directors to designate the rights and preferences of
preferred stock and issue such shares without share-
holder approval and the reguirement of supermajority
shareholder approval of certain transactions with par-
ties affiliated with our Company. Such provisions could
limit the price that certain investors might be willing to
pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

On August 10, 2001, our Board of Directors adopted a
shareholder rights plan, pursuant to which uncertifi-
cated stock purchase rights were distributed to our
shareholders at a rate of one stock purchase right for
each share of common stock held of record as of
August 30, 2001. The rights plan is designed to
enhance the Board's ability to prevent an acquirer from
depriving shareholders of the long-term value of their
investment and to protect shareholders against
attempts to acquire us by means of unfair or abusive
takeover tactics. The rights become exercisable based
upon certain limited conditions related to acquisitions of
stock, tender offers and certain business combination
transactions involving us. The existence of the rights
plan may impede a takeover of us not supported by the
Beard, including a takeover that may be desired by a
majority of our shareholders or involving a premium over
the prevailing stock price.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not Applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We currently iease all of our facilities with the exception
of our second wafer fabrication facility and our assem-
bly, test and tape and reel facility in Beijing, China.

We lease two office buildings and suites in two other
office buildings in Greensboro, North Carolina. Adjacent
to our office facilities are our two wafer fabrication
facilities and our research and development packaging
facility. We believe these facilities are suitable and
adequate for our present purposes, and the productive
capacity in such facilities is substantially being utilized
or we have plans to further utilize the facilities.

We lease two additional facilities in Greensboro, North
Carolina. One facility houses our MBE wafer starting
material production operations and the other facility
houses our RF test and tape and reel operations. As
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noted above, we own an assembly, test and tape and
reel facility in Beijing, China. We believe our MBE facility
and test and tape and reel operations in North Carolina
and China are suitable and adequate for our present
purposes and the productive capacity in such facilities is
substantially being utilized or we have plans to further
utilize the facilities. During fiscal 2007, we expanded
our manufacturing operations and are planning further
expansions in fiscatl 2008 to ensure that these facilities
remain adequate.

We also lease space for our design centers in Scoftts
Valley, irvine and Carlsbad, California; Cedar Rapids,
lowa: Boulder, Colorado; Chandler, Arizona; Boston,
Massachusetts; Shanghai, China; Pandrup, Denmark;
and Charlotte, North Carolina. in addition, we lease
space for sales and customer support centers in Read-
ing, England; Toulouse, France; Seoul, South Korea;
Taipei, Taiwan; Shanghai, Shenzhen and Beljing, China;
and Tokyo, Japan. In the opinion of management, our
properties have been well maintained, are in sound
operating condition and contain all equipment and facil-
ities necessary to operate at present levels.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We have been named a defendant in a patent infringe-
ment lawsuit, captioned Lemelson Medical, Education &
Research Foundation, LP v. Broadecom Corporation; RF
Micro Devices, Inc.; SanDisk Corporation; TransSwitch
Corporation; WJ Communicatiens, Inc., filed August 3,
2001, in the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona-
by Lemelson Medical, Education & Research Founda-
tion, LP. The suit alleges that we have infringed claims of
atotal of at least 17 and possibly 18 patents, including
“machine vision” claims of 12 patents, “bar code”
claims of seven patents (some of which are the same
as the 12 “machine vision” patents} and “integrated
circuit” claims of three or four patents and seeks injunc-
tive relief, damages for the alleged infringements and
payment of the plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees. This case was
stayed pending resolution of one of two related actions
to which we are not a party. This case was stayed before
any discovery and is in its very preliminary stages. In
one of the related actions, a U.S. District Judge ruled
that claims of 14 patents (each patent being among
those patents at issue in the Company's litigation) were
unenforceable and invalid. On September 9, 2005, the
Federal Circuit upheld the U.S. District Judge’s ruling
that claims of the 14 patents are unenforceable. On
December 22, 2005, the plaintiff, Lemelson Medical,
Education & Research Foundation, LP, filed a motion
with the U.S. District Court for the District of Arizona to
dismiss the case as to the 14 patents that have been
held unenforceable by the Federal Circuit. There are four
patents remaining at issue in the litigation. Although we
have not been notified that the stay has been lifted, we
have been contacted by the plaintiff advising us that the
plaintiff plans to reopen the case.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF
SECURITY HOLDERS.

Not applicable,
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON
EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market under the symbol “RFMD.” The table
below shows the high and low sales prices of our com-
mon stock for the periods indicated, as reported by The
NASDAQ Stock Market LLC. As of May 18, 2007, there
were 1,879 holders of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

First Quarter $9.58 $5.49

Second Quarter 7.74 5.25

Third Quarter 8.29 6.69

Fourth Quarter 8.60 6.12
Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 2006

First Quarter $5.55 $3.77

Second Quarter 7.06 5.32

Third Quarter 6.25 4.81

Fourth Quarter 8.91 5.32

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our
common stock. We currently intend to retain our earn-
ings for use in our business and do not anticipate paying
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
AMONG RF MICRO DEVICE, INC., THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
AND THE NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS INDEX

Siéh

Sl4g el 13955

0
00 03 - k-] 2O oot
wnense I RF MICRO DEVICES, INC, e - () NASDAQ COMPOSITE
------- £\ NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS
Flscal Year End 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Total Return Index for:

RF Micro Devices, Inc. 100.00 | 33.56 47.26 29.16 48.32 34.80

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 | 72.11 | 109.76 | 111.26 | 132.74 | 139.65

NASDAQ Electronic Components 100.00 | 51.88 87.71 72.78 80.12 72.63
Notes:

A. The lines represent monthly index levels derived from compounded daily returns that include all dividends.
B. The indexes are reweighted daily, using the market capitalization on the previcus trading cay.

C. If the manthly interval, based on the fiscal year-end, is not a trading day, the preceding trading day is used.
D. The index level for all series was set to $100.00 on 3/31/2002.

The information regarding the performance graph provided in this ltem 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not
deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to
Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the
extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such a filing.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Flscal Year Ended 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data: )
Revenue $1,023,615 $770,247 $634,204 $651,379 $507,819
Operating costs and expenses: .
Cost of goods sold 666,755  501,224" 417,079 405,008 325,168
Research and development 184,979 168,858 156,464 128,152 101,736
Marketing and selling 53,863 52,121% 47,409 45,226 36,833
Genera! and administrative 37,301 29,589% 25053 21,135 18,364
Other operating (income) expense {33,834) (251) 49 469¥ 9,785% 13,961
Total operating costs and expenses 909,064 751,541 695474 609,306 496,062
Income {loss) from operations 114,551 18,706 (61,270) 42,073 11,757
Interest expense {4,583) (4,188) (6,506) (12,865) (24,433)
Interest income 9,305 4,354 4,018 3,463 5,545
Other income {expense), net (32,874)® 1,339 (1,708) (2,478) {1,954)
Income {loss) before income taxes 86,399 20,211 (65,464) 30,193 (9,085)
Income tax (expense)} benefit {2,983) (3,881) (581) (485} (250)
Net income (loss} $ 83416 % 18,330 $(66,045) $ 29,708 3% (9,335
Net income {loss) per share:
Basic $ 043 % 009 $ (035 % 016 % (0.05)
Diluted $ 039 $ 008 $ (035 & 015 §$ (0.05)
Shares used in per share calculation:
Basic 192,137 188,832 186,985 184,974 172,706
Diluted 226,513 192,781 186,985 213,272 172,706
As of Fiscal Year End 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: ) )
Cash and cash equivalents $ 229,034 $ 81,588 $ 26,016 $102,965 $ 83,172
Shortterm investments 89,678 68,949 134,828 224,880 173,437
Working capital 487,223 303,403 251,493 434,485 322,773
Total assets 1,089,634 938,835 864,442 995601  940,518%
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations,
less current portion 245,709 226,876 226,168 324,686 296,476
Shareholders’ equity 719,667 599,357 548,050 603,138  557,400®

(1) During fiscal 2007, we recorded a $33.9 million gain (net of restructuring expenses) for the sale of substantially all of our Bluetooth® assets. See Note 7 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded a $33.9 million impairment charge associated with the announcement of a merger of Jazz
Semiconductor, Inc. with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Acquicor Technology, Inc. and our intention to sell our equity interest in Jazz, See Note 4 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

{3) Buring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, a non-cash variable accountin% expense totaling $19.9 million was recorded as a result of our option exchange
(

program. This expense was recorded direcily in cost of goods soid

($3.9 miliion), and general and administrative expenses ($2.3 million).

{4) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, a non-cash asset write-off was recorded relating to the discontinuation of the WLAN chipset development efforts in the
amount of $42.4 million. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, we recorded a $6.2 millien charge for
acquired in-process research and development associated with the Silicon Wave acquisition that we determined had no alternative future use. See Note 7 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(5) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, a nen-cash asset impairment charge was recorded in the amount of $7.7 million.
{6) Fiscal 2003 includes the effects of the mérger with Resonext Communications, Inc. See Note 7 to the Consolidatec Financial Statements.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our
consolidated financial statements, including the notes
thereto.

OVERVIEW

Company

RF Micro Devices, Inc. was incorporated under the laws
of the State of North Carolina in 1991. We are a global
leader in the design and manufacture of high-perfor-
mance radio frequency (RF) components and system
solutions for mobile communications. Qur PAs, transmit
modules, cellular transceivers and transceiver modules
and SoC solutions enable worldwide mobility, provide
enhanced connectivity and support advanced function-
ality in current- and next-generation mobile devices,
cellular base stations, WLANs and GPS. Qur diverse
portfolio of state-of-the-art semiconductor technologies
and industry-leading RF systems expertise positions us
as a preferred supplier to the world's leading mobile
device manufacturers which deliver advanced wireless
capabilities that satisfy current and future market
demands.

We design and manufacture products using all the major
applicable semiconductor process technologies avail-
able today. We have access to these technologies
through internal and external resources, Our approach
to using multiple semiconductor process technologies
allows us to offer customers products that optimize
trade-offs between performance and cost and fulfill their
performance, cost and time-to-market requirements.
We call this approach Optimum Technology Matching®,

Business Segments

We report information as one operating segment.
SFAS 131 established standards for the way that public
companies report information about operating seg-
ments in annual consolidated financial statements.
Although we had three business units as of March 31,
2007 (Cellular, Wireless Connectivity and Infrastruc-
ture), we report information as one operating segment
pursuant to the aggregation criteria set forth in
SFAS 131.

2007 Management Summary

Our key financial results for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2007, are as follows:

+ Qur revenue Increased 32.9% in fiscal 2007 to
$1,023.6 million as compared to $770.2 million in
fiscal 2006. This increase was primarily due to sales
of transmit modutes and our POLARIS™ TOTAL
RADIO™ transceiver solutions for GSM/GPRS and
GSM/GPRS/EDGE applications.

* Qur gross profit was 34.9% of revenue in both fiscal
2007 and fiscal 2006. Decreases in average selling
prices on a per function basis and a change in our
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product mix were offset by improved capacity utiliza-
tion and yield improvements as weli as lower costs for
silicon and surface mount devices.

+ We adopted SFAS 123(R) on April 2, 2006 and as a
result, we recorded share-based compensation
expense of approximately $19.2 million for fiscal
2007.

* Operating income for fiscal 2007 increased to 11.2%
of revenue as compared to 2.4% for fiscal 2006.

* In connection with the announced merger of Jazz
Semiconductor, Inc. with a wholly owned subsidiary
of Acquicor Technology, Inc. and our intention to sell
our equity interest in Jazz, we recorded an impairment
charge of $33.9 million for our investment in Jazz
during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold our eqguity
interest in Jazz and received cash proceeds of
$23.1 mittion.

* We received cash totaling $32.6 million {net of trans-
action costs) and recorded a receivable for the
remaining balance and a gain of $33.9 million (net
of restructuring expenses) from the sale of substan-
tially all of the assets related to our Bluetooth® prod-
uct line, including our next-generation Siwi1722 and
RF4000 series products, as well as associated fixed
assets, intellectual property, inventory and
receivables.

* Qur net income per diluted share was $0.39 for fiscal
2007, compared to a net income per diluted share of
$0.08 for fiscal 20086,

+ We generated positive cash flow from operations of
$178.4 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2007.

+ During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we entered
into a $25.0 million equipment term loan, primarily
for use in the capacity expansion of our wafer fabri-
cation and assembly facilities. .

e Qur inventory turns improved to 5.9 at March 31,
2007 as compared to 5.1 at April 1, 2008, primarily
as a result of lower raw material and work-in-process
inventory levels resulting from improvements in our
supply chain management.

Fiscal 2007 included the following operational

highlights:

* Qur cellular product revenue growth outpaced the rate
of growth of the handset market during fiscal 2007
through our sales of transmit modules and trans-
ceiver modules.

* We completed the expansion of cur wafer fabrication
facility, which increased our wafer manufacturing
capacity by approximately 40%. This expansion
reduced our cost per wafer and provided available
capacity to increase production of both GaAs HBT and
GaAs pHEMT devices in order to meet increased
demand.

* We completed the expansion of our assembly opera-
tions located in Beijing, China. This increased our
internal assembly capacity by over 100% and resulted
in cost reductions and improved inventory
management.
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* We increased our cellular product portfolio to include
stand-alone pHEMT switches and transmit modules
that incorporate pHEMT switch technology with the PA
function in a single package.

* We achieved market leadership in cellular transmit
modules.

* We achieved a leading market share in WLAN front
end modules for applications in handsets and porta-
ble data devices.

* We expanded our total addressable market for our
infrastructure business unit by introducing a family of
pre-driver PAs that leverage thermal enhancements
made to our GaAs process and enable low distortion
under linear operation.

+ We began sampling our software-based GPS solution
to lead customers. This new product enables the
integration of high-performance GPS applications in
handsets, wireless PDAs, digital cameras, personal
navigation devices and other cost-sensitive, battery-
operated mobile devices.

+ We expanded our existing GaAs product offering by
introducing a family of new low-noise amplifiers with
increased linearity and reduced noise figure.

* We completed process development of our first gen-
eration GaN RF power transistor process. We
received several pre-production orders for our new
GaN-based products and recorded our first GaN
revenue.

2008 Objectives and Management Expectations:
We plan to strengthen our handset business and diver-
sify into new businesses as fiscal 2008 progresses. We
plan to grow both our handset and non-handset busi-
ness faster than the handset market over the next five
years. We believe that the achievement of the following
objectives in fiscal 2008 will allow us to achieve our
growth and profitability goals over the next five years:

s Ramp our POLARIS RF solution at an additional top-
tier handset manufacturer in the second half of cal-
endar year 2007;

* Complete GaN process qualifications and begin
establishing a revenue base for GaN products;

+ Continue streamlining our supply chain, which we
believe would result in the lowest cost structure in
the industry, execute on sourcing strategy for both
pHEMT and filter production, and complete our Beijing
expansion;

* Commence integrated RF shielding production during
the second half of fiscal 2008;

+ Ramp next generation handset models with an exist-
ing POLARIS customer,

* Continue execution on diversification strategy into
multi-market wireless applications;

+ Grow revenue and maintain handset front end
leadership;

* Leverage leadership in WCDMA front ends to continue
supporting development of breakthrough WCDMA RF
solution technology;

« Grow revenue and maintain our number one market
share position in WLAN front ends for handsets and
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grow our market share in WLAN front ends for enter-
prise applications, mobile computing, access points
and other consumer electronics; and

» Establish our software-defined GPS in both the con-
sumer electronics and cellular handset markets.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL YEARS 2007,
2006 AND 2005

REVENUE

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
{in thousands, 2006 2005
axcept Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2006 Change 2005 Change
Revenue $1,023,615 $770.247 32.9%  $634,204 21.5%

Our revenue increase for fiscal 2007 was primarily due
to sales of transmit modules, and our POLARIS™ TOTAL
RADIO™ transceiver solutions for GSM/GPRS and GSM/
GPRS/EDGE applications.

In fiscal 2006, the increase in revenue compared to
fiscal 2005 was primarily due to sales growth in our
POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIO™ transceiver solutions for
GSM/GPRS and GSM/GPRS/EDGE applications, as
well as sales growth of transmit modules and PAs for
cellular applications and Bluetooth® sclutions for hand-
sets, accessories and other markets.

Sales to our significant customers, as a percentage of
net revenue, were as follows:

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005
Customer 1 44% g% 35%
Customer 2 30% 20% 10%

International shipments were $248.8 million in fiscal
2007 {approximately 93% of revenue) compared to
$657.0 million in fiscal 2006 (approximately 85% of
reverue) and $532.1 million in fiscal 2005 (approxi-
mately 84% of revenue). Shipments to Asia totaled
$754.4 million in fiscal 2007 (approximately 74% of
revenue) compared to $499.4 million in fiscal 2006
{approximately 65% of revenue) and $385.9 million in
fiscal 2005 (approximately 61% of revenue).

GROSS PROFIT

2007 vs. 2006 vs,
(in thousands, 2006 2005
except Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2006 Change 2005 Change

Gross profit $356,860 $269,023 32.7% $217,125 23.9%
As a percent

of revenue 34.9% 34.9% 0.0ppt 34.2% 0.7 ppt

Qur gross profit increased $87.8 million or 32.7% in
fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 due to sales
growth, while our gross profit as a percent of revenue
remained unchanged. Several factors that impacted
gross margin for fiscal 2007 were decreases in our
corporate average selling prices (“ASP") on a per func-
tion basis and a change in our product mix, which were
offset by improved capacity utilization and yield improve-
ments as well as lower costs for silicon and surface
mount devices.




Qur gross profit increased $51.9 million or 23.9% in
fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 primarily as a
result of our sales growth. Gross profit grew faster than
sales primarily due to our cost reduction initiatives.
During the second half of fiscal 2006, our cost reduction
initiatives included increasing assembly of PA modules
in our internal assembly operation in Beijing, China,
improving vyields, specifically final test yields, and
improving capacity utilization rates.

Historically, our corporate ASP has decreased as selling
prices for our products have decreased on a per function
basis. During fiscal 2007, we offset this histarical trend
by expanding the functions performed on a per-unit
basis through increased sales of transceiver modules
and transmit modules. In addition, we expect that the
following factors will continue to impact our gross profit
as a percent of revenue: (1) capacity utilization; (2) prod-
uct test yields; {3) cost§ and quality of externally
sourced matetials and services; and {4) cost efficien-
cies of internally-sourced materials and services, includ-
ing our assembly operation in Beijing, China.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
(in thousands, 2006 2005
excapt Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2006 Change 20058 Change

Research and
development $184,979 $168,858

As a percent
of revenue

9.5% $156,464 7.9%

18.1%  21.9% (3.8 ppt  24.7% (2.8) ppt

The dollar increase in research and development
expense during fiscal 2007 was primarily attributable
to our.increase in headcount and related personnel
expenses, including salaries and benefits related to
our cellular transceiver development efforts. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in share-
based compensation expense of $6.7 million in fiscal
2007. Our adoption of SFAS 123(R) on April 2, 2006,
resulted in share-based compensation expense of
$5.6 million included in research and development. In
comparison, we recorded share-based compensation
expense of $12.3 million in research and development
during fiscal 20086, of which $10.9 million was related to
a variable accounting charge that resulted from the
completion of our option exchange program.

As expected, research and development expenses as a
percentage of revenue have decreased as a result of
increased revenue, We expect that research and devel-
opment expenses will continue to increase in absolute
dollars in future periods.

The increase in research and development expense
during fiscal 2006 was primarily attributable to the
fourth quarter variable accounting charge that resulted
from the completion of our option exchange program.
Increases in  headcount and related personnel
expenses, including salaries and benefits related to
our cellular chipset development efforts, were offset
by the reduction in WLAN expenses resulting from the
discontinuation of our internal WLAN chipset
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development efforts during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2005. In addition, because we acquired Silicon Wave on
May 24, 2004, there were approximately 44 weeks of
Silicon Wave expenses included in our fiscal year 2005
financial statements versus 52 weeks of expenses in
fiscal 2006.

We currently operate design centers that are located
throughout the world, in addition to our design engineer-
ing headquarters in Greensboro, North Carolina. During
the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we announced the
addition of a research and development center in our
Shanghai facility.

MARKETING AND SELLING

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
{in thousands, 2006 2005
axcept Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2008 Change 2005 Change

Marketing and

selling $53,863 $52,121 3.3% $47.409 9.9%

As a percent of

revenue 5.3% 6.8% (1.5) ppt 7.5% (0.7) ppt

The dollar increase in marketing and selling expense
during fiscal 2007 was primarily due to an increase in
personnel expenses. These increases were partially
offset by a decrease in share-based compensation
expense of $1.8 million in fiscal 2007. Our adoption
of SFAS 123(R} on April 2, 2008, resulted in share-
based compensation expense of $3.7 million included
in marketing and selling. In comparison, we recorded
share-based compensation expense of $5.5 million in
marketing and selling during fiscal 2006, of which
$3.9 million related to a variable accounting charge that
resulted from the completion of our option exchange
program.

As expected, marketing and selling expenses as a per-
centage of revenue have decreased as a result of
increased revenue. We expect that marketing and sell-
ing expenses will continue to increase in absolute dol-
lars in future periods.

The increase for fiscal 2006 was primarily due to an
increase in share-based compensation expense resuilt-
ing from the fourth quarter variable accounting charge
that resulted from the completion of our option
exchange program. The remaining increase in fiscal
2006 was due to an increase in headcount and related
personnel expenses.

We sell our products worldwide directly to customers as
well as through a network of domestic and foreign sales
representative firms. We have sales and customer sup-
port centers located throughout the world. We are con-
tinuing to focus our efforts on building the staffing and
capabilities of our existing sales infrastructure and
believe that our existing sales offices and customer
support centers provide the geographic coverage nec-
essary to address our product markets and customer
base. .
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE )
2007 vs. 2006 vs.

{in thousands, 2008 2005
except Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2006 Change 2005 Change

General and
administrative $37,301 $29,589 26,1% $25,053 18.1%

As a percent of
revenue 3.6% 8% (0.Zyppt 3.9% (0.1) ppt

The increase for fiscal 2007 was primarily due to an
increase in personnel expenses and share-based com-
pensation expense. As a result of our adoption of
SFAS 123(R) on April 2, 2006, share-based compensa-
tion totaled $7.0 million for fiscal 2007, whereby a
portion of this amount related to the immediate recog-
nition of expense for awards that were granted to certain
officers after the adoption of SFAS 123(R). During fiscal
2006, total share-based compensation expense of
$3.5 million was recorded, of which $2.3 million related
to a variable accounting charge that resulted from the
completion of our option exchange program.

We expect that general and administrative expenses will
continue to increase in absolute doltar amounts in future
periods.

The increase for fiscal 2006 was primarily due to an
increase in share-based compensation expense result-
ing from the fourth quarter variable accounting charge
that we incurred upon completion of our option
exchange program. The remaining increase in fiscal
2006 was due to an increase in headcount and related
personnel expenses, including salaries and benefits.

OTHER OPERATING (INCOME) EXPENSE

2007 vs. 2008 vs.

(In thousands, 20086 2005
except Percent Percent
percentages) 2007 2008 Change 2005 Change
Cther operating

{income)

expense 5(33,834) $(251) (13,380)% $49,469 (100.5)%
As a percent of

revenue (3.3)% (0.0)% (3.3) ppt 7.8% {7.8)ppt

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we sold sub-
stantially all of our assets related to our Bluetooth®
product ling, including our next-generation SiwW1722 and
RF4000 series products, as well as associated intellec-
tual property, inventory and receivables. As a result of
this asset sale, we recognized a gain of approximately
$36.4 million (net of approximately $0.5 million in costs
associated with the sale), and incurred restructuring
expenses totaling $2.5 million, which are included in
other operating income in our consolidated financial
statements. In addition, as required by SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 1427},
we determined that this asset sale represented a trig-
gering event and as a result, we assessed impairment of
the affected goodwill. No impairment was indicated as
the estimated fair values of the affected reporting unit
exceeded their respective carrying values.

During fiscal 2006, we incurred $0.7 million of
expenses related to the discontinuation of our internal
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WLAN chipset development efforts, which was offset by
a $1.0 million reversal of accrued contract expense. The
accrued contract expense was for a license of inteliec-
tual property related to the chipset development efforts;
however, during fiscal 2006, the license was renegoti-
ated to allow the technology to be used for non-WLAN
related products.

During fiscal 2005, we discontinued our internal WLAN
chipset development efforts due to our difficulties in
bringing competitive WLAN chipset solutions to market
in a timely manner. We recorded a non-cash charge of
approximately $37.1 million for impairment of intangible
assets, consisting of acquired technology licenses, a
non-cash charge of approximately $0.9 million for the
impairment of fixed assets and prepaids and cash
charges of approximately $2.4 million refated to sever-
ance and related payroll costs. In addition, we recorded
contractual obligations related to software and license
agreements of approximately $1.7 million, as well as
miscellaneous accruals totaling approximately $0.3 mil-
lion that were paid during fiscal 2006. See Note 10 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Additionally, in fiscal 2005, we recorded a $6.2 million
charge in accordance with SFAS 141 for acquired in-
process research and development associated with the
Silicon Wave acquisition that the Company determined
had no alternative future use. As a resuit of the Decerm-
ber 2006 sale of assets that related to our Biuetooth®
2.0 Enhanced Data Rate products with HCl Interface
embodied in our next-generation RF4000 series prod-
ucts and the next-generation radio radio/modem com-
ponent SiW1722 to QUALCOMM, we will not be incurring
any additional expenses related to the acquired in-pro-
cess research and development. Also included in other
operating expense for fiscal 2005 was $0.9 million
related to start-up costs associated with the expansion
of our test and tape and reel facility in Beijing, China, to
add module assembly manufacturing functions.

OTHER INCOME {EXPENSE) AND INCOME TAXES

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest expense $ (4,583) $(4,188) $(6.506)
Interest income 9!305 4,354 4,018
Impairment charge (33,959)

Loss in equity method investee {1,761)
Other income : 1,085 1,339 55
Income taxes (2,983} (3,881) {581)

INTEREST EXPENSE

tnterest expense in fiscal 2007 was $4.6 mitlion com-
pared to $4.2 million in fiscal 2006. In accordance with
SFAS 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost”, we are
required to capitalize a portion of our interest expense
related to our $25.0 million equipment term loan on
assets that are not ready for their intended use. During
the twelve months ended March 31, 2007, we capital-
ized interest of $1.1 million for these qualifying assets.




Interest expense in fiscal 2006 was $4.2 million com-
pared to $6.5 miliion in fiscal 2005. During the second
quarter of fiscal 2005, we repurchased the remaining
$100.0 million principal amount of our outstanding
3.75% convertible subordinated notes due 2005. The
decrease in interest expense for the fiscal year ended
April 1, 2006, compared to April 2, 2005, was primarily
due to lower outstanding debt during the period.

INTEREST INCOME

The increase in interest income is primarily due to an
increase in cash and cash equivalents as well as an
increase in interest rates to approximately 5.1% for
fiscal 2007 as compared to approximately 3.6% for
fiscal 2006 and 1.7% for fiscal 2005.

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE

During fiscal 2003, we entered into a strategic relation-
ship with Jazz, a privately-held RF and mixed signal
silicon wafer foundry, for silicon manufacturing and
development. Within the strategic relationship, we
obtained a committed low cost supply of wafers fabri-
cated utilizing Jazz's silicon manufacturing processes
and the ability to collaborate with Jazz on joint process
development and the optimization of these processes
for fabrication of next-generation silicon products. As
part of the strategic relationship, we invested $60.0 mil-
lion in Jazz, which resulted in an approximate 11%
ownership interest.

During our second quarter of fiscal 2007, Jazz entered
into a merger agreement with Acquicor Technology Inc.
As a result of this announcement and our intention to
sell our equity interest in Jazz, we recorded an impair-
ment charge of $33.9 million and reduced our invest-
ment in Jazz to $25.4 million. During our fourth quarter
of fiscal 2007, Jazz announced the completion of its
merger with Acquicor Technology Inc., and as a result,
we received cash of approximately $23.1 million and
recorded a receivable for the remaining funds related to
a hold-back provision in the agreement which we expect
to receive within calendar year 2008. We currently
expect our relationship with Jazz, which is now known
as Jazz Technologies, Inc., will continue as we launch
new highty-integrated mixed signal products built on Jazz
silicon and continue our development efforts in
advanced RF silicon semiconductor processes.

LOSS IN EQUITY METHOD INVESTEE
On May 24, 2004, we completed the acquisition of

Silicon Wave, Inc., a privately-hetd San Diego-based -

supplier of highly integrated Bluetooth® solutions for
wireless personal area networks. The Silicon Wave
acquisition was accounted for in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for
Investments in Common Stock,” as a step acquisition
and in accordance with SFAS 141, using the purchase
method of accounting. Application of the equity method

- resulted in an equity method loss in Silicon Wave of
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$1.8 million for the period from March 31, 2004,
through May 24, 2004 (the closing date of the Silicon
Wave acquisition).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense for fiscal 2007 was $3.0 miltion as
compared to $3.9 million for fiscal 2006, primarily
representing foreign income taxes on international oper-
ations and the recognition of certain acquired tax ben-
efits. The effective combined domestic income tax rate
was 2.6% for fiscal 2007 and 10.1% for fiscal 2006. Qur
overall tax rate for fiscal 2007 and 2006 differed from
the statutory rate due to adjustments to the valuation
altowance, primarily related to the partial recognition of
the U.S. tax benefits on the domestic net operating
losses, tax credits, rate differences on foreign transac-
tions, and other differences between book and tax
treatment of certain expenditures.

The annual effective tax rate was 3.4% for fiscal year
2007, compared to 19.2% for fiscal year 2006. The
decrease in the annual effective tax rate between fiscal
2006 and 2007 is primarily due to an increase in net
income while foreign tax expense remained relatively
constant and the increase in domestic tax expense was
partially offset by the utilization of net operating losses.

On March 31, 2007, we had outstanding net operating
loss carryforwards (NOLs) for federal domestic tax pur-
poses of approximately $21.3 million, which will begin to
expire in 2013, if unused, and state losses of approx-
imately $20.9 million, which will begin to expire in 2009,
if unused. Included in these amounts are certain NOLs
and other tax attribute assets acquired in conjunction
with our acquisitions of Resonext and Silicon Wave. The
utilization of acquired assets may be subject to certain
annual limitations as required under Interna! Revenue
Code Section 382. In accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” a valuation altowance of
$51.4 million related to domestic operating losses and
credit carryforwards has been established, as it is
management’s opinion that it is more likely than not
that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Realization is dependent upon generating U.S.
source income in the future, which may result in the
valuation reserve being reversed in the near term to the
extent that the related deferred tax assets no longer
require a valuation allowance under the provisions of
SFAS 109. Of the valuation allowance, $4.7 million was
recorded against equity to offset the tax benefit of
employee stock options recorded in equity and $6.2 mil-
lion was recorded against goodwill to offset the tax
benefit of net operating losses, credits and other deduc-
tions recorded in goodwill.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

On April 2, 2006 (the first day of cur 2007 fiscal year),
we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) using a
modified prospective application. Under SFAS 123(R),
share-based compensation cost is measured at the

27




RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2007

grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the
award using an option pricing model (Black-Scholes),
and is recognized as expense over the employee’s reg-
pisite service period.

As of March 31, 2007, total remaining unearned com-
pensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock
was $10.6 million, which will be amortized over the
weighted-average remaining service period of 3.3 years.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations to date through sales of
equity and debt securities, bank borrowings, capital
equipment leases and revenue from product sales.
Through public and Rule 144A securities offerings, we
have raised approximately $687.0 million, net of offer-
ing expenses, from fiscal 1998 through fiscal 2004. As
of March 31, 2007, we had working capital of approx-
imately $467.2 million, including $229.0 million in cash
and cash equivalents, compared to working capital at
April 1, 2006, of $299.5 million, including $81.6 million
in cash and ¢ash equivalents.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating activities in fiscal 2007 provided cash of
$178.4 miilion, compared to $53.7 million in fiscal
2006. This increase in cash provided by operating activ-
ities was primarily the result of increased earnings. Also
contributing to the increase in operating cash flows was
the improvement in days sales outstanding (DSO) from
46 days at April 1, 2006 to 36 days at March 31, 2007,
as well as an improvement in our inventory turnover
from 5.1 at April 1, 2006 to 5.9 at March 31, 2007.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2007 was
$70.8 million compared to $6.1 million in fiscal 20086.
This increase was due primarily to higher purchases of
property, plant and equipment related to the expansion
of our manufacturing operations and lower proceeds
from maturities of available-for-sale securities. These
increases in cash used in investing activities were par-
tially offset by the proceeds received from the sale of
substantially all of our Bluetooth® assets during the
third quarter of fiscal 2007 as well as the cash received
from the sale of our equity interest in Jazz Semiconduc-
tor, Inc. during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

While our capital expenditures totaled approximately
$106.6 million during fiscal 2007, we are currently
evaluating a variety of options for further expansion
of our manufacturing operations in other U.S. and
non-t).S. locations for fiscal 2008. The actial amount
of capital expenditures will be dependent on our sourc-
ing strategy and the rate and pace of new technology
development. We currently expect to fund our 2008
capital expenditures primarily with cash fiow from
operations.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007 was $39.4 million, com-
pared to $7.9 million for the fiscal year ended April 1,
2006. This increase is primarily due 1o the proceeds
from a $25.0 million equipment term loan that we
entered into during the first quarter of fiscal 2007. This
loan financed the cost of equipment used in the man-
ufacturing capacity expansion projects, which were com-
pleted during fiscal 2007. In addition, we experienced
an increase in net proceeds from the exercise of stock
options and employee stock purchases during fiscal
2007.

Qur future capital requirements may differ materially
from those currently anticipated and will depend on
many factors, including, but not limited to, market
acceptance of our products, volume pricing conces-
sions, capital improvements, demand for our products,
technological advances and our relationships with sup-
pliers and customers. Based on current and projected
levels of cash flow from operations, coupled with our
fiscal 2004 note offering, as well as our $375.0 million
convertible note offering which was completed during
the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we believe that we have
sufficient tiquidity to meet both our short-term and long-
term cash requirements. However, if there is a signifi-
cant decrease in demand for our products, or in the
event that growth is faster than we had anticipated,
operating cash flows may be insufficient to meet our
needs. If existing resources and cash from operations
are not sufficient to meet our future requiremerts or if
we perceive conditions to be favorable, we may seek
additional debt or equity financing, additional credit
facilities, enter into sale-leaseback transactions or
obtain asset-based financing. We maintain a $500.0 mil-
lion shelf registration statement providing for the offer-
ing from time to time of debt securities, common stock,
preferred stock, depositary shares, warrants and sub-
scription rights. We do not, however, currently have any
plans to issue any securities under this registration
statement. We cannot be sure that any additional equity
or debt financing will not be dilutive to holders of our
common stock. Further, we cannot be sure that addi-
tional equity or debt financing, if required, will be avail-
able on favorable terms, if at all.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

Management does not believe that the effects of infla-
tion have had a significant impact on our net sales,
revenues or income from continuing operations during
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have transactions or relationships with “spe-
cial purpose” entities, and we do not have any off-bal-
ance sheet financing other than normal operating
leases.




CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
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The following table summarizes our significant contractual abligations and commitments (in thousands) as of March 31,
2007, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

Less than More than
Payments Due By Peariod 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Capital commitments $ 13,245 $13,245 $ - $ — $ -
Operating leases 49,712 8,634 21,734 14,848 4,396
Convertible debt (including interest) 242,075 3,450 6,900 231,725 —
Other debt (including interest} 27,005 5,653 11.308 10,046 —
Purchase obiigations 16.826 9,138 7.688 — —
Total $348,863 $40,120 $47,628 $256,719 $4,396

Capital Commitments

On March 31, 2007, we had capital commitments of
approximately $13.2 million, consisting of approxi-
mately $8.0 million for the expansion of our manufac-
turing capacity and the remainder for general corporate
requirements.

Operating lL.eases

We lease the majority of our corporate, wafer fabrication
and other facilities from several third party real estate
developers. The terms of these operating leases range
from 12 months to 15 years and several have renewal
options up to two 10-year periods. Several also include
standard inflation escalation terms. We also lease var-
ious machinery and equipment and office equipment
under noncancelable operating leases. The terms of
these operating leases range from two years to five
years. As of March 34, 2007, the total future minimum
lease payments were approximately $48.4 million
related to facility operating leases and approximately
$1.3 million related to equipment operating leases.

Convertible Debt
During fiscal 2004, we completed the private placement
of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.50%
convertible subordinated notes due 2010. The net pro-
ceeds of the offering were approximately $224.7 million
after payment of the underwriting discount and
expenses of the offering totaling $5.3 million. The net
proceeds from the 1.50% note offering were offset by

the repurchase ‘of $200.0 million of the $300.0 million .

aggrepgate principal amount of our 3.75% convertible
subordinated notes due 2005. On August 15, 2004, we
redeemed the remainder of the outstanding principal
amount of the 3.75% convertible subordinated notes for
$100.0 million plus accrued interest with cash flow from
operations and cash on hand.

Convertible Debt (Issued subseguent to fiscal 2007 and
not included in above contractual obligations table)

In April 2007, we issued $200 million aggregate princi-
pal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes
due 2012 (the “2012 Notes”) and $175 miltion aggre-
gate principal amount of 1.00% Convertible Subordi-
nated Notes due 2014 (the “2014 Notes", and
together with the 2012 Notes, the “Notes”). The Notes
were issued in a private placement to Merrill Lynch,

Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated for resale to qual-
ified institutional buyers. To date, offering expenses in
connection with the issuance of the Notes, including
discounts and commissions, are approximately
$8.6 million.

Interest on the Notes will be payable in cash semian-
nually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year,
beginning October 15, 2007. The 2012 Notes mature
on April 15, 2012, and the 2014 Notes mature on
April 15, 2014, The Notes will be subordinated unse-
cured obligations of the Company and will rank junior in
right of payment to alf of our existing and future senior
debt. The Notes effectively will be subordinated to the
indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

Holders may convert their Notes based on a cotwersion
rate of 124.2969 shares of our common stock per
$1,000 principal amount of Notes {which is equal to
an initial conversion price of approximately $8.05 per
share), subject to adjustment, only under the following
circumstances: (1) if the closing price of our common
stock reaches, or the trading price of the Notes falls
below, specified thresholds for a specified number of
trading days, (2) if specified distributions to holders of
our common stock oceur, (3} if a fundamentat change
oceurs or (4) during the last month prior to maturity of
the applicable Notes. Upon conversion, in lieu of shares
of our common stock, for each $1.000 principal amount
of Notes, a holder will receive an amount in cash equal
to the lesser of (i) $1,000 or (il) the conversion value, as
determined under the applicable indentures governing
the Notes. If the conversion value exceeds $1,000, we
also will deliver, at our election, cash or common stock
or a combination of cash and commoen stock equivalent
to the amount of the conversion value in excess of
$1,000. This election to deliver cash or common stock
if the conversion value exceeds the conversion price wifl
require us to evaluate the inclusion of shares in our
dilutive earnings per share calculation {based on the
treasury stock method) in the event our stock price
exceeds $8.05 per share.

Holders of the Notes who convert their Notes in con-
nection with a fundamental change, as defined in the
Indentures, may be entitled to a make whole premium in
the form of an increase in the conversion rate applicable
to their Notes, In addition, in the event of a fundamental
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‘ - change, holders of the Notes may require the Company

to purchase for cash all or a portion of their Notes,
" subject to specified exceptions, at a price equal to 100%
of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, up to, but not including, the
fundamental change purchase date.

Holders of the Notes are entitled to the benefits of a
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 4,
2007, between the Company and Merrill Lynch (the
“Registration Rights Agreement”). Under the Registra-
tion Rights Agreement, the Company has agreedtofile a
shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission covering resales of the Notes
and the common stock issuable upon conversion of the
Notes. The Company has agreed to use its reasonable
efforts to cause such registration statement to become
effective within 180 days of issuing the Notes, and to
keep the registration statement effective until the ear-
lier of {1) the sale pursuant to the shelf registration
statement of the Notes and all of the shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes, (2) the
date when the holders are able to sell all such securities
immediately pursuant to Rule 144(k) promulgated under
the Act and (3) the date that is two years from the
original issuance of the Notes.

Other Debt

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company
entered into a $25.0 million asset-based financing
agreement {“equipment term loan”}. The net proceeds
of approximately $24.8 million (after payment of admin-
istrative fees and issuance costs totaling $0.2 million)
were used primarily for wafer fabrication and assembly
expansions. The equipment term loan is payable in
equal monthly installments of principal and interest of
approximately $0.5 miltion, commencing on August 1,
2006, with a final balloon payment of approximately
$3.0 million due on July 1, 2011. The interest rate on
the equipment term loan is approximately 7.87%.

Pursuant to the equipment term loan, we must maintain,
on a quarterly basis, a ratio of senior funded debt to
EBITDA of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0, and unencum-
bered cash or cash-equivalent holdings of not less than
$50.0 million. Senior funded debt is defined as current-
and long-term debt plus capital leases, and EBITDA is
defined as (i) operating income under GAAP, plus
(i) depreciation and amortization expense, plus {iii} all
noncash expenses and losses, minus all non-<cash
income and gains.

Purchase Obligations

As of March 31, 2007, we had contractual obligations
for the purchase of goods or services totaling approx-
imately $16.8 million.

OTHER -

During fiscal 2007, we procured defective materials
from a third-party supplier, which we determined did
not meet our quality standards. The supplier agreed
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to accept financial responsibility for such defects and
after completion of the final inspection process, we
determined that the defective material had a value of
$5.9 million. As a result, the defective material was
scrapped, the associated inventory reserve was
reversed and a receivable was recorded from the sup-
plier. Also during fiscal 2007, we issued a credit to a
customer for $5.0 million as a result of this defective
material and reached an agreement for a full reimburse-
ment of this credit from a second third-party supplier
which also was recorded as a receivable. As of March 31,
2007, we have collected an aggregate of $4.4 million
from the responsible third-party suppliers.

In addition, during fiscal 2007, we received a notifica-
tion from another customer with respect to the failure in
the field of one of our infrastructure products due to an
alleged defect in the products. Our initial failure analysis
of returned products did not identify any defects in our
product. We are currently continuing the process of
conducting standard failure analysis procedures to
determine the root cause of the field failures and are
working with the customer to mitigate potential losses
associated with these field fallures. As of May 30,
2007, we had not completed this analysis or confirmed
that the associated failures were our responsibility.
Accordingly, we cannot reasonably estimate the amount
of our potential exposure for this matter.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires management to use judgment and estimates.
The level of uncertainty in estimates and assumptions
increases with the length of time until the underlying
transactions are completed. Actual resuits could ulti-
mately differ from those estimates. The accounting
policies that are most critical In the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements are those that are
both important to the presentation of our financial con-
dition and results of operations and require significant
judgment and estimates on the part of management.
Our critical accounting policies are reviewed periodically
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. We
also have other policies that we consider key accounting
policies, such as policies for revenue recognition (see
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements); how-
ever, these policies typically do not require us to make
estimates or judgments that are difficult or subjective.

Sales Returns Reserve. Qur terms and conditions do
not give our customers the right of return associated
with the original sale of our product. However, we will
authorize sales returns under certain circumstances,
including but not limited to perceived guality problems,
courtesy returns and like-kind exchanges.

We evaluate our estimate of returns by analyzing all
types of returns and the timing of such returns in relation
to the original sale. The reserve is adjusted to reflect
changes in the estimated returns versus the original
sale of product. Historically, our sales returns allowance
has not materially fluctuated as a percent of sales and




has remained at less than 1%. Establishing our sales
returns reserve requires judgment by management on

the nature of the returns and the timing of expected.

returns relative to the origina!l sale. Additional reduc-
tions to revenue would result if actual product returns
exceeded our estimates.

Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts. Allowance for doubt-
fut accounts is based on several factors, including his-
torical experience, the current business environment
and the length of time that the receivables are past
their contractual due date, as well as specific customer
circumstances.

Allowance for doubtful accounts has historically repre-
sented less than 1% of our sales and our accounts
receivable write-offs to date have been minimal. If the
financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make pay-
ments, additional allowances may be required that
would have a negative impact on operating expenses.

inventory Reserves. The valuation of inventory
requires us to estimate obsolete or excess inventory.
The determination of obsolete or excess inventory
requires us to estimate the future demand for our prod-
ucts within specific time horizons, generally six months.
The estimates of future demand that we use in the
valuation of inventory are the same as those used in
our revenue forecasts and are also consistent with the
estimates used in our manufacturing plans.

Historically, inventory reserves have fluctuated as new
technologies have been Introduced and customers’
demand shifts. With respect to the 2007, 2006 and
2005 fiscal years, reserves impacting margins have
been $7.3 million, $4.3 million. and $11.4 million,
respectively. If our demand forecast for specific prod-
ucts is greater than actual demand and we fail to reduce
manufacturing output accordingly, we could be required
to increase our reserves, which would have a negative
impact on gross profit.

Warranty Reserves. We sell products with a standard
warranty against defects of typically 12 to 27 months, in
each case depending on the specific type of product and
customer. We record estimates for product warranty
costs in the period of sale. The estimated accruals
are based on historical activity and we additionally
accrue for known warranties if a loss is probable and
can be reasonably estimated. Although we engage in
extensive product quality programs and processes, our
warranty obligation has been and may in the future be
affected by product failure rates, product recalls, repair
or field replacement costs and additiona!l development
costs incurred in correcting any product failure, as well
as possible claims for consequential costs. Should
actual product failure rates, or use of material or service
delivery costs differ from our estimates, additional war-
ranty reserves could be required. In that event, our
gross profit would be reduced. Warranty reserves have
represented less than 1% of our sales for the last three
fiscal years.
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intangible Assets and Goodwill. Goodwill is recorded
when the purchase price paid for a business exceeds
the estimated fair value of the net identified tangible
and intangible assets acquired. Intangibles are
recorded when such assets are acquired by purchase
or license. The amounts and useful lives assigned to
intangible assets acquired, other than goodwill, impact
the amount and timing of amortization. Any amounts
assigned to in-process research and development are
expensed immediately. The value of our intangibles,
including goodwilt, could be impacted by future adverse
changes such as: (i} any future declines in our operating
results, (i} a decline in the valuation of technology
company stocks, including the valuation of our common
stock, (iii} significant siowdown in the worldwide econ-
omy or the semiconductor industry, or {iv) any failure to
meet the performance projections included in our fore-
casts of future operating results. We evaluate these
assets on an annual basis in the fourth quarter or more
frequently if we believe indicators of impairment exist.

In order to evaluate goodwill, we use certain assump-
tions in analyzing existing goodwill, including two gener-
ally accepted valuation methodologies: (i} the income
approach — discounted cash flows, and (ii) the market
approach enterprise value and guideline company anal-
ysis. Qur impairment review process compares the fair
value of the reporting unit in which goodwill resides to its
carrying value, In conjunction with the sale of substan-
tially all of our Bluetooth® assets to QUALCOMM Incor-
porated in December 2006, we assessed impairment of
the affected goodwill and determined that no impair-
ment was indicated. In addition, during the fourth quar-
ter of fiscal 2007, we completed our most recent review
and determined that there was no impairment to our
recorded goodwill. We believe, however, that unforeseen
events, changes in circumstances or market conditions
could create differences in the value of goodwill that
could negatively affect the fair value of our assets and
result in an impairment charge.

In making impairment determinations for intangible
assets, we utilize estimates of future cash flows
expected to be generated by these assets, which are
based on additional assumptions such as asset utiliza-
tion, length of service that the specific asset will be used
in our operations and estimated salvage values. In
estimating future cash flows, we use our internal busi-
ness plan as reviewed and approved by our Board of
Directors. During fiscal 2007, as a result of our sale of
substantially all of our Bluetooth® assets, we revised
our cash flow estimates and recorded an impairment
charge to certain intangible assets of $0.3 million. Dur-
ing fiscal 2005, we restructured our WLAN chipset
development efforts and revised our cash fiow esti-
mates for certain intangible assets. As a result, we
recorded an impairment charge to intangibles of
$37.1 million.

Impairment of Long-ived Assets. We review the carry-
ing values of all long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying
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values may not bé recoverable. Factors that we consider
in deciding when to perform an impairment review
include significant under-performance of a business,
significant negative industry or economic trends, and
significant changes or planned changes in our use of
assets.

In making impairment determinations for longlived
assets, we utilize certain assumptions, including but
net limited to: (i) estimations and quoted market prices
of the fair market vatue of the assets; and (ii) estima-
tions of future cash flows expected to be generated by
these assets, which are based on additional assump-
tions such as asset utilization, length of service that the
asset will be used in our operations and estimated
salvage values. During fiscal 2007, as a result of our
sale of substantially all of our Bluetooth® assets, we
revised our cash flow estimates and recorded an impair-
ment charge to long-lived assets of $0.3 million.

During fiscal 2005, we discontinued our WLAN chipset
development efforts and revised our cash flow esti-
mates for certain assets. As a result, we recorded an
impairment charge to long-lived assets of $0.4 million.

Investments. We invest in available-for-sale securities
and privately-held companies. We review our invest
ments for impairment and make appropriate reductions
in the carrying value when an otherthantemporary
decline is evident.

During fiscal 2003, we entered into a strategic relation-
ship with Jazz, a privately-held RF and mixed signal
silicon wafer foundry, for silicon manufacturing and
development. As part of the strategic relationship, we
invested $60.0 million in Jazz, which resulted in an
approximate 11% ownership interest. During our second
quarter of fiscal 2007, Jazz entered into a merger
agreement with Acquicor Technology Inc. As a result
of this.announcement and our intention to sell our equity
interest in Jazz, we recorded an impairment charge of
$33.9 million and reduced our investment in Jazz to
$25.4 million. During our fourth quarter of fiscal 2007,
Jazz announced the completion of their merger with
Acquicor Technology and as a result, we received cash
of approximately $23.1 million and recorded a receiv-
able for the remaining funds related to a hold-back
provision in the agreement which we expect to receive
in calendar year 2008,

During fiscal 2006, no impairment charges were recog-
nized. During fiscal 2005, we recorded $0.1 million for
the impairment of a $5.0 million investment in the equity
of a privately-hetd company, for which a $4.9 million
charge had been recorded in previous periods. The fiscal
2005 charge of $0.1 million reduced the value of this
investment to zero. The impairment charge represented
management’s best estimate of otherthantemporary
decling in value.

We review all investments quarterly for indicators of
impairment. In making impairment determinations for
investments  in  privately-held companies and
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investments in available-for-sale securities, we consider
several factors, including each company's cash posi-
tion, financing needs, earnings, revenue outlook, oper-
ationa! performance, management or ownership
changes as well as competition. In making impairment
determinations for investments of available-for-sale
securities, we also review the current market price for
otherthan-temporary declines in values, Investments in
privately-held companies are inherently risky and require
significant judgment to identify events or circumstances
that would likely have a significant adverse effect on the
fair value of the investment. Investments in availa-
ble-for-sale securities may require management to
determine if the decline in the market value is
otherthan-temporary.

Share-Based Compensation. Effective on Aprit 2,
20086, we began preparing our financial statements in
accordance with SFAS 123(R) using the madified-pro-
spective method, and as a result, options that were
previously subject to variable accounting treatment are
now subject to the provisions of SFAS 123(R) and are no
longer accounted for as variable awards. SFAS 123(R)
requires all share-based payments, including grants of
stock options and restricted stock units, to be recog-
nized in our financial statements based on their respec-
tive grant date fair values. Under this standard, the fair
value of each employee stock option is estimated on the
date of grant using an option pricing model that meets
certain requirements. We currently use the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value
of our share-based payments. The Black-Scholes model
meets the requirements of SFAS 123(R), but the fair
values generated by the model may not be indicative of
the actual fair values of our share-based awards as this
model does not consider certain factors important to
share-based awards, such as continued employment,
periodic vesting requirements and limited transferabil-
ity. The determination of the fair value of share-based
payment awards utilizing the Black-Scholes model is
affected by our stock price and a number of assump-
tions, including expected volatility, expected life, risk-
free interest rate and expected dividends.

Expected Volatility

We use implied volatility based on publicly traded
options, as we believe implied volatility is more useful
than historical volatility in estimating expected volatility
because it is generally reflective of both historical vol-
atility and expectations of how future volatility will differ
from historical volatility. In determining the appropriate-
ness of implied volatility, we considered: (i) the volume
of market activity of publicly traded options and deter-
mined that there was sufficient market activity; (ii) the
ability to reasonably match the input variables of options
publicly traded to those of options granted by us, such
as the date of grant and the exercise price, and deter-
mined that the input assumptions were comparable;
and (jii) the length of term of publicly traded options
used to derive implied volatility, which is generally six




months to two years, and determined that the length of
term was sufficient,

If we determined that another method of estimating
expected volatility was more reasonable than our cur-
rent method, or if. another method for calculating
expected volatility was prescribed by authoritative guid-
ance, the fair value calculated for share-based awards
could change significantly. Higher volatility results in an
increase to share-hased compensation determined at
the date of grant,

Expected Term

The expected life of employee stock options represents
the weighted-average period the stock options are
expected to remain outstanding. Upon adoption of
SFAS 123(R), we changed our method of calculating
the expected term of an option based on the assumption
that all outstanding options will be exercised at the
midpeint of the current date and full contractual term,
combined with the average life of all options that have
been exercised or cancelled. Prior to the adoption of
SFAS 123(R), we estimated the expected term to bhe
based on a weighted average combining the average life
of options that have been cancelled or exercised with
the expected life of all unexercised options. The
expected life for unexercised options was based upon
the options reaching their full contractual term (i.e., the
10-year life of the option). We believe that this change
provides a better estimate of the future expected life
based on analysis of historical exercise behavioral data.

Risk-Free Interest Rate

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on
observed interest rates appropriate for the expected
terms of our stock options.

Expected Dividend Yield
The dividend yield assumption is based on our history
and expectation of dividend payouts.

Forfeitures

The amount of share-based compensation expense in
fiscal 2007 was reduced for estimated forfeitures
based on historical experience. Forfeitures are required
to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. We will evaluate the
assumptions used to value stock awards on a quarterly
basis. If factors change and we employ different
assumptions, share-based compensation expense
may differ significantly from what we have recorded in
the past. To the extent that we grant additional equity
securities to employees or we assume unvested secu-
rities in connection with any acquisitions, our share-
based compensation expense will be increased by the
additional unearned compensation resulting from those
additional grants or acquisitions. Had we adopted
SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the magnitude of the
impact of that standard on our results of operations
would have approximated the impact of SFAS 123,
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assuming the application of the Black-Scholes option
pricing model as described in the disclosure of pro
forma net income (loss) and pro forma net income {loss)
per share in Note 2 of our Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The fair value of our restricted stock awards is based on
the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant. Share-based compensation expense recognized
in our financial statements in fiscal 2007 is based on
awards that are ultimately expected to vest.

Income Taxes. In determining income for financial
statement purposes, we must make certain estimates
and judgments in the calculation of tax expense and the
resultant tax liabilities and in the recoverability of
deferred tax assets that arise from temporary differ-
ences between the tax and financial statement recog-
nition of revenue and expense.

As part of our financial process, we must assess the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets can be recovered.
If recovery is not likely, the provision for taxes must be
increased by recording a reserve in the form of a valu-
ation allowance for the deferred tax assets that are
estimated not to be ultimately recoverable. In this pro-
cess, certain relevant criteria are evaluated including
the existence of deferred tax liabilities that can be used
to absorb deferred tax assets, the taxable income in
prior carryback years that can be used to absorb net
operating losses and credit carrybacks, future expected
taxable income and prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In fiscal 2007, we continued to provide a
valuation allowance against substantially all of our U.S.
deferred tax assets, net of labilities. Our judgment
regarding future taxable income may change due to
future market conditions, changes in U.S. or interna-
tional tax laws and other factors. These changes, if any,
may require material adjustments to these deferred tax
assets and an accompanying reduction or increase in
net income in the period when such determinations are
made.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITAT'VE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We address our exposure to market risks, principally the
market risk associated with changes in interest rates,
thraugh a controlled program of risk management that
has in the past included the use of derivative financial
instruments, such as interest rate swap agreements.
We do not hold or issue derivatives, derivative commod-
ity instruments or other financial instruments for trading
or speculative purposes. We do not believe that our
exposure to market risk is material to our financial
position or results of gperations.

Short-term and Long-term Investments

Our investments in shortterm and longterm invest-
ments are classified as avaitablefor-sale securities
and are comprised of auction rate securities, corporate
debt securities, U.S. government/agency securities,
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equity securities, municipal securities and investments
in privately-held companies, in accordance with an
investment policy approved by our Board of Directors.
Classified as available-for-sale, all of these investments
are held at fair value. Although we manage investments
under an investment policy, economic, market and other
events may occur that we cannot control. Although the
risks are minimal, fixed rate securities may have their
fair value adversely impacted because of changes in
interest rates and credit ratings. Due in part to these
factors, our future investment income may fall short of
expectations because of changes in interest rates, or
we may suffer principal losses if we were to sell secu-
rities that have declined in value because of changes in
interest rates or issuer credit ratings.

Convertible Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

During fiscal 2004, we completed the private placement
of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.50%
convertible subordinated notes due 2010. The net pro-
ceeds of the offering were approximately $224.7 million
after payment of the underwriting discount and
expenses of the offering totaling $5.3 million. The net
proceeds from the 1.50% note offering were offset by
the repurchase of $200.0 million of the $300.0 million
aggregate principal amount of our 3.75% convertible
subordinated notes due 2005. On August 15, 2004, we
redeemed the remainder of the outstanding principal
amount of the 3.75% convertible subordinated notes for
$100.0 million plus accrued interest with cash flow from
operations and cash on hand.

Because our 1.50% convertible subeordinated notes due
2010 have a fixed interest rate, we do not have signif-
icant interest rate exposure on our fong-term debt. How-
ever, the fair value of the 1.50% convertible
subordinated notes is subject to significant fluctuations
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due to their convertibility into shares of our stock and
other market conditions. The fair value of these con-
vertible subardinated notes is also sensitive to fluctu-
ations in the general level of the U.S. interest rates. As
of March 31, 2007, the 1.50% convertible subordinated
notes had a fair value of $231.2 million. We would be
exposed to interest rate risk if we used additional financ-
ing to fund operating and investing activities. The inter-
est rate that we may be able to obtain on financings will
depend on market conditions at that time and may differ
from the rates that we have secured in the past.

As of March 31, 2007, we did not have any capital lease
obligations.

Forelgn Currency Risk

We have limited exposure to currency exchange fluctu-
ations, as we manage the sensitivity of our international
sales, purchases of raw materials and equipment by
denominating most transactions in U.S. dollars. In fiscal
2003, we completed the establishment of an operation
in Beijing, China, where domestic sales and purchases
are denominated in Renminbi. During fiscal 20086, the
China government ended the direct link between the
Renminbi to the U.S. dollar and changed to a more
flexible exchange rate system based on a group of world
currencies. This change in currency exchange rate peg-
ging to a more flexible system increases our foreign
currency risk fluctuations. The currency exchange rate
fluctuations in Renminbi are currently immaterial to our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

During fiscal 2007, the exchange rate decreased 3.6%

and we recognized foreign currency gains of $1.3 million.
During fiscal 2006, the exchange rate decreased 3.1%
and we recognized foreign currency gains of $0.7 million.
We do not currently engage in foreign currency hedging
transactions.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006
(tn thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 229,034 $ 81,588

Short-term investments (Notes 2 & 4} ) 89,678 68,949

Accounts receivable, less allowance of $366 and $386 as of March 31, 2007 and

April 1, 2008, respectively 102,307 115,715
Inventories (Notes 2 & 5) 112,975 116,782
Prepaid expenses 9,546 6,719
Other receivables (Note 2) 29,860 —
Other current assets 7,039 16,682

Total current assets 580,439 406,435
Property and equipment:

Land 3,208 3,206

Building 67,170 66,533

Machinery and equipment 466,235 389,347

Leasehold improvements 108,645 100,731

Furniture and fixtures 11,973 11,357

Computer equipment and software 29,806 27,492

687,035 598,666

Less accumulated depreciation {344,433} (280,164)

342,602 318,502
Construction in progress 30,853 22,791
_Total property and equipment, net 373,455 341,293
Goodwill (Notes 2, 6 & 7) 114,897 117,218
Intangible assets (Notes 2 & 6) 8,486 10,849
Investment in Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. (Notes 2 & 4) — 59,265
Long-term investments (Notes 2 & 4) 617 584
Other noncurrent assets 11,740 3,191
Total assets $1,089,634 $ 938,835
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -§ 61,203 ¢ 68,314

Accrued liabilities 417,726 34,458

Other current liabilities (Note 9} 4,287 260
Total current liabilities 113,216 103,032
Long-term debt, net of unamortized discount of $2,579 and $3,124 as of March 31,

2007 and April 1, 2006 respectively (Note 9) 245,709 226,876
Other long-term liabilities 11,042 9,570
Total liabilities 369,967 339,478
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 16}

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, no par value; 5,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and

outstanding — —
Common stock, no par value; 500,000 shares authorized; 194,151 and

190,280 shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and April 1,

20086, respectively 480,135 462,696
Additional paid-in capital 114,270 107,104
Deferred compensation —_ (12,265)
Accumuiated other comprehensive income, net of tax 379 355
Retained earnings 124,883 41,467

Total shareholders’ equity 719,667 599,357
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $1,089,634 $ 938,835

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year 2007 2008 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenue $1,023,615 $770,247 $634,204
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of goods sold 666,755 501,224 417,079

Research and development 184,979 168,858 156,464

Marketing and selling 53,863 52,121 47,408

General and administrative 37,301 29,5689 25,053

Other operating (income)} expense {Notes 7 and 10) {33,834) (251) 49,469
Total operating costs and expenses 909,064 751,541 695,474
Income (loss) from operaticns 114,551 18,706 (61.270)
Interest expense (4,583) (4,188) (6,5086)
Interest income 9,305 4,354 4,018
Loss in equity method investee — — (1,761)
Impairment of Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. investment (Note 4) {33,959) — —
Other income 1,085 1,339 b5
Income {loss) hefore income taxes 86,399 20,211 (65,464)
Income tax expense (2,983} (3,881) (581)
Net income (joss) $ 83416 $ 16,330 $(66,045)
Net income (loss) per share;

Basic S 043 $ 009 $ (0.35)

Diluted $ 039 § 008 $ (0.39)
Shares used in per share calculation:

Basic 192,137 188,832 186,985

Diluted 226,513 186,985

See accompanying notes,

192,781
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated
Common Stock Ag‘:‘ﬂ:{:" Defarred o her B, "
Shares Amount Capltal Comp { {Losa)} E g Total
(In thousands)
Balance, Aprli 3, 2004 186,257 $448,942 § 76,957 $(14,442) . $499 $ 91,182 $603,138
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — —_ — — — (66,045} (66,045)
Unrealized 1oss on marketable securities,
net of tax — — — — {258) — (256}
Foreign currency translation adjustment — —_ — — 67 — 67
Total comprehensive loss (189) {66,045) (66,234)
Issuance of restricted stock awards — — 3,135 {3,135) — — -_
Cancellation of restricted stock awards — — (1,581} 1.581 — — —_—
Exercise of stock options g75 1,713 — -_— — — 1.713
Issuance of common stock in connection with
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 831 4,057 — — — — 4,057
Amortization of deferred compensation — — — 5,376 — — 5,378
Balance, April 2, 2005 188,063 $454,712 $ 78511 $(10,620) $ 310 $ 25,137 $548,050
Comprehensive income:
Net income — —_ - — — 16,330 16,330
Unrealized gain on marketable securities,
net of tax —_— —_ — — 345 — 345
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — (300} — (300)
Total comprehensive income 45 15,330 16,375
Issuance of restricted stock awards — — 7,670 (7,670) — — —
Cancellation of restricted stock awards — — (B97) 897 — — —
Exercise of stock options 1,321 3.879 — — — —_ 3,879
Issuance of common stock in connection with
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 896 4,105 — — —_ —_ 4,105
Share-based compensation for option ’
modification — — 21,820 —_ — - 21,820
Amortization of deferred compensation — — — 5.128 — — 5,128
Balance, April 1, 2006 190,280 $462,696 $107,104 $(12,265) $ 355 $ 41,467 $599,357
Comprehensive income:
Net income : — — — — — 83,416 83,416
Unrealized loss on marketable securities,
net of tax — — —_ —_ (92) — {92)
Foreign currency translation adjustment —_ —_ — -_— 116 —_ 116
Total comprehensive income 24 83,916 83,440
Reclassification of deferred compensation in
relation to the adoption of SFAS 123(R) — — {12,265) 12,265 — — —
Exercise of stock options .3,079 12,838 _ — -— — 12,838
Issuance of commeoen stock in connection with
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 792 4,601 — - — — 4,601
Share-based compensation expense _ — 19,431 — —_ — 19,431
Balance, March 31, 2007 194,151 $480,135 $114.,270 $ — $ 379 $124.883 §719,667

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005
(in thousands}
Operating activities:
Net income (loss)} $ 83416 $ 18,330 $ (66,045)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation 71,501 63,729 56,576
Amortization 2,641 2,996 9,695
Deferred income taxes (1,420) 921 —
Gain on sale of substantially all Biuetooth® assets (36,378) — —
Impairment of fazz Semiconductor, In¢. investment 33,959 — —
Discontinuation of WLAN chipset development efforts — —_ 38,048
Acqguired in-process research and development cost — — 6,201
Foreign currency adjustments {1,353) (738} (38)
Loss on disposal of assets, net 1,227 415 913
Loss from equity method investee and otherthan-temporary decline of long:
term investment — — 1,815
Share-based compensation expense 21,183 25,025 5,376
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 13,936 {41,157) 11,850
Inventories 1,914 {39,769) (16,303)
Prepaid expenses and other current and non-current assets {17,482) (2,534) {6,814)
Accounts payable {7,185) 23,889 10,151
Accrued liabilities 8,607 3,172 3,536
Income taxes payable/recoverable income taxes 4,449 1,123 247
Other long-term liabilities (554) 284 1,249
Net cash provided by operating activities 178,441 53,686 56,357
Investing activities:
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (88,443) (124,404) (275,278)
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities 67,945 189,888 363,315
Proceeds from sale of substantially all Bluetooth® assels 32,618 — —
Purchase of businesses, net of cash received — (4,905) (10,070)
Proceeds from sale of equity interest in Jazz Semiconductor, Inc. 23,105 — —
Purchase of property and equipment (106,590) {66,108) {116,593)
Purchase of license — (809} (1,112)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 549 203 881
Net cash used in investing activities {70,818) (6,135) (38,857)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from equipment term loan 25,000 — —
Debt issuance costs (210) — —
Payment, of debt (2,854) — -
Extinguishment of the $300 million 3.75% convertible subordinated debt
offering — — {100,000}
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warrants and employee stock
purchases 17,439 7.984 5,770
Repayment of capital lease obligations ) — (41} - {247)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 39,375 7.943 (94,477}
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 146,998 55,494 (76,977)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 81,588 26,016 102,965
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 448 78 28
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $229,034 $ 81588 $ 26,016
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 4706 $ 3450 §$ 5355
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 5449 $ 1814 § 719

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements
March 31, 2007

1. COMPANY INFORMATION

RF Micro Devices, Inc. was incorporated under the laws
of the State of North Carolina in 1991. We are a global
leader in the design and manufacture of high-perfor-
mance RF components and system solutions for mobile
communications. Our PAs, transmit modules, cellular
transceivers, transceiver modules and SoC solutions
enable worldwide mobhility, provide enhanced connectiv-
ity and support advanced functionality in current- and
next-generation mobile devices, cellular base stations,
WLANSs and GPS. Our diverse portfolio of state-ofthe-art
semiconductor technelogies and industry-leading RF
systems expertise positions us as a preferred supplier
to the world's leading mobile device manufacturers.

We design and manufacture products using the major
applicable semiconductor process technologies avail-
able today. We have access to these technologies
through internal and external resources. Our approach
to using muttiple semiconductor process technologies
allows us to offer customers products that optimize
trade-offs between performance and cost and fulfill their
performance, cost and time-to-market requirements.
We call this approach Optimum Technology Matching®.

The Company reports information as one operating seg-
ment. Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB}
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131
{SFAS 131) established standards for the way that
public companies report information about operating
segments in annual consolidated financial statements.
Although the Company had three business units at
March 31, 2007 (Cellular, Wireless Connectivity and
Infrastructure), the Company reports information as
cne operating segment pursuant to the aggregation
criteria set forth in SFAS 131.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND OTHER MATTERS

Principles of Consclidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsid-
iaries. All significant intercompany accounts and trans-
actions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Periods

The Company uses a 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending
on the Saturday closest to March 31 of each year. The
most recent three fiscal years ended on March 31,
2007, April 1, 2006, and April 2, 2005. Fiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005 were 52-week years.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the fiscal 2006 and 2005 consol-
idated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to the March 31, 2007 presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on the statement of
operations,

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based
Payment”, the Company presented deferred compensa-
tion as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. In
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R), on
April 2, 2006, the Company reclassified the balance
in deferred compensation to additional pald-in-capital on
the balance sheet. The remaining reclassifications are
related to deferred tax asset and liability classifications.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-
term investments, accounts receivable, accounts pay-
able and other accrued liabilities approximate fair val-
ues as of March 31, 2007, and April 1, 2006. The 1.50%
convertible subordinated notes had a fair value of
$231.2 million as of March 31, 2007, on the Private
Offerings, Resale and Trading through Automated Link-
ages (PORTAL) Market compared to the carrying amount
of $227.6 million. At April 1, 2006, the Company's
1.50% convertible subordinated notes had a fair value
of $283.2 million on the PORTAL Market, compared to
the carrying amount of $226.9 million. The fair values of
the cost method investments are not estimated unless
there are events or changes identified that may have a
significant adverse effect on the fair value; such esti-
mates of fair value could not be made without incurring
excessive costs.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. The Company makes estimates
for the returns reserve, allowance for doubtful
accounts, inventory reserves, warranty reserves,
income tax valuation, impairment of investments, good-
will, longlived assets and other financial statement
amounts on a regular basis and makes adjustments
based on historical experiences and expected future
conditions. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents consist of demand deposit
accounts, money market funds, commercial paper and
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temporary, highly tiquid investments with original matu-
rities of three months or less when purchased.

Investments
The Company invests in available-for-sale securities and
privately-held companies.

Available-for-Sale Investments

Investments are accounted for in accordance with State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments In Debt and Equity
Securities” (SFAS 115). Investments available-for-sale
at March 31, 2007, and April 1, 2006 consisted of
corporate debt securities, U.S. government/agency
securities, auction rate securities and equity and munic-
ipal securities. Available-for-sale securities are carried
at fair velue as determined by quoted market prices,
with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
reported as a separate component of shareholders’
equity in accordance with SFAS 115. The cost of secu-
rities sold is based on the specific identification method
and any realized gain or loss is included in other
{expense) income. The amortized cost of debt securities
is adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of
discounts and is included as a portion of interest. The
Company monitors investments for impairment and
records otherthan-temporary declines in value if the
market value is estimated to be below its cost basis
for an extended period or the issuer has experienced
significant financial difficulties.

Other Investments

The Company’s other investments include investments
in privately-held companies. Pursuant to APB 18, the
Company accounts for these investments either at his-
torical cost or, if the Company has significant influence
over the investee, the Company accounts for these
investments using the equity method of accounting.
As of March 31, 2007, the Company did not have any
investments in privately-held companies.

The Company reviews all of its investments quarterly for
indications of impairment. In making impairment deter-
minations for investments in privately-held companies
and investments in available-for-sale securities, the
Company considers certain factors, including each com-
pany’s cash position, financing needs, earnings, reve-
nue outlook, operational performance, management or
ownership changes as well as competition, In making
impairment determinations for investments of availa-
ble-for-sale securities, the Company also reviews the
current market price for otherthan-temporary declines
in values following the latest guidance required by Finan-
cial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Emerging
Issues Task Force Issue 03-01, “The Meaning of
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Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application
to Certain Investments.”

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market
determined using the average cost method. The Com-
pany's business is subject to the risk of technological
and design changes. The Company evaluates inventory
levels quarterly against sales forecasts on a product
family basis to evaluate its overall inventory risk.
Reserves are adjusted to reflect inventory values in
excess of forecasted sales as well as overall inventory
risk assessments by management. in the event the
Company sells inventory that had been covered by a
specific inventory reserve, the sale is recorded at the
actual selling price and the related cost of goods sold at
the full inventory cost, net of the reserve. Inventory
deemed obsolete pursuant to Company policy regarding
inventory obsolescence is required by the policy to be
carried for a period not to exceed one year so that
customers may be notified and find a suitable
replacement,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation
of property and equipment is provided using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, ranging from two to 20 years. The Company's
assets acquired under capital leases and leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the
asset life or lease term and included in depreciation.
In accordance with SFAS 34, “Capitalization of Interest
Cost”, the Company capitalizes the portion of the inter-
est expense related to the assets that are not ready for
their intended use.

Other Receivables -

The Company records miscellaneous non-product
receivables which are collectible within twelve months.
The other receivables category on the Company’s Con-
solidated Balance Sheets includes value added tax
receivables, third-party supplier receivables for quality
issues and other miscellaneous items.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangibles consist primarily of technology licenses and
assets resulting from business combinations. Technoi-
ogy licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the lesser of the estimated useful life of the technology
or the term of the license agreement, ranging from three
to 20 years. Acquired product technology and other
intangible asset costs are also amortized on a
straightline basis over the estimated useful life, ranging
from two to 10 years.

41




RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company assesses the recoverability of its intangi-
bles and other assets by determining its ability to gen-
erate future cash flows sufficient to recover the
unamortized balances over the most current estimate
of their remaining useful lives. Intangibles and other
assets determined to be unrecoverable based on future
cash flows would be written off in the period in which the
non-recoverability determination was made as required
by SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Gther Intangible
Assets” (SFAS 142) and SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
{SFAS 144),

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination. SFAS 142 elimi-
nates the amortization of goodwill and instead requires
that goodwill be evaluated for impairment on an annual
basis, or whenever events indicate impairment may
have occurred. In accordance with SFAS 142, the Com-
pany assesses impairment of acquired goodwill on an
annual basis on the first day of the fourth quarter in
each fiscal year. Upon completion of the fiscal 2007 and
2006 impairment assessments, no impairment was
indicated as the estimated fair values of the reporting
units exceeded their respective carrying values. The
methods used to evaluate goodwill included two gener-
ally accepted valuation methodologies: the income
approach and the market approach. The specific meth-
ods applied include the discounted cash flow method,
the allocation of market capitalization method, and the
guideline company method.

The value of acquired in-process research and develop-
ment is determined by estimating the costs to develop
the purchased in-process research and development
into a commergially viable product, estimating the
resulting cash flows from the sale of the products
resulting from the completion of the in-process research
and development and discounting the net cash flows
using a present value factor. The acquired in-process
research and development with no alternative future use
is charged to expense at the acquisition date in accor-
dance with SFAS 141. See Note 7 to the Censolidated
Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's net revenue is generated principally
from sales of semiconductor products. Such sales rep-
resented approximately 99% of its total net revenue in
each of fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005. The Company
derives the remaining balance of its net revenue from
non-recurring engineering fees and cost-plus contracts
for research and development work, which collectively
are typically less than 1% of consclidated revenue for
any period. Sales of products are generally made
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through either the Company’s sales force, manufactur-
ers’ representatives or through a distribution network,
In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion {SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104,
Revenue Recognition, the Company recognizes revenue
from product sales when the fundamental criteria are
met, such as the time at which the title and risk and
rewards of product ownership are transferred to the
customer, price and terms are fixed, no significant ven-
dor obligation exists and collection of the resulting
receivable is reasonably assured. Revenue from the
majority of the Company's semiconductor products is
recognized upon shipment of the product to the buyer
from a Company-owned or third-party location. A smaill
percentage of revenue generated from the sale of semi-
conductor products through a distribution relationship is
partially deferred based on the terms specified in the
agreement with the distributor, Revenue from non-recur-
ring engineering fees is recognized when the service is
completed or upon certain milestones as provided for in
the agreements. Revenue from cost plus contracts is
recognized on the percentage of completion method
based on the costs incurred to date and the total con-
tract amount, plus the contractual fee. Pricing allow-
ances, including discounts based on the contractual
arrangements with customers, are recorded when rev-
enue is recognized as a reduction to both accounts
receivable and revenue. The Company’s revenue recog-
nition policy is significant because revenue is a key
component of the Company’s operations and the timing
of revenue recognition determines the timing of certain
expenses, such as sales commissions.

Accounts receivable are recorded for all revenue items
listed above. The Company evaluates the collectibility of
accounts receivable based on a combination of factors.
In cases where the Company Is aware of circumstances
that may impair a specific customer’s ability to meet its
financial obligations subsequent to the original sale, the
Company will record an allowance against amounts due,
and thereby reduce the receivable to the amount the
Company reasonably believes will be collected. For all
other customers, the Company recognizes allowances
for doubtful accounts based on the length of time the
receivables are past due, industry and geographic con-
centrations, the current business environment and the
Company's historical experience. Based on these fac-
tors, the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts
has typically represented less than 1% of sales and
accounts receivable write-offs to date have been mini-
mal. The Company relates its low write-pffs to the finan-
cial strength of its customers, conservative payment
terms and stringent credit policies.

The Company’s terms and conditions do not give its
customer the right of return associated with the original
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sale of its product. However, the Company will authorize
sales returns under certain circumstances which
include perceived quality problems, courtesy returns
- and like-kind exchanges. The Company evaluates its
estimate of returns by analyzing all types of returns
and the timing of such returns in relation to the original
sale. The reserve is adjusted to reflect changes in the
estimated returns versus the original sale of product.
Historically, sales returns have not fluctuated as a per-
cent of sales and have remained at approximately 1%.

The Company sells its products with a standard warranty
against defects of typically 12 to 27 menths, in each
case depending on the specific type of product and
customer. The Company records estimates for product
warranty costs in the period of sale. The estimated
accruals are based on historical activity. The Company
additionally accrues for known warranties if a l0ss is
probable and can be reasonably estimated. The accrual
and related expenses for estimated and known issues
were not significant during the periods presented and
were less than 1% of sales.

Shipping and Handling Cost

The Company recognizes amounts billed to a customer
in a sale transaction related to shipping and handling as
revenue, The costs incurred by the Company for shipping
and handling are classified as cost of goeds sold.

Research and Development
The Company charges all research and development
costs to expense as incurred.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.
The Company recognized advertising expense of
$0.6 miltion, $0.7 miilion and $0.9 million for fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(SFAS 109). Under SFAS 109, the liability method is
used in accounting for income taxes, and deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differ-
ences between the financial reporting and tax basis of
assets and liabilities.

Share-Based Compensation
Summary of Stock Option Plans

1992 Stock Option Pian

The Company's 1992 Stock Option Plan (the 1992
Option Plan) was adopted by the Company and its share-
holders in February 1992, The 1992 Option Plan
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provided for the granting of both incentive and non-
qualified options to purchase common stock 1o key
employees, non-employee directors and advisors and
consultants in the service of the Company. The 1992
Option Plan was terminated following the Company’s
initial public offering in June 1997, at which time options
to purchase 8.7 million shares had been granted.

1997 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan

In April 1997, the Company and its shareholders
adopted the 1997 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan
(the 1997 Option Plan}, which provides for the granting
of options to purchase common stock to key employees
and independent contractors in the service of the Com-
pany. The 1997 Option Plan permits the granting of both
incentive options and nongualified options. The aggre-
gate number of shares of common stock that may be
issued pursuant to options granted under the 1997
Option Plan may not exceed 10.4 million shares, subject
to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events
affecting the Company's capitalization.

Directors’ Option Plan

In April 1997, the Company and its shareholders
adopted the Non-Empioyee Directors’ Stock Option Plan.
Under the terms of this plan, directors who are not
employees of the Company are entitled to receive
options to acquire shares of common stock. An aggre-
gate of 1.6 million shares of common stock have been
reserved for issuange under this plan, subject to adjust-
ment for certain events affecting the Company’s capi-
talization. During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
the Company issued options to purchase zero, 140,000
and 140,000 shares, respectively, to eligible partici-
pants under the plan.

1999 Stock Incentive Plan

The 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the 1999 Stock Plan),
which the Company's shareholders approved at the
1999 annual meeting of shareholders, provides for
the issuance of a maximum of 16.0 million shares of
common stock pursuant to awards granted thereunder.
The maximum number of shares of common stock that
may be issued under the plan pursuant to grant of
restricted awards shall not exceed 2.0 million shares.
The number of shares reserved for issuance under the
1999 Stock Plan and the terms of awards may be
adjusted upon certain events affecting the Company’'s
capitalization. No awards may be granted under the
1999 Stock Plan after June 30, 2009.

RF Nitro Communications, inc. 2001 Stock Incentive
Plan

In connection with its merger with RF Nitro, the Company
assumed the RF Nitro Communications, Inc. 2001 Stock
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Incentive Plan. This plan provides for the grant of
options to purchase common stock to key employees,
non-employee directors and consultants in the service
of the Company. This plan permits the grant of incentive,
nonqualified and restricted stock awards. The aggregate
number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan
is 52,123, The terms of awards may be adjusted upon
certain events affecting the Company's capitalization.
No awards may be granted under the plan after May 28,
2011.

Resonext Communications, inc. 1939 Stock COption
Plan

In connection with its merger with Resonext, the Com-
pany assumed the Resonext 1999 Stock Option Plan,
This plan provides for the grant of options to purchase
common stock to key employees, non-employee direc-
tors and consultants in the service of the Company. This
plan permits the grant of incentive and nongualified
options, but does not allow for restricted grants. Stock
purchase rights may also be granted under the plan. The
aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance
under the plan is 1.4 million shares. The terms of
awards may be adjusted upon certain events affecting
the Company’'s capitalization, No awards may be
granted under the plan after November 23, 2009.

2003 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company currently grants stock options and
restricted stock awards to employees under the 2003
Stock Incentive Plan (the 2003 Plan). The Company's
shareholders approved the 2003 Stock Plan at the
2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on July 22,
2003 and, effective upon that approval, new stock
option and other share-based awards for employees
may be granted only under the 2003 Plan. The Company
is also permitted to grant other types of equity incentive
awards, such as stock appreciation rights, restricted
units, and performance awards and performance units
under the 2003 Plan, although none of these types of
awards has been granted as of March 31, 2007. In the
past, the Company had various employee stock and
incentive plans under which stock options and other
share-based awards were granted. Stock options and
other share-based awards that were granted under prior
plans and were outstanding on July 22, 2003, continue
in accordance with the terms of the respective plans. At
the Company’'s Annual Meeting of Shareholders on
August 1, 2006, shareholders of the Company:
{a) amended the 2003 Plan to (1) increase the aggre-
gate number of shares issuable under the 2003 Plan by
15.0 million, (2) increase the maximum number of
shares that may be issued pursuant to the exercise
of incentive stock options by 15.0 million, and (3} modify
the list of performance factors that may apply to
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performance-based awards granted to “covered employ-
ees” (generally the chief executive officer and four other
highest compensated executive officers) under Sec-
tion 162(m} of the Internal Revenue Code of 19886, as
amended (the “Code”) and related regulations; and
{p) approved the 2003 Plan’s eligibility and participant
award limitations for Code Section 162(m) purposes.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the
2003 Plan may not exceed the sum of {a) 24.3 million
shares, plus (b} any shares of common stock (i) remain-
ing available for issuance as of the effective date of the
2003 Plan under the Company’s prior plans and (ii) sub-
ject to an award granted under a prior plan, which awards
are forfeited, canceled, terminated, expire or lapse for
any reason. As of March 31, 2007, 15.4 million shares
were available for issuance under the 2003 Plan,

2006 Directors' Stock Option Plan

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders on
August 1, 2006, shareholders of the Company adopted
the 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan, which replaced
the Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and
reserved an additional 1.0 million shares of common
stock for issuance to non-employee directors. Under the
terms of this plan, directors who are not employees of
the Company are entitled to receive options to acquire
shares of common stock. An aggregate of 1.4 million
shares of common stock have been reserved for issu-
ance under this plan, including shares remaining avail-
able for issuance under the prior non-employee
directors stock option plan. As of March 31, 2007,
1.2 million shares were available for issuance under
the 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In April 1997, the Company adopted its Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (ESPP), which qualifies as an “employee
stock purchase plan” under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code. All regular fulltime employees of the
Company (including officers) and all other employees
who meet the eligibility requirements of the plan may
participate in the ESPP. The ESPP provides eligible
employees an opportunity to acquire the Company’s
common stock at 85% of the lower of the closing price
per share of the Company's commaon stock on the first or
last day of each six-month purchase period. At the
Company's Annual Meeting of Shareholders on
August 1, 2008, shareholders of the Company amended
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase the
aggregate number of shares issuable under the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan by 4.0 million shares.
At March 31, 2007, 3.3 million shares were available for
future issuance under this plan and are available for
purchase thereunder, subject to antidilution adjust-
ments in the event of certain changes in the capital
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structure of the Company. The Company makes no cash
contributions to the ESPP, but bears the expenses of its
- administration. The Company issued 0.8 million shares
under this plan in the year ended March 31, 2007.

For fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the primary share-
based awards and their general terms and conditions
are as follows:

Stock options are granted to employees with an exercise
price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock
at the date of grant, generally vest over a four-year period
from the grant date and expire 10 years from the grant
date. Restricted stock awards granted by the Company
generally vest over afive-year period from the grant date.
Stock options granted to non-employee directors upon
re-election to the Board of Directors in fiscal 2006 had
an exercise price equal to the market price of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant, vested over a
two-year period from the grant date and expire 10 years
from the grant date. Under the ‘new 2006 Directors
Stock Option Plan, stock options granted to non-
employee directors in fiscal 2007 had an exercise price
equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the
date of grant, vested immediately upon grant and expire
10 years from the grant date. Each nonemployee direc-
tor who is first elected or appointed to the Board of
Directors will receive an initial option at an exercise price
equal to the market price of the Company's stock at the
date of grant, vest over a two-year pericd from the grant
date and expire 10 years from the grant date.

The options granted to certain officers of the Company
generally will, in the event of the officer's termination
other than for cause, continue to vest pursuant to the
same vesting schedule as if the officer had remained an

employee of the Company (unless the administrator of |

the 2003 Plan determines otherwise). For such options
granted prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R}, the Com-
pany will continue to recognize the expense related to
these options over the vesting period of the option. With
respect to options awarded to certain officers that were
granted or modified after the adoption of SFAS 123(R),
the Company will recognize the expense for such awards
upon grant. In fiscal 2007, share-based compensation
of $5.5 million was recognized upon the grant of 1.6 mil-
lion options and restricted awards to certain officers of
the Company. Had the Company applied the new amor-
tization policy under SFAS 123(R) for awards issued
prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the impact on
total pre-tax share-based compensation expense recog-
nized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations
would have been $(2.9) million for the year ended
March 31, 2007. For fiscal 2006 and 2005, the impact
would have been $6.3 million and $(2.6) million,
respectively.

RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2007

Share-Based Compensation

On April 2, 2006 (the first day of the Company’s 2007
fiscal year), the Company adopted the provisions of
SFAS 123(R) using a modified prospective application.
Under SFAS 123(R}, share-based compensation cost is
measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair
value of the award using an option pricing model, and is
recognized as expense over the employee's requisite
service period. SFAS 123(R) covers a wide range of
share-based compensation arrangements including
stock options, restricted share plans, performance-
based awards, share appreciation rights and employee
stock purchase plans.

Under the modified prospective method of adoption for
SFAS 123(R), the compensation cost recognized by the
Company beginning in fiscal 2007 includes (a) compen-
sation cost for all equity incentive awards granted prior
to, but not yet vested as of April 2, 20086, based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
original provisions of SFAS 123, and (b} compensation
cost for all equity incentive awards granted subseguent
to April 2, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 123(R). in addition, under the madified prospec-
tive application, prior periods are not revised for com-
parative purposes. The Company uses the straight-line
attribution method to recognize share-based compen-
sation costs over the service period of the award for
awards granted subsequent to the adoption of
SFAS 123(R). For options issued prior to the adoption
of SFAS 123(R}), the Company uses the accelerated
attribution method to recognize share-based compen-
sation costs over the service period of the award, amor-
tizing each separately vesting portion of the award as a
unique award.

Total pre-tax share-based compensation expense recog-
nized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was
$19.3 million for the year ended March 31, 2007. In
addition, as of March 31, 2007, $0.2 million of share-
based compensation expense was capitalized into
inventory. For fiscal 2006 and 2005, the total pre-tax
share-based compensation expense recognized was
$25.0 million and $5.4 million, respectively. For fiscal
2006, $1.9 million of sharehased compensation
expense was capitalized into inventory and recognized
in the first guarter of fiscal 2007,

Amounts recorded in fiscal 2005 primarily represented
expenses related to restricted stock awards since no
expense was recognhized for stock options. In fiscal
20086, the Company recognized a charge to compensa-
tion expense of approximately $19.2 million as a result
of variable accounting, based upon the quoted price for
the Company's common stock at April 1, 2006, of
$8.65.
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For fiscal 2006 and 2005, the Company accounted for
employee stock options, employee restricted stock and
its employee stock purchase plan in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No, 25, “Account-
ing for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB 25). Under
APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized for
stock options or restricted stock issued to employees
with exercise prices or share prices at or above guoted
market value or for the employee stock purchase plan,
which are non-compensatory under APB 25. For
restricted stock granted at exercise prices below quoted
market value, the Company recorded deferred compen-
sation expense for the difference between the price of
the underlying shares and the market value. Deferred
compensation expense was amortized ratably over the
vesting period of the shares of restricted stock. In
addition, to the extent that stock options or restricted
stock awards were subject to the stock option exchange
offer discussed below, such options and restricted
stock awards were subject to variable accounting
treatment.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2006 at the Com-
pany's annual meeting, the Company's shareholders
approved a stock option exchange program for eligible
Company employees, excluding the Company's five
most highly compensated officers, members of its
Board of Directors, consultants, and former and retired
employees. Under the exchange program, eligible
employees were given the opportunity to exchange cer-
tain of their outstanding stock options previously
granted to them at exercise prices ranging from
$5.38 to $87.50, for new options to be granted on or
as soon as practicable after the first business day after
expiration of the exchange program. The ratio of
exchanged eligible options to new options was
two-to-one, meaning that one new option share was
issued in exchange for every two canceled option
shares. As a result of the exchange program, approxi-
mately 9.4 million old options were canceled {with exer-
cise prices ranging from $6.84 to $87.50) on August 5,
2005 and approximately 4.7 million new options were
granted under the Company's 2003 Stock Incentive
Plan on August 8, 2005, with an exergise price of
$6.06 (the closing price of the Company’s common
stock as reported by the Nasdaqg National Market
{now the NASDAQ Global Select Market) on the trading
date immediately preceding the date the new gptions
were granted}. The new options generally will vest and
become exercisable over a two-year period, with 25% of
each new option generally becoming exercisable after
each six-month period of continued service following the
grant date.

As a result of the exchange program and in accordance
with the guidance of FIN 44, the Company was required
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to apply variable accounting prospectively to these new
options (and to any options granted with a lower exercise
price than the canceled options in the six-month look-
back and lock-forward periods} until the options were
exercised, cancelled or expire. In addition, in accor-
dance with the guidance of the FASB’'s EITF Issue
No. 00-23, “Issues Related to the Accounting for Stock
Compensation under APB Opinion No. 25 and FASB
Interpretation No. 44,7 the options that were retained
by eligible employees who did not participate in the
exchange program were also subject to variable
accounting until the options in gquestion were exercised,
forfeited or expire unexercised. The options that were
previously subject to variable accounting treatment are
now subject to the provision of SFAS 123(R) and are no
longer accounted for as variable awards.

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) and no longer
applying variable accounting in accordance with APB
25, the Company's income from continuing operations,
income before income taxes and net income for year
ended March 31, 2007, is $31.6 million lower than if it
had continued to account for share-based compensa-
tion under APB 25.

For fiscal 2007, basic and diluted earnings per share
are $0.16 lower and $0.14 lower, respectively, than if
the Company had continued to account for share-based
compensation under APB 25,

Cash flow from operations and cash flow from financing
activities did not change as a result of adopting
SFAS 123(R} hecause the Company did not recognize
any excess tax benefit. SFAS 123(R) requires that the
cash flows resulting from the tax benefits created by the
tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost
recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) be
classified as financing cash flows,




Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

A summary of activity of the Company's directors and
employee stock option plans follows:

Welghted-

Welghted-  Average

Average Remaining  Aggregate
Exerclse Contractual Intrinslc
Shares Price Term Value
(0 thousands) {In years) (in thousands}
Qutstanding as of
April 1, 2006 22427 £71.36
Granied 3.787 $6.29
Exercised {2.575} $4.97
Forfeited 472 $6.34
Canceled {143 $9.70
Outstanding as of
March 31, 2007 23,024 $1.46 6.02 $9,890
Vested and expected
to vest as of
March 31, 2007 22,933 $7.46 6.01 $9,875
Options erercisable
as of March 31,
2007 16,024 $8.04 5.12 $8,672

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above repre-
sents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based upon the
Company's closing stock price of $6.23 as of March 31,
2007, that would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders with inthe-money options
exercised their options as of that date.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model
that uses the assumptions noted in the following tabtes:

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005
Expected volatility 52.5% 458% 485%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected term (in years) 5.0 7.7 7.7
Risk-free interest rate 4.9% 4.6% 4.2%
Weighted-average grant-date fair

value of options granted during

the period $3.03 $290 3$3.80

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the
year ended March 31, 2007 was $8.4 million. For fiscal
years 2006 and 2005, the total intrinsic value of options
exercised was $2.2 milion and $2.3 million,
respectively.

Cash received from the exercise of stock options and
from participation in the employee stock purchase plan
was $17.4 million for the year ended March 31, 2007
and is reflected in cash flows from financing activities in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The Com-
pany settles employee stock options with newly issued
shares of the Company’s common stock.

The Company used the implied volatility of market-
traded opticns on the Company’s common stock for
the expected volatility assumption input to the Black-
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Scholes option-pricing modet, consistent with the guid-
ance in SFAS 123(R) and the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. The
selection of implied volatility data to estimate expected
volatility was based upon the availability of actively-
traded options on the Company’s common stock and
the Company’'s assessment that implied volatility is
more representative of future common stock price
trends than historical volatility.

The dividend yield-assumpticn is based on the Compa-
ny's history and expectation of future dividend payouts
and may be subject to change in the future. The Com-
pany has never paid a dividend.

The expected life of employee stock options represents
the weighted-average period that the stock options are
expected to remain outstanding. Upon adoption of
SFAS 123(R), the Company changed its method of cal-
culating the expected term of an option based on the
assumption that all outstanding options will be exer-
cised at the midpoint of the current date and fuli con-
tractual term,-combined with the average life of all
options that have been exercised or canceled. Prior to
the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company estimated
the expected term to be based on a weighted average
combining the average life of options that have been
canceled or exercised with the expected life of all unex-
ercised options. The expected life for unexercised
options was based upon the options reaching their full
contractual term {i.e., the 10-year life of the option}. The
Company believes that this change provides a better
estimate of the future expected life based on analysis of
historical exercise behavioral data.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon
observed interest rates appropriate for the terms of the
Company’'s employee stock options.

SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
Based upon historical pre-vesting forfeiture experience,
the Company assumed an annualized forfeiture rate of
1.5% for stock options and 2.6% for restricted stock
awards. In the Company's pro forma information
required under SFAS 123 for the periods prior to fiscal
2007, the Company also estimated pre-vesting forfei-
tures for stock options based upeon historical experi-
ence. For restricted stock awards, the Company
accounted for forfeitures as they occurred prior to the
adoption of SFAS 123(R).

On November 10, 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position
No. SFAS 123R-3, Transition Election Related to
Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment
Awards (“SFAS 123R-3"). The Company has elected
to adopt the alternative transition method provided in
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SFAS 123R-3 for calculating the tax effects of share-
based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123(R). The
alternative transition method includes simplified meth-
ods to establish the beginning balance of the additional
paid-in capital pool (“APIC Pool”) related to the tax
effects of employee share-based compensation
expense, and to determine the subsequent impact on
the APIC Pool and unaudited consolidated statements of
cash flows of the tax effects of employee share-based
compensation awards that were outstanding at the
Company's adoption of SFAS 123(R). In addition, in
accordance with SFAS 123(R), SFAS No. 109, Account-
ing for Income Taxes (*SFAS 109"), and EITF Topic D-32,
intraperiod Tax Allocation of the Tax Effect of Pretax
Income from Continuing Operations, the Company has
elected to recognize excess income tax benefits from
stock option exercises in additional paid-in capital pur-
suant to the ordering provisions of the applicable tax
laws.

The following activity has occurred under our existing
restricted share plans:

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value
{in thousands)
Balance at April 1,
2006 2,104 $6.91
Granted 721 5,95
Vested {474) 8.55
Forfeited (58) 5.91
Balance at March 31,
2007 2,293 $6.29

As of March 31, 2007, total remaining unearned com-
pensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock
was $10.6 million, which will be amortized over the
weighted-average remaining service period of 3.3 years.

The total fair value of restricted stock awards vested
during the year ended March 31, 2007, was $3.2 mil-
lion, based upon the fair market value of the Company's
common stock on the vesting date. For fiscal 2006 and
2005, the total fair value of restricted stock awards
vested were $2.5 million and $2.6 million, respectively.
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Pro Forma Information under SFAS 123 for Periods
Prior to Fiscal 2007

Fiscal 2006 _ Flscal 2005

Net income {l0ss), as reported $ 16,330 $ (66,045}
Non-cash share-based

compensation included in

net income 25,025 5,376
Pro forma share-based

compensation cost (15,259) (56,901)

Pro forma net income (loss) $ 26,096 $(117,570)
Basic income {loss} per share, '

as reported $ 0.09 $ (0.35)
Diluted net income (loss) per

share, as reported $ 0.08 $ (0.35)
Pro forma basic net income

(loss} per share $ 014 £ (0.63)
Pro forma diluted net income

{loss) per share $ 0424 $ (0.63)

The Company previously accounted for awards granted
under its equity incentive plans under the intrinsic value
method prescribed by APB 25 and related interpreta-
tions, and provided the required pro forma disclosures
required by SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure”.
Under APB 25, no compensation expense was recog-
nized for stock options or restricted stock issued to
employees with exercise prices or share prices at or
above quoted market value or for the employee stock
purchase plan, which are non-compensatory under APB
25. For restricted stock granted at exercise prices below
quoted market value, the Company recorded deferred
compensation expense for the difference between the
price of the underlying shares and the market value.
Deferred compensation expense was amortized ratably
over the vesting period of the shares of restricted stock.

In fiscal 2005, the Company's Board of Directors, upon
recommendation of the Board's Compensation Commit-
tee, approved the accelerated vesting of all unvested
and “out-ofthe-money” stock options. As a result of this
action, options to purchase approximately 10.2 million
shares of the Company’'s common stock that would
otherwise have vested at various times within the next
four years became fully vested. The decision to accel-
erate the vesting, which the Company believes to be in
the best interest of the Company and its shareholders,
was made primarily to reduce compensation expense
that might be recorded in future periods following the
Company’s adoption of SFAS 123(R). The SFAS 123 pro
forma share-based compensation cost of $56.9 million
for fiscal 2005, in the table above, includes a charge of
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approximately $22.1 million as a result of the
acceleration.

Foreign Currency Translation and Remeasurement

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries have
been translated into U.5. dollars in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52,
“Foreign Currency Translation” (SFAS 52). Foreign sub-
sidiaries with functional currencies denominated in local
currency are translated pursuant to SFAS 52. The gains
and losses resulting from the changes in exchange rates
from year to year for foreign subsidiaries with functional
currencies denominated in their local currency have
been reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) included in the consolidated statements
of shareholders’ equity. Foreign subsidiaries with func-
tional currencies denominated in the parent currency of
U.S. dollars are re-measured pursuant to SFAS 52. The
gains and losses resulting from the changes in
exchange rates from subsidiaries with the parent's func-
tional currency have been reported in the income
statement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits companies
to choose to measure certain financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. The standard requires
that unrealized gains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected be reported in earn-
ings. SFAS 159 became effective for the Company
beginning in the first guarter of fiscal year 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact that
SFAS 159 will have on its consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS 157
establishes a common definition for fair value to be
applied to U.S. GAAP guidance requiring use of fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
and expands disclosure about such fair value measure-
ments, SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, The Company is currently
assessing the impact of SFAS 157 on its consolidated
financial position and results of operations.

In September 20086, the SEC staff issued Staff Account-
ing Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements” (SAB 108). SAB 108
requires that public companies utitize a “dual-approach”
to assessing the guantitative effects of financial mis-
statements. This dual approach includes both an
income statement-focused assessment and a balance
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sheet-focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108
must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of
SAB 108 did not have a material effect on the Compa-
ny's consclidated financial position or results of
operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes”
(FIN 48), which is an interpretation of SFAS 108,
“Accounting for income Taxes.” This interpretation pre-
scribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return and also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
This interpretation became effective for the Company on
April 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact
that adopting FIN 48 may have on the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements and have not determined
the effect, if any, that the adoption of FIN 48 will have con
the Company's financial position and results of
operations.

In May 2005, FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections,” (SFAS 1B54), which
primarily changes the requirements for the accounting
and reporting of a change in accounting principle for all
voluntary changes or when an accounting pronounce-
ment does not include specific transition provisions.
SFAS 154 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. In the event of an accounting
principle change as described by SFAS 154, the Com-
pany will comply with SFAS 154,

3. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company’s principal financial instrument subject to
potential concentration of credit risk is accounts receiv-
able, which is unsecured. The Company provides an
allowance for doubtful accounts equal to estimated
losses expected to be incurred in the collection of
accounts receivable.

Revenues from significant customers, those represent-
ing 10% or more of total sales for the respective periods,
are summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005
Customer 1 44% 38% 35%
Customer 2 30% 20% 10%

At March 31, 2007, customers 1 and 2 had accounts
receivable balances representing approximately 46%
and 31%, respectively, of the Company’s total accounts
receivable balance. At April 1, 2006, customers 1 and 2
had accounits receivable balances representing
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approximately 35% and 40%, respectively, of the Com-
pany's total accounts receivable balance. At April 2,
2005, the Company's accounts receivable balance
did not include any balances from these customers
greater than 10% of its accounts receivable.

4. INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securi-
ties at March 31, 2007 and Aprii 1, 2006 (in
thousands}):

Avallable-for-Sale Securlties

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses  Fair Value
March 31, 2007
Government-sponsored
enterprises § 2500 5§ — § — $ 2,500
Corporate debt
securities 22,505 —_ (5) 22,500
Equity securities 121 496 - 817
Auction rate securities 64,873 — — 64,673
$89,799 $496 $(5) $90,290
Aprl! 1, 2006
Government-sponsored
enterprises $ 4456 §$ — $(10) $ 4,446
Corporate debt
securities 18,890 — {37) 18,853
Equity securities 121 463 — 584
Auction rate securities 45,650 — — 45,650

$69,117  $483 $(47)  $69,533

The amortized cost of investments in debt securities
with contractual maturities is as follows;

March 31, 2007 April 1, 2006

Estimated Estimated
Cost Falr Value Cost Failr Value

Due in less than
one year $38,205 $38,201 $34,446 $34,399

Due after ten years 51,473 51,473 34550 34550

Total investments in
debt securities $89,678 $89,674 $68,996 $68,949

Management has the ability and intent, if necessary, to
liguidate any of its available-for-sale securities in order
to meet the Company’'s liquidity needs in the next
12 months. Accordingly, those investments with con-
tractual maturities greater than one year from the date
of purchase have been classified as short-term on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because the issuers of the securities may have the right
to prepay obligations.
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The estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities
was based on the prevailing market values on March 31,
2007 and April 1, 2006.

During fisca!l 2003, the Company entered into a strate-
gic relationship with Jazz, a privately-held RF and mixed
signal silicon wafer foundry, for silicon manufacturing
and development. Within the strategic relationship, the
Cor'npany obtained a committed low-cost supply of
wafers fabricated utilizing Jazz's silicon manufacturing
processes and the ability to collaborate with Jazz on joint
process development and the optimization of these
processes for fabrication of next-generation silicon
products. As part of the strategic relationship, the Com-
pany invested $60.0 million in Jazz, which resulted in an
approximate 11% ownership interest.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, Jazz entered
into a merger with Acquicor Technology Inc. As a result of
this announcement and the Company’s intention to sell
its equity interest in Jazz, the Company recorded an
impairment charge of $33.9 million and reduced its
investment in Jazz to $25.4 million. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2007, Jazz announced the completion
of their merger with Acquicor Technology and as a result,
the Company received cash of approximately $23.1 mil-
lion and recorded a receivable for the remaining funds
related to a hold-back provision in the agreement which
the Company expects to receive in calendar year 2008,

Silicon Wave Investment During the first guarter of
fiscal 2004, the Company made an initial $4.0 million
equity investment in a privately-held company, Silicon
Wave, as part of a strategic relationship for the global
Bluetooth® wireless market. This investment repre-
sented less than a 20% ownership interest. The Com-
pany did not have the ability to exercise significant
influence over the management of the investee com-
pany, and therefore the investment was carried at its
criginal cost and accounted for using the cost method of
accounting for investments in accordance with APB 18,
During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company
made an additional $2.0 million equity investment in
Silicon Wave. The additional investment increased the
Company's ownership interest to greater than 20%. In
accordance with APB 18, the Company re-evaluated its
ownership interest and whether it had the ability to
exercise significant influence over the operation of Sil-
icon Wave and determined that the additional invest-
ment triggered a change in accounting for the
investment from the cost method to the equity method,
which the Company adopted in the third quarter of fiscal
2004. As required by APB 18, the investment and
results of operations for the prior periods presented
were adjusted retroactively and have been restated to
reflect the application of the equity. method. Application
of the equity method resulted in an equity method loss in
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Silicon Wave of $2.8 million for fiscal 2004, reducing
the carrying vatue at April 3, 2004, of the investment in
equity method investee to $3.2 million. In April 2004,
the Company announced that a definitive agreement to
acquire Silicon Wave had been signed and on May 24,
2004, the acquisition was completed. See Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Application of the
equity method resulted in an equity method loss in
Silicon Wave of $1.8 million for the period from
March 31, 2004, through May 24, 2004 (the closing
date of the Silicon Wave acquisition).

Other Investment During fiscal 2005, the Company
recorded $0.1 million for the impairment of a $5.0 mil-
lion investment in the equity of a privately-held company,
for which a $4.9 million charge had been recorded in
previous periods. The fiscal 2005 charge of $0.1 million
reduced the value of this investment to zero. The impair-
ment charge represented management’'s best estimate
of an cther-than-temporary decline in value. The invest-
ment represented less than a 5% ownership, and the
Company did not have the ability to exercise significant
influence in the management of the investee company.
This investment was carried at its original cost and
accounted for using the cost method of accounting for
investments in accordance with APB 18.

5. INVENTORIES

The components of inventories are as follows (in
thousands):
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goodwill for the year ended March 31, 2007, is as
follows (in thousands):

Balance as of April 1, 2006 $117,218
Adjustments during the period {2,321)
Balance as of March 31, 2007 $114,897

The reduction to goodwill for fiscal 2007 is related to the
recognition of a portion of the deferred tax assets for
which no benefit was previously recognized for busi-
nesses acquired. The remaining portion of the valuation
allowance for these pre-acquisition deferred tax assets
for which subsequently recognized tax benefits may be
applied to reduce goodwill is approximately $6.2 million
at March 31, 2007.

In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company assesses
impairment of acquired goodwill on an annual basis on
the first day of the fourth quarter in each fiscal year.
Upon completion of the fiscal 2007 and 2006 impair-
ment assessments, no impairment was indicated as the
estimated fair values of the reporting units exceeded
their respective carrying values. See Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following summarizes certain information regarding
gross carrying amounts and amortization of intangibles
(in thousands):

March 31, 2007 Aprll 1, 2006
Gross Gross

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 Carrylng Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Raw materials $ 24996 $ 36,697 }
) Intangible Assets:
Work in process 44,429 47,059 Technology
Finished goods 58,942 49,699 licenses $12,625 § 6,697 $13,360 $5,882
Acquired product
128,367 133,455 technology and
Inventory reserves (15,392) (16,673) other 7,142 4,584 7.142 3,771
Total inventories $112,975 $116,782 Total $19,767 $11,281 $20,502  $9,653

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The Company acquired IBM’s GPS business, RF Nitro,
Resonext and Silicon Wave between fiscal 2002 and
fiscal 2005. The purchase price in excess of fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allo-
cated to goodwill. The change in the carrying amount of

During fiscal 2007, the Company wrote-off technology
licenses of $0.3 million (net of accumulated amortiza-
tion) related to the sale of substantially all of the assets
related to our Bluetooth® product line, including our
next-generation SiW1722 and RF4000 series products.
During fiscal 2006, the Company purchased miscella-
neous technology licenses totaling $1.2 million.
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Intangible asset amortization expense was $2.0 million,
$1.7 million and $6.2 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The following table provides the
Company's estimated future amortization expense
based on current amortization periods for the periods
indicated (in thousands}:

Estimated
Amortizatlon
Fiscal Year Ending Expense
2008 $1,783
2009 1,667
2010 1,649
2011 782
2012 739

7. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Siticon Wave, Inc.

On May 24, 2004, the Company completed the acqui-
sition of Silicon Wave, a privately-held San Diego-based
supplier of highly integrated Bluetooth® solutions for
WPAN. As a result of the Silicon Wave acquisition, the
Company acquired all of the assets and liabilities of
Silicon Wave, including in-process research and devel-
opment. Silicon Wave's Bluetooth® product portfolio
included integrated single-chip CMOS radio processors
(including the radio modem and digital baseband func-
tions), as well as stand-alone CMOS radio modem
solutions.

The Company paid approximately $16.8 million in cash
for all outstanding shares of Silicon Wave capital stock
with available cash on hand at the closing date and
accrued an additional $4.2 million during fiscal 2005 for
the earn-out consideration as an additional cost of the
acquired entity. immediately prior to the closing of the
acquisition, the Company sold all of the shares of Silicon
Wave that the Company had purchased during fiscal
2004 to an existing Silicon Wave investor group for
$6.0 million, the Company's original cost for these
shares. As a result, the Company paid net cash consid-
" eration of $10.8 million for all Silicon Wave shares not
previously owned by the Company. In addition to the
above-mentionad payment, the Company agreed to pay
earn-out consideration to the former Silicon Wave stock-
holders upon achievement of revenue goals for certain
Silicon Wave products for the period from Aprit 4, 2004,
to April 1, 2006. If the Company’s revenue derived from
certain Silicon Wave products for the period from April 4,
2004, to April 2, 2005, exceeded $6.0 million, it agreed
to pay an aggregate cash amount equal to one-half of the
revenue derived from certain Silicon Wave products
during this period. As of April 2, 2005, revenue derived
from certain Silicon Wave products triggered recognition
of a liability and purchase price adjustment of approx-
imately $4.9 million, which was paid during the first
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quarter of fiscal 2006. If the Company's revenue
derived from certain Silicon Wave products for the
period from April 3, 2005, to April 1, 2006, exceeded
$25.0 million, it agreed to pay an additional aggregate
cash amount equal to the revenue derived from these
Silicon Wave products during this period up to a maxi-
mum of $75.0 million. This revenue threshold was not
achieved, and as a result, the Company did not have 1o
pay any additional consideration. The Silicon Wave
acquisition was accounted for in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 18 as a step acquisition and in accordance
with SFAS 141 using the purchase method of
accounting.

Other operating expenses for fiscal 2005 included an
acquired in-process research and development charge
of $6.2 million related to the Silicon Wave acquisition.
The in-process research and development was charged
to expense in accordance with SFAS 141, which spec-
ifies that the amount assigned to acquired intangible
assets to be used in a particular research and devel-
opment project that have no alternative future use shall
be charged {0 expense at the acquisition date,

In December 2006, the Company sold substantially all
of its Bluetooth® assets to QUALCOMM for a cash pur-
chase price of $39.0 million and the assumption by
QUALCOMM of certain liabilities. These assets related
to the Company's Bluetooth® 2.0 Enhanced Data Rate
products with HCI Interface embodied in the Company’s
next-generation RF4000 series products, the next-gen-
eration radio radio/modem component SiW1722, as
well as associated fixed assets, intellectual property,
inventory and receivables. The Company will retain and
continue to sell and support certain Bluetooth® speci-
fication version 1.2 gualified products, including its
radio/modem products SiW1712 and SiWl721 and
HCI interface products, the SiW3000 and SiwW3500.

On December 15, 2006 {the closing date of the trans-
action with QUALCOMM), the Company received cash of
approximately $32.6 miilion (net of transaction costs),
with the remaining $5.9 million of the cash purchase
price being retained by QUALCOMM for a period of
18 months as security for the indemnification obliga-
tions of the Company, which include indemnification for
losses arising out of any breach by the Company of any
representations, warranties or covenants contained in
the Asset Purchase Agreement with QUALCOMM. The
$5.9 million receivable is included in noncurrent assets
in the Company's consolidated financial statements. As
a result of this asset sale, the Company recognized a
gain of approximately $36.4 million {net of approxi-
mately $0.5 million in costs associated with the sale)
which is included in other operating income in the
Company's consolidated financial statements. The
Company also incurred restructuring expenses totaling
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approximately $2.5 million {related to lease termination
costs and miscellaneous administrative expenses),
which are included in other operating income in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. As of
March 31, 2007, the restructuring was substantially
complete.

Resonext Communications, Inc.

During fiscal 2003, the Company completed the merger
with Resonext, a privately-held company providing inte-
grated silicon CMOS WLAN solutions for 802.11a and
multi-band (802.11a/b/g) platforms. The in-process
research and development was charged to expense in
accordance with SFAS 141, which specifies that the
amount assigned to acquired intangible assets to be
used in a particular research and development project
that have no aiternative future use shall be charged 1o
expense at the merger date. During fiscal 2005, the
Company discontinued its internal WLAN chipset devel-
opment efforts, which were focused on a two-chip solu-
tion comprised of an all CMOS integrated baseband and
MAC chip and an all CMQOS transceiver for
802.11a/b/g. The Company took this action as a result
of its difficulties in bringing competitive WLAN chipset
solutions to market in a timely manner. See Note 10 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

8. LEASES

As of March 31, 2007, the Company did not have any
balanczs for capitalized leased equipment included in
property and egquipment. The Company leased certain
equipment and facilities under capital and non-cancel-
able operating leases and was a party t0 one capital
lease with an equipment-financing company that expired
on June 1, 2005. The lease had an effective interest
rate of 8.7% at April 2, 2005. As of April 2, 2005, the
Company had leased machinery and equipment of
$0.1 million (net of accumulated amortization of
$0.2 million).

Capital lease amortization totaling approximately
$0.0 million, $0.0 million and $0.3 million is included
in depreciation expense for the fiscal years 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. No interest expense related to
this equipment under capital leases was capitalized in
fiscal 2005.

The Company leases the majority of its corporate, wafer
fabrication and other facilities from several third-party
real estate developers. The terms of these operating
leases range from 12 months to 15 years. Several have
renewal options-up to two 10-year periods and several
also include standard inflation escalation terms. The
Company also leases various machinery and equipment
and office equipment under noncancelable operating
leases. The terms of these operating leases range from
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two years to five years. As of March 31, 2007, the total
future minimum lease payments were approximately
$48.4 million related to facility operating leases and
approximately $1.3 million related to equipment oper-
ating leases.

Minimum future lease payments under non-cancelable
capital and operating leases as of March 31, 2007, are
as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Years Operating
2008 $ 8,634
2009 8,062
2010 7.146
2011 6,526
2012 6,058
Thereafter 13,286

Total minimum payment $49,712

Rent expense under operating leases, including facili-
ties and equipment, was approximately $11.1 million,
$11.8 million, and $14.3 million for fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 200%, the Company
recognized a $1.5 million cumulative effect for such
periods beginning in fiscal 1997 through fiscal 2004
for a correction in its accounting for scheduled rent
escalations, rent holidays and amortization of leasehold
improvements. The cumulative effect was reported in
rent expense {$1.3 million) and depreciation expense
{$0.2 million) and did not have a material impact on the
Company's reported basic and diluted earnings per
share for fiscal 2005.

Sale-Leaseback

The Company completed a sale-leaseback transaction
with respect to the Company's corporate headguarters
in March 2001. The transaction included the sale of the
land and building for total consideration of $13.4 million.
The lease covers an initial term of 15 years with options
to extend the lease for two additional periods of 10 years
each. Annual rent expense is approximately $1.3 million
for each of the first five years and escalates by 2% each
year thereafter. The Company has been recognizing rent
expense on a straightdine basis in accordance with
SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases” (SFAS 13), start-
ing with the beginning of the lease term. The transaction
was deemed a normal leaseback as defined in
SFAS No. 98, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate”.
The Company recorded a sale and operating lease, thus
removing the property from the Company's consolidated
balance sheet, and is deferring the profit of $1.4 million
over the 15vyear lease term in accordance with
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SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate” and
SFAS 13.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Debt at March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006 is as follows
{(in thousands):

March 31, 2007 April 1, 2006

Convertible
subordinated notes $227,596 $226,876
Equipment term loan 22,264 —_
Subtotal 249,860 226,876
Less current portion of
equipment term loan 4,151 —
Total long-term debt $245,709 $226,876

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company
entered into a $25.0 million asset-based financing
agreement {"equipment term loan"}. The net proceeds
from the equipment term loan were approximately
$24.8 million after payment of administrative fees
and issuance costs totaling $0.2 million, which are
being amortized as interest expense over the term of
the loan based on the effective interest method. The
equipment term loan is payable in equal monthly install-
ments of principal and interest of approximately
$0.5 million, commencing on August 1, 2006, with a
final balloon payment of approximately $3.0 million due
onJuly1, 2011, The interest rate on the equipment term
loan is approximately 7.87%. The equipment term loan
is secured by a first priority lien on certain of the
Company’s manufacturing equipment. Under the terms
of the equipment term loan, the Company must main-
tain, on a quarterly basis, a ratio of senior funded debt
to EBITDA of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0, and unencum-
bered cash or cash-equivalent holdings of not less than
$50.0 million. Senior funded debt is defined as current-
and long-term debt plus capital leases, and EBITDA is
defined as (i) operating income under GAAP, plus
(i) depreciation and amortization expense, plus (iii) all
noncash expenses and losses, minus all non-cash
income and gains.

In July 2003, the Company completed the private place-
ment of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of
1.50% convertible subordinated notes due 2010. The
notes are convertible into a total of approximately
30.1 million shares of the Company’'s common stock
{subject to adjustment in certain circumstances} at a
conversion price of $7.63 per share and are convertible
at the option of the holder at any time on or prior to the
close of business on the maturity date. The trading value
of the Company's common stock on the commitment
date, June 25, 2003, was $5.78 per share. The net
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proceeds of the offering were approximately $224.7 mil-
lion after payment of the underwriting discount and
expenses of the offering totaling $5.3 million, which
are being amortized as interest expense over the term
of the notes based on the effective interest method. The
Company's 1.50% convertible subordinated notes had a
fair value of $231.2 million as of March 31, 2007, on
the PORTAL Market. The convertible notes due 2010 are
unsecured and unsubordinated to the Company's exist-
ing and future senior debt and other liabilities of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

On August 11, 2000, the Company completed the pri-
vate placement of $300.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 3.75% convertible subordinated notes due
2005. The net proceeds of the offering were approxi-
mately $291.3 million after payment of the underwriting
discount and expenses of the offering, which were being
amortized over the term of the notes based on the
effective interest method. During the second quarter
of fiscal 2004, the Company used a portion of the
proceeds from the Jjuly 2003 offering to repurchase
$200.0 miilion of the $300.0 miilion aggregate principal
amount of its 3.75% convertible subordinated notes due
2005 and also recorded a non<cash charge of $2.6 mil-
lion related to the write-off of unaccreted discounts and
unamortized issuance costs upon early extinguishment
of these notes. During the second quarter of fiscal
2005, the Company repurchased the remaining out-
standing 3.75% convertible subordinated notes due
2005 for $100.00 million, plus accrued interest of
$1.9 million. The Company also recorded a non-cash
charge of $0.6 million related to the repurchase for
unaccreted discounts and unamortized issuance costs
in interest expense.

Convertible Debt (Issued Subsequent to Fiscal 2007)
In April 2007, the Company issued $200 million aggre-
gate principal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordi-
nated Notes due 2012 (the “2012 Notes”} and
$175 million aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Con-
vertible Subordinated Notes due 2014 (the “2014
Notes”, and together with the 2012 Notes, the
“Notes"). The Notes were issued in a private placement
to Merrill Lynich, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated for
resale to qualified institutional buyers. To date, offering
expenses in connection with the issuance of the Notes,
including discounts and commissions, are approxi-
mately $8.6 million.

Interest on the Notes will be payable in cash semian-
nually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year,
beginning October 15, 2007. The 2012 Notes mature
on April 15, 2012, and the 2014 Notes mature on
April 15, 2014. The Notes will be subordinated unse-
cured obligations of the Company and will rank junior in
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right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and
future senior debt. The Notes effectively will be subor-
dinated to the indebtedness and other liabilities of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

Holders may convert their Notes based on a conversion
rate of 124.2969 shares of the Company’'s common
stock per $1,000 principal amount of Notes (which is
equal to an initial conversion price of approximately
$8.05 per share), subject to adjustment, only under
the foliowing circumstances: (1) if the closing price of
the Company’s common stock reaches, or the trading
price of the Notes falls below, specified thresholds for a
specified number of trading days, (2) if specified distri-
butions to holders of the Company’'s common stock
oceur, (3} if a fundamental change occurs or (4} during
the last month prior to maturity of the applicable Notes.
Upon conversion, in lieu of shares of the Company's
common stock, for each $1,000 principal amount of
Notes, a holder will receive an amount in cash equat to
the lesser of (i} $1,000 or (ii) the conversion value, as
determined under the applicable indentures governing
the Notes. If the conversion value exceeds $1,000, the
Company also will deliver, at its election, cash or com-
mon stock or a combination of cash and common stock
equivalent to the amount of the conversion value in
excess of $1,000,

Holders of the Notes who convert their Notes in con-
nection with a fundamental change, as defined in the
indentures, may be entitled to a make whole premium in
the form of an increase in the conversion rate applicable
to their Notes. In addition, in the event of a fundamental
change, holders of the Notes may require the Company
to purchase for cash all or a portion of their Notes,
subject to specified exceptions, at a price equal to 100%
of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, up to, but not including, the
fundamental change purchase date.

Holders of the Notes are entitled to the benefits of a
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 4,
2007, between the Company and Merrill Lynch {the
“Registration Rights Agreement”). Under the Registra-
tion Rights Agreement, the Company has agreed tofile a
shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission covering resales of the Notes
and the common stock issuable upon conversion of the
Notes. The Company has agreed to use its reasonable
efforts to cause such registration statement to become
effective within 180 days of issuing the Notes, and to
keep the registration statement effective until the ear-
lier of (1) the sale pursuant to the shelf registration
statement of the Notes and all of the shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes, (2} the
date when the holders are abie to sell all such securities
immediately pursuant to Rule 144(k) promulgated under
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the Act and (3) the date that is two years from the
ariginal issuance of the Notes.

10. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company’s
Board of Directors committed to a plan to discontinue
the Company’s internal WLAN chipset development
efforts as a result of the Company's difficulties in
bringing competitive WLAN chipset sclutions to market
in a timely manner. The Company has continued to
support its WLAN component business, which includes
its transceiver for gaming and other applications as well
as its WLAN PAs and front end modules for all WLAN
markets.

As a result of the discontinuation of its internal WLAN
chipset development efforts, the Company recorded
total expenses of $42.4 million during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2005, which consisted of a non-cash charge, of
approximately $37.1 million for impairment of intangible
assets (consisting of acquired technology licenses), a
non-cash charge of approximately $0.9 million for
impairment of fixed assets and prepaids and cash
charges of approximately $2.4 million related to sever-
ance and related payroll costs. In addition, the Company
recorded contractual obligations related to software and
license agreements of approximately $1.7 million as
well as miscellaneous accruals totaling approximately
$0.3 million,

During fiscal 20086, the Company reversed accrued con-
tract expense related to the discontinuation of its inter-
nal WLAN chipset development efforts. The accrued
contract expense was related to a commitment to
acquire a license for intellectual property of $1.0 million
that was originally recorded in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005. This license agreement was renegotiated
in fiscal 2006 to allow the technology to be used for non-
WLAN related products. The Company recorded addi-
tional expenses of $0.6 million related to the discon-
tinuation of its internal WLAN chipset development
during fiscal 2006. During fiscal 2007, the Company
recorded $0.1 million of additional expense related to
the discontinuation of its internal WLAN chipset devel-
opment. The restructuring is substantially compiete and
all expenses and credits related to this restructuring are
recorded in “Other Operating Expense” in the Compa-
ny’'s consolidated financial statements. .
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11. INCOME TAXES Fiscal Year 2007 2006
Income {loss} before income taxes consists of the fol- Deferred income tax assets: .
lowing components {in thousands): Allowance for bad debts s 137 $ 144
Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005 Warranty reserve 201 220
. Inventory reserve 5,758 7.884
Unltelzd States $75,256 $13.867 $(64,773) Accrued vacation 2,723 2,670
Foreign 11,143 6,344 (691) Sale/leaseback 366 401
Total $86,399 $20,211 $(65,464) Write-down of investment 1,675 2,185
Investment loss (income) 1,718 1,719
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are deter- Equity compensation 8,756 3,649
mined based upon differences between financial report- Capitalized research and
ing and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are development expenses 4,560 5,306
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that Accumulated depreciation/basis
will be in effect when the differences are expected to difference 3,463 1,105
reverse. The components of the income tax (provision) Net operating loss carry-forwards 13,956 39,034
benefit are as follows (in thousands): Research and other credits 44,644 40,217
Flscal Year 2007 2006 2005 Other deferred assets 617 609
Current {expense) Total deferred income tax assets 88,574 105,143
benefit: Valuation allowance (51,378) (70.562)
Federal $(1,562) $ (63) $ (69) Net deferred income tax asset $37,196 § 34,581
State 220 45 123 _ —
Foreign (3,061) (2.942) (639) Deferred income tax ||§b|}|tses: ‘
Accumulated depreciation/bhasis
{4,403) (2,960) (581) difference $(28,859) % (29,866}
Amortization and purchase
Deferred (expense) accounting basis difference {1,442) {1,648}
benefit: Other deferred liabilities (1,783)  (1,495)
Federal (868) (1,940) - Other comprehensive income (226) —
Statt-a * (71) (86) - Total deferred income tax liabilities {32,110) (33,009)
Foreign 2,359 1,105 —
Net deferred income tax asset $ 5086 §& 1,572
1,420 (921) —
Amounts included in Consolidated
Total $(2,983) 3(3,881) $(531) Balance Sheets:
Current assets $ 7,039 $ 3,869
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of Current liabilities _ _
temporary differences between the carrying amounts Non-current assets 3,463 1,105
of assets and liabilities for'fmancna! reporting purpgsgs Noncurrent liabilities (5,416} (3.392)
and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Signif-
icant components of the Company's net deferred Net deferred income tax asset $ 5086 % 1,572

income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
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At March 31, 2007, the Company had recorded a val-
uation reserve for deferred tax assets of $51.4 million
related to U.S. domestic operating losses, state oper-
ating losses and credits against U.S. and state tax
established in accordance with SFAS 109 as it is man-
agement's opinion that it is more likely than not that
these benefits may not be realized. Realization is depen-
dent upon generating U.S. source income in the future,
which may result in the valuation reserve being reversed
in the near term to the extent that the related deferred
tax assets no longer require a valuation allowance under
the provisions of SFAS 109. Of the valuation allowance,
$4.7 million was recorded against equity to offset the
tax benefit of employee stock options recorded in equity
and $6.2 million was recorded against goodwill to offset
the tax benefit of net operating losses, credits and other
deductions recorded in goodwill. Federal losses of
approximately $21.3 million may expire in years
2012-2025, and state losses of approximately
$20.9 million may expire in years 2009-2025 if unused.
Federal credits of $28.3 million and state credits of
$13.1 million may expire in years 2007-2025 and
2007-2015, respectively. Federal alternative minimum
tax credits of $3.2 million will carry-forward indefinitely.
Included in the amounts above are certain net operating
losses (NOLs) and other tax attribute assets acquired in
conjunction with the close of the Resonext and Silicon
Wave mergers. The utitization of acquired assets may be
subject to certain annual limitations as required under
Internal Revenue Code Section 382.
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The Company is in the process of expanding into inter-
national jurisdictions, and it is anticipated that such
expansion and investments abroad will continue. Each
endeavor may expose the Company to taxation in mul-
tiple foreign jurisdictions. It is management’s opinion
that any future foreign undistributed earnings will either
be permanently reinvested or such future distributions,
if any, will not result in incremental U.S. taxes. Accord-
ingly, no provision for U.S. federal and state income
taxes has been made thereon. It is not practical to
estimate the additional tax that would be incurred, if
any, if the permanently reinvested earnings were .
repatriated.

The Company's overall tax rate for fiscal 2007 and fiscal
2006 differed from the statutory rate due to adjust-
ments to the valuation allowance primarily related to the
partial recognition of the U.5. tax benefits on the domes-
tic net operating losses, tax credits, rate differences on
foreign transactions and other differences between
book and tax treatment of certain expenditures. The
Company’'s overall tax rate for fiscal 2005 differed from
the statutory rate due to adjustments to the valuation
allowance primarily related to the non-recognition of the
U.S. tax benefits on the domestic NOLs, tax credits, rate
differences on foreign transactions and other differ-
ences between book and tax treatment of certain
expenditures.

A reconciliation of the (provision for) and benefit from income taxes to income tax expense computed by applying the
statutory federal income tax rate to pre-tax income (loss) for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005 is as follows (dollars in

thousands):
2007 2006 2005
Flscal Year Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Income tax (expense} benefit at
statutory federal rate $(30,240) 35.00% $(7,074) 35.00% $ 22,913 35.00%
Decrease {increase) resulting from:
State tax, net of federal benefit (264) 0.31 2,034 (10.06) 4,991 7.62
Research and development credits 1,596 (1.85) 2,135 {10.56) 6,487 9.91
Foreign sales benefit 2,515 {2.91) 2,477 (12.25) 7,887 12.05
Effect of change in foreign income tax
rate applied to deferred tax asset 1,105 (1.28) — — — —
Foreign tax rate difference 2,093 (2.42) 382 (1.89) {1,023) {1.56)
Change in reserve for deferred tax
assets 19,721 {(22.83) (4,140) 20.49 (39,965) {61.05)
In-process research and _
development — — — — (2,170} (3.32}
Other 491 (0.57) 305 (1.53} 299 0.46
$ (2,983) 3.45% $(3,881) 19.20% $ (581) (0.89)%
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12. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic
and diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands,
except per share data):

For Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005

Numerator for basic and
diluted net income
(loss) per share:

Net income (loss)
available to common
shareholders $ 83,416 $ 16,330 ${66,045)

Plus: Income impact of
assumed
conversions for *
interest on 1.50%
convertible notes 4,056 — —

Net income {loss) plus
assumed conversion of
notes — Numerator for
diluted net income
{loss) per share $ 87,472 $ 16,330 $ (66,045)

Denominator:

Denominator for basic
net income (loss) per
share — weighted
average shares 192,137 188,832 186,935

Effect of dilutive
securities:
Employee stock
options 4,232 3,949 —

Assumed conversion
of 1.50%
convertible notes 30,144 —_ —

Denominator for dituted
net income (loss) per
share — adjusted
weighted average
shares and assumed
conversions 226,513 192,781 186,985

Basic net income {loss)
per share $§ 043 % 009 % (0.35)

Diluted net income {loss)
per share $§ 039 % 008 % (035

In the computation of diluted net income per share for
fiscal years 2007 and 2006, 4.3 million shares and
13.0 million shares, respectively, were excluded
because the exercise price of the options was greater
than the average market price of the underlying common
stock and the effect of their inclusion would have been
antidilutive, In the computation of dituted net loss per
share for fiscal 2005, all outstanding stock options and
warrants were excluded because the effect of their
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive,

The computation of diluted net income per share for
fiscal year 2007 assumed the conversion of the
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Company’s 1.50% convertible subordinated notes due
2010. The computation of diluted net income {loss) per
share for fiscal years 2006 and 2005 did not assume
the conversion of the Company's 1.50% convertible
subordinated notes due 2010 because the inclusion
would "have been antidilutive. The 1.50% notes are
convertible at a price of $7.63 per share, and the clos-
ing price of the Company’s common stock on the date it
committed to sell the notes was $5.78 per share.

13. 401(k) PLAN

Each U.S. employee is eligible to participate in the
Company's fully qualified 401(k} plan immediatety upon
hire. An employee may invest pretax earnings in the
401(k} plan up to the maximum legal limits (as defined
by Federal regulations). Employer ¢ontributions to the
plan are made at the discretion of the Company’s Board
of Directors. An employee is fully vested in the employer
contribution portion of the plan after completion of five
continuous years of service. The Company contributed
$3.6 million, $2.8 million and $2.2 million to the plan
during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

14. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

On August 10, 2001, the Company's Board of Directors
adopted a shareholder rights plan, pursuant to which un-
certificated stock purchase rights were distributed to
shareholders at a rate of one right for each share of
common stock held of record as of August 30, 2001.
The rights plan is designed to enhance the Board's
ability to prevent an acquirer from depriving sharehold-
ers of the long-term value of their investment and to
protect shareholders against attempts to acquire the
Company by means of unfair or abusive takeover tac-
tics. The rights become exercisable based upon certain
limited conditions related to acquisitions of stock, ten-
der offers and certain business combination transac-
tions involving the Company. Pursuant to the July 2003
amendment to the shareholder rights plan, an indepen-
dent committee of the Company’'s Board of Directors is
required to evaluate the shareholder rights plan at least
once every three years in order to determine whether
the ptan continues to be in the best interests of the
Company and its sharehelders. In April 2004, the Gov-
ernance and Nominating Committee of the Board eval-
uated the rights plan and determined that it was in the
hest interests of the Company and its shareholders. In
March 2007, the Governance and Nominating Commit-
tee of the Board again conducted an evaluation of the
rights plan and determined that it continues to be in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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15. COMMON STOCK RESERVED FOR FUTURE
ISSUANCE

At March 31, 2007, the Company had reserved a total of
75.7 million of its authorized 500.0 million shares of
commaon stock for future issuance as follows (in
thousands):

Outstanding stock options under formal
directors and employees stock option
plans 23,024

Possitde future issuance under Company

stock option plans 16,763
Qutstanding directors’ options outside of

non-employee directors’ option plan 80
Employee stock purchase plan 3,261
Restricted share-based awards granted 2,293
Possible future issuance of restricted share-

based awards 126
Possible future issuance pursuant to

convertible subordinated notes 30,144

75,691

Total shares reserved

16. -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings
and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of its
business that have not been fully adjudicated. These
actions, when finalty concluded and determined, will not,
in the opinion of management, have a material adverse
effect upon the consoclidated financial position or
results of operations of the Company.

During fiscal 2007, the Company received a notification
from ancther customer with respect to the failure in the
field of one of its infrastructure products due to an
alleged defect in the products. The Company's initial
failure analysis of returned products did not identify any
defects in its product. The Company is currently con-
tinuing the process of conducting standard failure anal-
ysis procedures to determine the root cause of the field
failures and is working with the customer to mitigate
potential losses associated with these field failures. As
of May 30, 2007, the Company had not completed this
analysis or confirmed that the associated failures were
its responsibility. Accordingly, the Company cannot rea-
sonably estimate the amount of its potential exposure
for this matter.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During fiscal 2003, we entered into a strategic relation-
ship with Jazz, a privately-held RF and mixed signal
silicon wafer foundry, for silicon manufacturing and
development. Within the strategic relationship, we
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obtained a committed low-cost supply of wafers fabri-
cated utilizing Jazz's silicon manufacturing processes
and the ability to collaborate with Jazz on joint process
development and the optimization of these processes
for fabrication of next-generation silicon products. As
part of the strategic relationship, we invested $60.0 mil-
lion in Jazz, which resulted in an approximate 11%
ownership interest in Jazz operations.

During our second quarter of fiscal 2007, Jazz entered
into a merger with Acquicor Technology Inc. As a result of
this anncuncement and our intention to sell our equity
interest in Jazz, we recorded an impairment charge of
$33.9 million and reduced our investment in Jazz to
$25.4 million. During our fourth quarter of fiscal 2007,
Jazz announced the completion of their merger with
Acquicor Technology and as a result, we received cash
of approximately $23.1 million and recorded a receiv-
able for the remaining funds related to a hold-back
provision in the agreement which we are due to receive
in fiscal 2008.

18. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
The consolidated financial statements include sales to

custemers by geographic region that are summarized as
follows;

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005

Sales:
United States 7% 15% 16%
Asia 74 65 61
Europe 17 17 18
Central and South America 1 2 5
Canada <1 <1 <1
Other <1 <1 <1

The Company classifies its revenues based upon the
end application of the product in which its integrated
circuits are used. Net sales by end application are reg-
ularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
and are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2007 2006 2005
{in thousands)
Net Revenue:

Cellular $ 958.4 $707.4 $569.4
Wireless
Connectivity 471 44.1 46.0
Infrastructure 18.1 18.7 18.8
Total $1,023.6 $770.2 $634.2
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The consolidated financial statements include the fol-
lowing long-lived asset amounts related to operations of
the Company by geographic region (in thousands):

Flscal Year End 2007 2006

Long-lived assets:

United States $324,374 $303,358
Asia 46,976 36,075
Europe 2,105 1,860

Total long-lived assets  $373,455  $341,293
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Sales, for geographic disclosure purposes, are based
on the “bill to" address of the customer. The “bill to”
address is not always an accurate representation of the
location of final consumption of the Company’s compo-
nents, Long-lived assets include property and equip-
ment and at fiscal year end 2007, approximately
$45.9 million {or 12.3%) of our total property and equip-
ment was located in China.
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19. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED}:
Fiscal 2007 Quarter

RF Micro Devices, In¢. and Subsidiaries Annuat Report on Form 10K 2007

Flrst Second Third Fourth

{in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue
Gross profit
Met income (loss)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted

Fiscal 2006 Quarter

$238,335 $246,919 $281,001 $257,270
79,656 86,141 100,497 90,566
13,934 (19,977 59,3262 30,133

$ 007 $ (010) & o031 $ 016
$ 007 $ (010) $ 026 % 0.14

Flrst Second Third Fourth

(in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue
Gross profit
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss} per share:
Basic
Diluted

$159,384 $177,004 $207,974 $225885
54,310 63,749 74,981 75,983
(2,717) 5,937 14,678 (1,568}

$ (0.01) $ 003 $ 008 & (0.01)
$ (001) $ 003 $ 007 $ (001

The Company uses a 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to March 31 of each year. The first fiscal
quarter of each year ends on the Saturday closest to June 30, the second fiscal quarter of each year ends on the
Saturday closest to September 30 and the third fiscal quarter of each year ends on the Saturday closest to
December 31. Each quarter of fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007 contained a comparable number of weeks {13 weeks).

{1} In the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and as a result of the announced merger of Jazz Semiconductor. Inc. with a wholly owned subsidiary of Acquicor
Technology, Inc, and our intention to setl our equity interest in Jazz, we recorded an impairment charge of $33.9 million for our investment in lazz.

{2} In the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded a gain of $34.6 (net of restructuring expenses) from the sale of substantially all of the assets related to our
Biuetooth® product line, including our next-generation Siw1722 and RF4000 series products, as well as associated fixed assets, intellectual property,

inventory and receivables,

{3) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, a non<ash variable accounting expense totaling $19.9 million was recorded as a result of the completion of the

Company's option exchange program,
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

RF Micro Devices and Subsidiaries

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation, integrity, accuracy and fair presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The financial statements were
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S. and include amounts based on
judgments and estimates by management.

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Qur
internal controf over financial reporting is supported by internal audits, appropriate reviews by management, policies
and guidelines. careful selection and training of qualified personnel, and codes of ethics adopted by our Company’s
Board of Directors that are applicahle to all directors, officers and employees of our Company.

Because of its inherent limitations, no matter how well designed, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect all misstatements. (nternal controls can only provide reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation. Further, the evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting was made as of a specific date, and continued effectiveness in future periods is subject to the risks that the
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies
and procedures may decline.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, with the partic-
ipation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as of March 31, 2007. In conducting this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment, management believes
that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007.

The Company's independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, a registered public accounting firm, are appointed by the
Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors, subject to ratification by our Company's shareholders. Ernst &
Young LLP has audited and reported on the Consolidated Financial Statements of RF Micro Devices, Inc. and
subsidiaries and management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. The reports of the independent registered public accounting firm are contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of RF Micro Devices, inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on internal Control
over Financial Reporting, that RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). RF Micro
Devices, Inc’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on management’'s assessment and an opinicn on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
tranisactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its Inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective-internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the CQS0
criteria. Also, in our opinion, RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated batance sheets of RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007 and April 1,
2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2007 of RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated May 25,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ennct ¥ LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
May 25, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements

Board of Directors and Shareholders
RF Micro Devices, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of RF Micro Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the index at item 15(a){2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule
"based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of RF Micre Devices, Inc. and subsidiaries at March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
referred to above, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
materia! respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2007 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of RF Micro Devices, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2007
based on criteria established in Internal ControHntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 25, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinfon
thereon.

ﬁgmt 4 LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
May 25, 2007
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

Mot applicable.

ITEM SA. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the
Company’s management, with the participation of the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan-
cial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Compa-
ny's disclosure controls and procedures in accordance
with Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. Based on
their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
enable the Company to record, process, summarize
and report in a timely manner the information that
the Company is required to disclose in its Exchange
Act reports. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financiat Officer also concluded that the Compa-
ny’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective
in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by
the Company in the reports that it files or submits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to
the Company’'s management, including the Chief Exec-
utive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

{b} Internal control over financial reporting

Our Report of Management on internal Control Over
Financial Reporting is included with the financial state-
ments in Part {l, tem 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

The Report of Independent Registered Public Account-
ing Firm on Internai Control Over Financial Reporting is
included with the financial statements in PartIl, ltem 8
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated
herein by reference.

{c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal con-
trol over financial reporting that occurred during the
quarter ended March 31, 2007 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

Not Applicable

FART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information required by this Item is contained in our
definitive proxy statement relating to our Annual Meeting

of Shareholders to be held on August 8, 2007, under the
captions “Corporate Governance,” “Executive Officers,”
“Nominees for Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a}
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” which are
incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted its “Code of Ethics for Senior
Financial Officers” and a copy is posted on the Compa-
ny's website at www.rfmd.com. in the event that we
amend any of the provisions of the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Officers that requires disclosure under
applicable law, SEC rules or NASDAQ listing standards,
we intend to disclose such amendment on our website,
Any waiver of the Code of Ethics for Senior Financial
Officers for any executive officer or director must be
approved by the Board and will be disclosed on a
Form 8-K filed with the SEC, along with the reasons
for the waiver.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

information required by this Item is contained in our
definitive proxy statement relating to our Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be held on August 9, 2007, under the
caption “Executive Compensation,” which is incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFI-
CIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information required by this Item is contained in our
definitive proxy statement relating to our Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be held on August 9, 2007, under the
captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owrr
ers and Management,” “Executive Compensation” and
“Equity Compensation Plan Information,” which are
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

information required by this Item is contained in our
definitive proxy statement relating to our Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be held on August 9, 2007, under the
caption “Certain Transactions,” which is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND
SERVICES.

Information required by this Item is contained in our
definitive proxy statement relating to our Annual Meeting
of Shareholders to be held on August 9, 2007, under the
captions “Ratification of Appointment of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm” and “Corporate Gov-
ernance,” which are incorporated herein by reference,
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
{1} FRinancial Statements
i, Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006.
ii. Consclidated Statements of Operations for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.
ii. Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for fisca!l years 2007, 2006 and 2005.
iv. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
v. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Conitrol.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements.
(2) Financial St;atement Schedules:
Schedule Il — “Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” appears below.

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are not required
under the related instructions, are included within the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or are inapplicable and, therefore, have been omitted.

Schedule Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Fiscal Years Ended 2007, 2006 and 2005

Balance at Beginning  Additions Charged to  Deductions from  Balance at End of
of Period Costs and Expenses Reserve Period

(In thousands)

Year ended March 31, 2007

Allowance for doubtful .
accounts $ 386 $ — $ 20" $ 366

Inventery reserve 16,673 7,259 8,540 15,392
Year ended Aprit 1, 2006

Allowance for doubtful ]
accounts 566 (35) 1459 386

Inventory reserve 22 453 4,274 10,054 16,673
Year ended April 2, 2005

Allowance for doubtful _
accounts 1,547 (875) 1086Y 566

Inventory reserve 19,189 11,365 8,101M 22,453

(i} The Company wrote-off a fully reserved balance against the related receivable: write-uifs totaled $0.0 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, respectively.

{ii) The Company wrcte-off scrap related to quality and obsolescence against a fully reserved batance and reduced reserves based on the Company’s reserve
policy.

{3) The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
{b} Exhibits.
See the Exhibit Index.
{c) Separate Financial Statements and Schedules.

None.
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A

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RF Micro Devices, Inc.

By: /5/ RoBeRT A. BRUGGEWORTH

Robert A. Bruggeworth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:  May 30, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each perscn whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
Robert A. Bruggeworth and William A. Priddy, Jr., and each of them, as true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with
full power of substitution and resubstitution for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign
any and all amendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be
done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying
and confirming all which said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities: Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on May 30, 2007.

Name: Title:
/S/ RoBERT A. BRUGGEWORTH President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Robert A. Bruggeworth (principal executive officer)
/s/  Wiwam A. PripDY, JR. Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Vice President
William A. Priddy, Jr. of Administration and Secretary {principal financlal officer)
/s/ Barrv D. CHurcH Vice President and Corporate Controller
Barry D. Church {principal accounting officer)
/s/ Dr. Aeert E. PaLapino Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dr. Albert E. Paladino

/s/ DaniL A, DiLEo Director

Daniel A. DiLeo

/s/ Jerrery R. GARDNER Director

leffery R. Gardner

/5/ Joun R. HarDing Director

John R. Harding

/s/  Davio A. Norsury Director

David A. Norbury

/5/  WiLiam ). Pratr Director
William J. Pratt
/8/ ERiK H. van DER Kaar Director

Erik H. van der Kaay

/5/ Wauer H. Wilkinson, Jr. Director

Walter H. Wilkinson, Jr.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Agreement and Plan of Merger among RF Micro Devices, Inc., Deere Merger Corp. and Silicon Wave, Inc.,
dated as of April 21, 2004(1)

Asset Purchase Agreement, by and among QUALCOMM Incorporated, RF Micro Devices, Inc. and RFMD
WPAN, Inc., dated as of December 1, 2006(2)

Restated Articles of Incorporation of RF Micro Devices, Inc., dated July 27, 1999(3)

Articles of Amendment of RF Micro Devices, Inc. to Articles of incorporation, dated July 26, 2000(4)
Articles of Amendment of RF Micro Devices, Inc. to Articles of Incorporation dated August 10, 2001(5)
Bylaws of RF Micro Devices, Inc., as amended and restated through June 1, 2004(6)

Specimen Certificate of Common Stock(7)

Rights Agreement by and between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and First Union National Bank, as Rights Agent,
dated as of August 10, 2001(8)

First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2003, between RF Micro Devices, Inc., and
Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly First Union National Bank), as Rights Agent(9)

indenture, dated as of July 1, 2003, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as Trustee{10)

Form of Note for 1.50% Convertible Subordinated Notes due July 1, 2010, filed as Exhibit A to Indenture,
dated as of July 1, 2003, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Wachovia Bank National Association, as
Trustee(10)

Registration Rights Agreement by and among RF Micro Devices, Inc. and the Initial Purchasers named
therein, dated as of July 1, 2003(10}

Indenture, dated as of April 4, 2007, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee{11)

Form of Note for 0.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15, 2012, filed as Exhibit A to Indenture,
dated as of April 4, 2007, between RF Micro Devices, In¢. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee{11)

Indenture, dated as of April 4, 2007, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee(11)

Form of Note for 1.00% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15, 2014, filed as Exhibit A to Indenture,
dated as of April 4, 2007, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee(11)

Registration Rights Agreement between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated, dated as of April 4, 2007(11})

The registrant hereby undertakes to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon its request, a
copy of any instrument defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the registrant not filed herewith
pursuant to ftem 601(b){(4) (iii) of Regulation 5-K

1997 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan of RF Micro Devices, Inc., as amended{12)*
Form of Stock Option Agreement {1997 Key Employees’ Stock Option Plan}(7)*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Walter H.
Wilkinson, Jr., as amended(12)*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Albert E.
Paladino, as amended(12)}*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of October 27, 1998, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Erik H. van der
Kaay, as amended(12)*
1999 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices, Inc., as amended(12)*

RF Nitro Communications, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Pian (as amended and restated effective October 23,
2001)13)

Resonext Communications, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan {as amended and restated effective December 19,
2002)(14)

License and Technical Assistance Agreement by and between the Electronic Systems & Technology Division
of the Space and Electronics Group of TRW Inc. and RF Micro Devices, Inc., dated June 6, 1996(7}
Lease Agreement, dated October 31, 1995, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Piedmont Land Company, as
amended(15)

Lease Agreement, dated October 9, 1996, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Highwoods/Forsyth Limited
Partnership, as amended(15)

Lease Agreement, dated February 12, 1999, between Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership and RF Micro
Devices, Inc.{16)

Lease Agreement, dated May 25, 1999, by and between CK Deep River, LLC and RF Micro Devices, Inc.(17}
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10.25

10.26
10.27

10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31

10.32
10.33

10.34

10.35
10.36

21
23
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Description
Lease Agreement, dated November 5, 1999, between Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership and RF Micro
Devices, Inc.(12)

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2001, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and William J. |
Pratt{18)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2001, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Jerry D. |
Neal(18)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2001, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and William A.
Priddy, Jr.(18)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2001, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Barry D.
Church(g)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2001 between RF Micro Devices, In¢. and Suzanne B.
Rudy(6)*

Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of January 10, 2003, between RF Micro
Devices, Inc. and Robert A. Bruggeworth(19)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of June 9, 2003, hetween RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Steven E.
Creviston{20)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of May 15, 2004, between RF Micro Devices, Inc. and James D.
Stilson(6)*

Change in Control Agreement, effective as of February 1, 2005, hetween RF Micro Devices, Inc. and Gregory
1. Thompson(21})*

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Change in Control Agreements, effective as of June 9, 2005(22}*

Amended and Restated Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2002, by and between Jazz
Semiconductor, Inc. and RF Micro Devices, Inc.(23)

2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices, In¢., as amended effective June 1, 2006(24)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement (Senior Officers) pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro
Devices, Inc., as amended effective June 1, 2006(25)*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Service-Based Award for Senior Officers) pursuant to the 2003
Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices, Inc., as amended effective June 1, 2006(25)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Empioyees pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro

- Devices, Inc.(22)*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Service-based award for Employees) pursuant to the 2003 Stock
Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices, Inc.(22)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF
Micro Devices, Inc.(26)*

RF Micro Devices, Inc. 2006 Directors Stock Option Pian, effective July 31, 2006(27)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement — Initial Option, for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the RF Micro
Devices, Inc. 2006 Directors Stock QOption Plan, effective July 31, 2006(25)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement — Annual Option, for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the RF Micro
Devices, Inc. 2006 Directors Stock Option Ptan, effective July 31, 2006(25)*

RF Micro Devices, Inc. Cash Bonus Plan, effective June 1, 2006(25)*

Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan of RF Micro Devices, Inc. {as amended and restated through
June 13, 2003)(28)*

Subsidiaries of RF Micro Devices, Inc.
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Certification of Periodic Report by Robert A. Bruggeworth, as Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Periodic Report by William A. Priddy, Jr., as Chief Finangial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)
or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Pericdic Report by Robert A, Bruggeworth, as Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Periodic Report by William A, Priddy, Jr., as Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

{1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Repart on Form 8-K, filed June 8, 2004,

12) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8K, filed December 7, 20086,

13) Incorporated hy reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly pericd ended June 26, 1999,

14) Incorporated by reference 1o the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report en Form 10-Q for the quarterly pericd ended July 1, 2000.
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(5) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly pericd ended September 29, 2001,
{6} Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 1G-K for the fiscal year ended April 3, 2004.

(7} Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed April 8, 1997 (File No. 333-22625).
(8) Incorporated by reference o the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form &A, filed August 14, 2001.

(9 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 8A/A, filed August 1, 2003.

(10} Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with cur Registration Statement filed on Form $-3, filed August 22, 2003 (File No. 333-108141}.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form &K, filed April 10, 2007. )
(12} Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 25, 1999,
(13) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form-S-8, filed November 30, 2001 (Fite No. 333-74230).
(14) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filect with our Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed December 20, 2002 (file No. 333-102048).
(15) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit fited with our Registration Statement on Form $-1, filed February 28, 1997 (File No. 333-22625).
(16) tncorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 27, 1999.
(17) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 26, 1999.
{18) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Farm 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001,
(19) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarteﬂyf Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 28, 2002.
{20) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 27, 2003.
(21) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Gurrent Report on Form &K, filed February 2, 2005.
{22) Incorparated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2005,
(23} Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 28, 2002,
{24) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed August 2, 2006 (Fite No. 333-136250).
(25) Incorparated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8K, filed August 7, 2006.
{26) Incorparated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2005.
{27) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 58, filed August 2, 2006 (File No. 333-136251).
(28) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May B, 2006.

* Executive compensation plan or agreement

Our SEC file number for documents filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is

000-22511.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
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Barry D. Church
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Steven E. Creviston
Corporate Vice President of Cellular Products Group

Jerry D. Meal
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William J. Pratt
Cerporate Vice President and Chief Technical Officer
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as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the
financial statements and the finoncial statement schedules but not
including the exhibits contained therein, are available without charge
vpon written request, directed fo:

Douglos Delieto

Vice President, Invesior Relotions
lnvestor Relations Deparnment

RF Micro Devices, Inc

76728 Thomndike Road
Greensboro, NC 274090421

www.iimd.com

We will furnish any exhibit 1o our fiscal 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10K upon receipt of poyment for our reasonable expenses in
furnishing such exhibit.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Cur common stock tredes on The NASDAQ Global Select Maorket under
the symbol "RFMD." The 1cble below sets forth the sales prices of our
common stock for the quarterly periods during the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2007, and April 1, 2008, as reporied by The NASDAQ
Stock Market LLC.

Fiscal 2007 High Low
First Quarter $ @58 $ 549
Second Quarter 7.74 5.25
Third Guarter B.29 6.69
Fourth Quorter 8.60 612
Fiscal 2006 High Low
First Quarter $ 555 $377
Second Quarter 7.06 5.32
Third Quarter 6.25 4.81
Fourth Quarter 8.91 537
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RF MICRO DEVICES®, RFMD®, Ophmum Technalogy Matching™, lead Frome Module™, Enabling Wirelass Cannecirvty™, POLARIS™ TOTAL RADIG™ and PowerStor™ ore rodemorks of REMD, LLC. BIYETODTH is o ademark awned by Bluetonth SIG, Inc, US.A end icensed for uss by
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